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PART A
General Information

The Union Buildings declared a National
Heritage Site

Unveiling of the statue of our late former
President of the Republic of South Africa
- Mr Nelson Rolihlahla Mandela

SAHRA plaque

The Union Building

GENERAL INFORMATION
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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS / ACRONYMS
AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

ANC

African National Congress

APM

Archaeology, Palaeontology and Meteorites

APP

Annual Performance Plan

BBBEE

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

BELCOM

Built Environment and Landscape Committee

IHRM

Integrated Heritage Resource Management

MEC

Member of Executive Council

MGE

Mzansi Golden Economy

MUCH

Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage

MOUs

Memorandums of Understanding (MOU)

MTEF

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF

Medium Term Strategic Framework 2009/14

NAACCSA

National Arms and Ammunition Collector’s Confederation of South Africa

NDP

National Development Plan

NEMA

National Environmental Management Act

NHC

National Heritage Council

NHRA

National Heritage Resources Act (No. 25 of 1999)

NSDS

National Skills Development Strategy

PAIA

Promotion of Access to Information Act

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PRHA

Provincial Heritage Resources Agency

SAHRA

South African Heritage Resources Agency

SAHRIS

South African Heritage Resources Information System

SASSETA

Safety and Security Education Training Authority

SCM

Supply Chain Management

SETA

Skills Education Training Authorities

SMMEs

Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SONA

State of the Nation Address

TR

Treasury Regulations

TRC

Truth and Reconciliation Committee

WSU

Walter Sisulu University
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1. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
Vision
The South African Heritage Resources Agency’s (SAHRA) vision is to be the leading Entity in innovative
management and promotion of our country’s diverse heritage resources.

Mission
Our mission is to deliver on our mandate to coordinate the management and identification of the
national estate by
 identifying, protecting and promoting heritage resources in South Africa;
 developing norms, standards and charters for the management of heritage resources in South Africa
in accordance with the Heritage Resources Act (No. 25 of 1999) and codes of international practices;
 contributing to skills and knowledge production within the heritage sector; and
 implementing heritage management practices.

Values
SAHRA will subscribe to all it does, guided by the following institutional values by which all employees’
behaviour and actions are to be governed.

Accountability
We take responsibility for our decisions and actions, both negative and positive, and our behaviour will
demonstrate that
 we do what we say and own what we do;
 we give and receive feedback by focusing on the issue; and
 we understand the impact of one’s own behaviour on the self, others and the Institution.

Teamwork and cooperation
We work together in order to achieve the best performance in line with organisational goals. Through
our behaviour towards one another we always strive to
 listen to and respect shared and/or expressed perspectives;
 support, implement and follow through on team decisions; and
 challenge one another constructively by focusing on the facts.
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Respect
We value diversity and unique contributions, fostering a trusting, open and inclusive environment. This
is done by
 treating one another with dignity and respect; and
 showing willingness to understand others without being judgemental.

Transparency
We always disclose all information required for the collaboration, cooperation and decision-making by
internal as well as external stakeholders.

Service excellence
We always go the extra mile in order to exceed all expectations in terms of high quality work, meeting
deadlines and professional behaviour, demonstrating that we
 take constructive action;
 follow up on performance; and
 benchmark ourselves against the best in our delivery of services.

Integrity
We are truthful, open and honest in everything we do, and always match our behaviour to our words.

Honesty in all our dealings.

2. Strategic outcome-oriented goals
Moving into the future SAHRA will be guided by the following strategic objectives and goals as outlined
in the reviewed 2015-2019 SAHRA strategic plan:
1. S
 trengthen SAHRA as a recognised leader in heritage resource management, research and education
at national, regional and global levels.
2. P
 osition SAHRA as the premier heritage resource management agency.
3. B
 uild SAHRA’s global, regional and national network of stakeholders and partnerships.
4. Align SAHRA’s initiatives to national socio-economic and developmental objectives.
5. I mplement an effective and efficient corporate governance system and organisational design within
SAHRA.

General Information
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3. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
SAHRA is a Schedule 3A Public Entity in terms of the PFMA. It is a statutory Entity established under
the National Heritage Agency Act No. 25 of 1999 as the national administrative body responsible for
the protection of South African cultural heritage. SAHRA, as an Agency of the Department of Arts and
Culture (DAC), has been tasked to manage and implement the National Heritage Resource Act (NHRA)
of 1999.

4. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

SAHRA
Council

Chief Executive
Officer:
Mr K. P. Mokwena

Company
Secretary:
Ms L. Malgas

Chief Financial
Officer:
Ms C. Motsisi

8

Executive
Heritage Resource
Management:
Mr D. Sibayi

SAHRA Annual Report 2014

Executive
Human Resources:
Mr G. Hughes

Executive
Corporate Affairs:
Ms M. NkhasiLesaona

5. STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRPERSON
 The turnaround strategy as championed by the
acting CEO, Ms Ramagoshi, charted a strategic
path which saw the Council endorsing the
strategic interventions below.

a) Organisational development
The ODP entailed a review of the Entity’s structure,
a culture survey (study), skills audit, and the
development of the Performance Management
Systems (PMS). These have all been completed,
and reports submitted to Council. Council has
considered the recommendations and the
implementation will be linked to the Medium Term
Expenditure Framework (MTEF) plans since these
require additional budget.

Foreword by the Chairperson for the
Annual Financial Statement of the
financial year 2013/14
On behalf of the Council of the South African
Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA), members of
staff and all our stakeholders, it is with a great
sense of delight that I present to you SAHRA’s
Annual Report for the 2013/14 fiscal year. The
year under review was not without challenges and,
as such, our efforts as an incoming Council were
geared towards the stabilisation of the Entity in
line with our mandate, which saw the prioritisation
of the following focus areas, amongst others:

b) Forensic audit
The previous Council commissioned a forensic
audit on the financial affairs of SAHRA and a report
has been concluded. Council has considered the
findings of the report and the implementation will
be undertaken partly in the new financial year
(2014/15), and also as part of the MTEF plans of
the Entity.

c) Strengthening of communication

 Finalisation of the Organisational Development
Process (ODP).

Council has initiated a communication and
marketing strategy intended to profile SAHRA
on both national and international platforms.
In addition, Council also decided to strengthen
staff communication by creating a platform for
engagement with staff on a quarterly basis.

 Setting up plans for institutional capacity
development.

d) Entity capacity

I am grateful to the outgoing Council for its
foresight in initiating the turnaround strategy,
following an expressed opinion by the AuditorGeneral on the audit status of the Entity.

It is our view as Council that, in order for the
turnaround strategy and the Entity’s new strategy
to be successful, internal capacity is necessary.
For this reason, Council undertook the following:

The above measures, which were taken to stabilise
the Entity, were the results of a series of strategic
initiatives and interventions that the Council came
up with as part of our implementation process. It
is on this note that I share with you some of the
most notable achievements that are recorded in
this document.

 Appointed new committees, including the Audit
and Risk Committee, to strengthen financial
governance within the Entity, as well as the
Finance Committee currently under discussion,
with a view to strengthen the Accounting
Authority’s fiscal controls.

 The declaration of the Union Buildings in
Tshwane and Parliament in Cape Town as
national heritage sites, were major landmarks.

 Created an internal audit function and resolved to
create a requisite vacancy which will strengthen
the Audit and Risk Committee’s oversight as well
as financial governance in general.
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 Appointed a Chief Executive Officer, with effect
from 1 April 2014, to strengthen the Entity’s
strategic management, administration and
service delivery capacity.

e) Projects undertaken
In the year under review, in addition to the
normal projects, Council presided over the
implementation of the following projects:
 Round Table discussion sessions.
 The successful
Buildings.

declaration

of

the

Union

 The declaration of Parliament – to be concluded
in the new financial year.
 A trip to Paris, France – Delville Wood War
Memorial.
 The strengthening of partnerships with other
institutions to reinforce the management
of the national estate, e.g. the Department
of Traditional Affairs and other heritage
institutions.

f) Future plans
Moving into the future, SAHRA will strive to remain
the cultural heritage compass of the Republic of
South Africa by ensuring that the provisions of
the National Heritage Resources Act are upheld.
The Entity will assist the national government in
the implementation of the National Development
Plan (NDP) to ensure that balance is struck
between heritage and development. SAHRA will,
furthermore, make sure that its preservation
and conservation efforts contribute towards
knowledge economy and knowledge production.

_________________
Mr Fanie Makhanya
Chairperson of Council
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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The 2013/14 financial year served as a catalyst
for the Entity to review its 2009−14 Strategic
Plan as well as its Annual Performance Plan with
three MTEF deliverables. This was done to ensure
alignment with national and provincial priorities,
but, more importantly, to ensure that the Entity
achieves its strategic objectives for the five-year
period during the remaining two financial years.
SAHRA continuously strives to implement and
monitor sound financial management, accounting
and supply management systems and procedures
in accordance with the relevant legislation
framework policies. The Entity is committed to
eliminate incidents of fruitless, wasteful, irregular
and unauthorised expenditure.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Ms
Mmabatho Ramagoshi, the outgoing Acting CEO,
for bringing stability into the Entity. We wish her
all the success in her future endeavours. To the
new CEO, Mr Peter Mokwena, the SAHRA family
welcomes you and we trust that you will build on
the foundation laid by your predecessor. You have
all our support.
On behalf of SAHRA I would like to express
my appreciation to the Department of Art and
Culture (DAC) for its support and guidance under
the stewardship of Honourable Minister Paul
Mashatile. I would further also like to express our
sincere gratitude to all our stakeholders, partners,
provincial, national and the presidency for their
unwavering support and cooperation in enabling
us to achieve our strategic goals and objectives.
Last but not least, I would like to congratulate the
incoming Honourable Minister Nathi Mthethwa,
NYAMBOSE! We all look forward to drawing from
your experience and wish you success during this
term, every step of the way.

6. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW
report in the 2012/2013 financial year to an
unqualified report in 2013/14. It is envisaged
that SAHRA will put systems in place that foster
good governance. We had to ensure that SAHRA,
in spite of low morale and high turnover amongst
staff members, council, Executive and staff took
ownership of the turn-around process, to ensure
that SAHRA still functions effectively, hence an
improved opinion and performance.
We also had to ensure that all approved policies
were implemented accordingly and compiled with
at all levels.
The contract of the Acting CEO, who was the
Head of the turnaround strategy and steered the
SAHRA ship through the process, came to an end
at the end of the financial year under review. I
was then tasked with the implementation of the
turnaround strategy moving forward from 1 April
2014.
Our main and long term objective as SAHRA is to
fulfil our legislative mandate which is to serve the
nation as a whole, within and beyond our borders
by:
 Identifying,
protecting,
conserving
and
promoting heritage resources associated with
the country and its people;
 Ensuring
proper
coordination
of
the
management of heritage resources across
the spheres of government and at community
level;
 Contributing to heritage education and
awareness skills development and knowledge
production across the entire heritage sector;
 Ensuring homogeneity and coherence of
practice across the heritage sector through
policy, norms and standards as well as charter
for the management of heritage resources as
prescribed by the National Heritage Resources
Act of 1999 and best international practices; and
 Creating conditions conducive for the
transformation of heritage management
practices through policy and legislation.
In the financial year under review, SAHRA was
finalising Phase 1 of the turnaround strategy which
was approved in November 2012. The turnaround
was to ensure that SAHRA moved from a qualified

The next financial year will, therefore, be the
year of implementation and building a cohesive
team. The main challenge remains the budgetary
constraints which impedes the desire to
implement our mandate as predicted to cover our
annual programmes for 2014/15.
Phase 1 (I) of the turnaround process was
successfully completed. This phase covered
the Organisational Design Process (ODP)
which culminated with a new structure for the
organisation,
forensic
investigation
report,
financial management turnaround strategy as well
as the development of a property strategy.
The reappointment of IA professionals, which
was supported by the Audit and Risk Committee,
ensured that the internal audit functions and risk
assessment were managed far more effectively
and that the Risk Plan and Fraud Prevention Plans
were developed.
Significant positive results were noted on the
initiatives undertaken in turning around the
financial management of the Entity. The irregular
expenditure and non-compliance issues raised
in the previous years were significantly reduced.
SAHRA has started the process of costing
the approved structure with the intention of
requesting additional funds in the new financial
year. The finance and internal audit structures
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were prioritised for approval in the fourth quarter
of the financial year, and funds prioritised to
enable the filling of the Finance Manager and
Management Accounting posts.

The need for alternative office space with facilities
that will address business needs, occupational
health requirements and accessibility by disabled
people, is a reality that can no longer be ignored.

The Executive Manager and Manager of Human
Resources were appointed to strengthen an
under-resourced HR Unit during the year. These
appointments enabled the Entity to fast track
the ODP and the development of a performance
management system which will be implemented
in the new financial year.

The office accommodation of SAHRA in Cape
Town was initially intended to accommodate a
maximum of 40 staff members. Over the years,
the Entity has grown significantly from 36 staff
members to 79 in Cape Town, with 10 of the staff
members being accommodated at the Castle of
Good Hope in Cape Town and 10 in the satellite
office in Pretoria.

The strategy developed for the properties owned
by SAHRA was finalised towards the end of the
financial year. We have already started working
on the implementation plan which will prioritise
properties that can speedily assist the Entity in
generating more revenue. It is important to note
that the execution of the plan will depend largely
on the availability of funds. The unit responsible
for property management will be capacitated
to ensure that the strategy is effectively and
efficiently implemented.
The long standing discussion around the move of
the offices of SAHRA to Gauteng was concluded
with the decision by Council that the office stays
in Cape Town. SAHRA is currently experiencing
major challenges with regard to the existing
accommodation as personnel have grown
significantly, exceeding the available space at the
Head Office. The carrying capacity of the current
SAHRA Head Office has far exceeded the limits
in terms of the applicable workplace as well as
the health and safety legislative framework. This
space can no longer support business efficiency,
nor sustain a productive working environment.

___________________________
Mr Kgereshi Petrus Mokwena
Chief Executive Officer
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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On skills development SAHRA has signed an MOU
with CATHSETA and CETA to equip the Youth with
Heritage Skills Programme as part of the Mzanzi
Golden Economy (MGE). To date, 82 learners
have been registered and are undergoing training
on Heritage by the Kara Institute. The programme
is being rolled out in the Northern Cape, Eastern
Cape and Limpopo.
In conclusion, SAHRA has come this far to turn
itself around and the mission is to sustain the
positive transformation and ensure capacity is
enhanced and sustained.
I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
SAHRA’s new Council for its leadership since
its appointment in August 2013, and that they
immediately set out to establish new committees
to help strengthen governance of the Entity. I
also want to extend appreciation to our partners
who supported SAHRA’s work and, of course, the
SAHRA executive team and staff members who
ensured that we improve the performance of the
Entity and deliver on our mandate.

PART B
Performance Information

Rahima Moosa grave has been declared
a national heritage site

Hawthorne Leslie Locomotive – “Blackie”

Diver with a sediment sample

Sibudu Cave Archaeological Site, KZN

1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION
Statement of responsibility for performance information for the year ended
31 March 2014
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation of the public Entity’s performance
information, as well as for the judgements made in this information. He/she is also responsible for
establishing and implementing a system of internal control, designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to the integrity and reliability of performance information.
In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the actual achievements against planned
objectives, indicators and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of the public Entity
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
SAHRA’s performance information for the year ended 31 March 2014 has been examined by the external
auditors, and their report is presented on page 70–71.
The performance information of the Entity set out on page 14 to page 49 was approved by the Council.

___________________________
Mr Kgereshi Petrus Mokwena
Chief Executive Officer
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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2. O
 VERVIEW OF PUBLIC
ENTITY’S PERFORMANCE
The performance delivery environment has
remained fairly stable since the Strategic Plan
2014−19 was updated through a rigorous process,
involving executive managers and programme
managers and led by the Council.

Service delivery environment
SAHRA is an Entity of the DAC. It was established
in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act
(No. 25 of 1999), with its head office situated in
Cape Town and satellite office in Tshwane.
SAHRA’s operations are informed by the above
Act to
 establish national principles, standards and
policy for the identification, recording and
management of the national estate in terms of
which heritage resources authorities and other
relevant bodies must function with respect to
South African heritage resources;
 coordinate the management of the national
estate by all agencies of the state and other
bodies, and monitor their activities to ensure
that they comply with national principles,
standards and policy for heritage resources
management;
 identify, record and manage nationally
significant heritage resources and keep
permanent records of such work;
 advise, assist and provide professional
expertise to any authority responsible for
the management of the national estate at
provincial or local level, and assist any other
body concerned with heritage resources
management;
 promote and encourage public understanding
and enjoyment of the national estate and public
interest and involvement in the identification,
assessment, recording and management of
heritage resources; and
 promote education and training in fields
related to the management of the national
estate.
Internally, the performance delivery environment
remained stable as the Entity was beginning to

implement most of the interventions aimed at
turning itself around. The annual performance plan
was updated through a rigorous process which
involved the executive authority. A concerted
effort was put in place to establish partnerships
with other stakeholders and to redirect the focus
towards rebuilding the credibility of the Entity.
The leadership oversight role was enhanced to
create an enabling environment for improved
service delivery.
Decisions of heritage operations usually tend
to affect communities, organised groups and
individuals. To this end, various meetings and
discussions are held to resolve issues or enter
into agreements with affected and interested
parties.

The Entity environment
SAHRA’s Council – whose term came to an end
in July 2013 – with the support of the DAC,
developed a turnaround strategy in 2012 in
response to the audit finding of a qualification.
The financial year under review presented SAHRA
with the mammoth task of implementing the first
phase of the turnaround strategy. Some fruits
of the strategy are beginning to show as new
critical posts in Finance and Governance were
approved. The new Council was appointed and
inducted in August 2013. This Council has taken
the role of steering the Entity to greater heights
by implementing close monitoring and vigorous
changes of the strategic objectives in the next
five years.
SAHRA is currently faced with dire financial
constraints in the existing budget. It has become
extremely crucial for the Entity to receive additional
funding for implementing the outcomes of the
new Entity design project. The implementation
includes creating structures to eliminate the use
of consultants in critical governance areas such
as internal audit, monitoring and evaluation.

Alignment of SAHRA’s strategic plan
with national policies and programmes
SAHRA’s strategic plan is aligned with a number
of important government priorities, the NDP,
the MTSF and the DAC strategic objectives. This
alignment in summarised in the table below.

Performance Information
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Summary of alignment of SAHRA’s strategic plan
Policy

SAHRA alignment

State of the Nation Address (SONA)

 Declaring the Liliesleaf Farm as a national heritage site.
 Heritage resources are spread across properties affected by land
claims.

Government outcomes relevant to SAHRA

Outcome 4
Decent employment through inclusive economic
growth

Relevance: Value chain processes within heritage resources
management and conservation lead to decent employment.
Identify, conserve and protect sites through conservation
management plans, fostering, for example, tourism and thereby
generating employment opportunities.
Alignment: Projects
Understanding the value chain.
Job creation through apprenticeships.
Must be built into terms of reference for service providers, e.g.
apprenticeships.

Outcome 5
A skilled and capable workforce to support an
inclusive growth path

Relevance: SAHRA should promote skills – internally and
externally.
Alignment: Grahamstown Training Centre and the Internships
Learnership Programme in partnership with the Culture, Art,
Tourism, Hospitality and Sports Sector Education and Training
Authority (CATHSSETA) (skills development).

Outcome 10

Relevance: Speaks to aspects of SAHRA’s core mandate.

Environmental assets and natural resources that
are well-protected and continually enhanced

Alignment: To package SAHRA’s objective under the protection of
heritage aspects of the environment.

Outcome 11

Relevance: Heritage that belongs to everybody and the second
part of the public service.

An efficient, effective and development-oriented
public service

Alignment: HR will be underpinned by excellence in the public
service.

DAC strategic goals
Access to information

Legislatively, SAHRA must comply with access to information,
including Section 10 of the NHRA. The preamble of the Act
empowers all citizens to the management of their heritage, PAIA
and Section 30 of NEMA.

Development, protection and preservation of art,
culture and heritage

Heritage management, conservation and protection form part of our
mandate. Further, we do this in terms of cooperative governance.

16
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Summary of alignment of SAHRA’s strategic plan (Continued...)
Policy

SAHRA alignment

Economic development and economic
empowerment

SAHRA supports this goal in the following ways:
1. The implementation of the South African Heritage Information
System (SAHRIS) stimulates training and employment creation.
2. By rolling out SAHRIS globally, we could create the opportunity
for practitioners to be employed internationally.
3. We will capacitate heritage practitioners through using centres
such as the one in Grahamstown.
4. Projects: Underwater museum, capital works projects, graves
restoration and general restoration projects (using local people
for such restorations).
5. Internships within SAHRA.
6. Legislation further creates employment by protecting sites
through declarations. We create an environment that, in turn,
creates jobs and creates revenue, e.g. Table Mountain, Robben
Island, Mapungubwe and Baboon Point.
By protecting heritage we can create employment, ensuring that
the legacy of the country lives on. This is important for tourism
and is quantified by the Conservation Management Plans (CMPs) of
these heritage sites.

Linguistic diversity and equity

SAHRIS will be developed further to include all official languages;
interpretative plaques always provide three dominant languages of
the relevant province.

Human capital development

The implementation of SAHRIS stimulates training and employment
creation.

Governance and accountability

The Executive Authority – SAHRA reports to the DAC.
There are four levels of assurance:
1. Accounting Authority – Council appointed and inducted in
August 2013 when the previous Council’s term ended in July.
2. An Audit Committee.
3. Acting CEO until 30 April 2014 and a permanent CEO who was
appointed on 1 April 2014.
4. Auditor-General who is an external audit.

Mzansi Golden Economy

Mzansi Golden Economy (MGE) is a strategy aimed at repositioning
the cultural industries in South Africa. The MGE strategy opens up
the arts, culture and heritage sectors in order to effectively and
comprehensively contribute to economic growth and job creation.
SAHRA’s efforts to conserve and promote heritage and heritage
resources are closely aligned with this strategy.

Performance Information
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Strategic context
SAHRA is the primary custodian and regulator of
the country’s national heritage, and its strategy
aims to fulfil its primary regulatory mandate
and the coordination of management of the
country’s national estate, as is prescribed by the
NHRA. The heritage resources of any country are
naturally reflective of its history. Considering the
complexity of South Africa’s often painful history,
it is also likely that the country’s collective
heritage estate can be inequitably diverse and
potentially divisive.
A deeper reading of SAHRA’s legislative mandate
suggests that it is imperative for SAHRA’s role
to go beyond passively managing a random or
ad hoc collection of ‘ill-fitting’ heritage assets
towards one that actively identifies, assesses
and manages an integrated portfolio of heritage
assets that collectively communicate South
Africa’s history in a cohesive, dignified and unified
manner. Such an approach is considered to best
promote nation building and social cohesion,
bringing about unity and healing in an honest and
sensitive way.

This requires that SAHRA plays a strategic
coordinating
role,
working
with
multiple
stakeholders and representative partners that best
represent the breadth and depth of South Africa’s
socio-cultural spectrum. Doing so will facilitate
in developing a cohesive and visionary approach
to heritage estate that both acknowledges the
history of the past and celebrates the trajectory
of the future.
Strategic imperatives
Given the above strategic context, SAHRA has
defined a set of strategic goals arising from a
situational context that led to key imperatives
which were encapsulated in its Strategic Plan
2012−2015. The latter was subsequently revised
in 2013 and submitted together with the APP
2014 and Fraud Prevention Plan. The reviews
of the APP 2013 and the Strategic Plan 2012
resulted in the realignment and reduction of key
outcomes from a total of six to five.
SAHRA adopted the following strategic objectives
as outlined in the APP 2013:

Strategic objectives

Strategic outcomes

Effective heritage resources management

Identify, develop and implement heritage resources
management systems

Governance and accountability

Establish effective and efficient governance systems

Efficiency and effectiveness

Institutional capacity building

Partnerships

Strategic partnerships with key roleplayers within the
heritage sector

Awareness

SAHRA brand development
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3. PERFORMANCE ON PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
STRATEGIC OUTCOME 1:

Improved
management
and conservation
of heritage
resources in
South Africa

1.1.1 Number
of students
admitted to
the Heritage
Training Centre

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

Service
delivery
indicator

Output and
outcome

Strategy
Establishing
a training
and research
unit in
Grahamstown

45 students
registered

Reasons for
variance

Heritage
Resources
Management
(HRM)

Actual
targets met

To build
capacity
within the
heritage
resources
management
sector

Responsible
unit

Strategic
objective

Identify development and implement heritage resources management systems

Partially
achieved: 35
of the targeted
45 students
registered

The Grahamstown
University provided
the infrastructure
for training and
recruitment. The
number of students
who ultimately
register is outside
the influence or
control of SAHRA
Subsequently,
Council resolved to
suspend the project
and undertake a
process to review
the format and
accreditation of the
programme

To manage
and conserve
graves
and burial
grounds
of cultural
significance

HRM

Identification
and
declaration of
graves

Improved
management
and conservation
of heritage
resources in
South Africa

1.1.2 Number
12 Graves
of graves and
sites of national
significance
declared

Partially
achieved: 9
sites out of 12
targeted graves
and sites were
declared
Gazettes for
Mahabane and
Moroka graves
as well as for
Maphikela
House have
been finalised

To locate
Corporate
and make
Affairs
inventories
of heritage
resources
in state
ownership
(DAC
National
Audit Project)

Launching
Effective
audit projects information
system for
heritage users.
Improved
management
and conservation
of heritage
resources in
South Africa

1.1.3 Number
of collections
of moveable
heritage
resources in
state ownership
audited

2 collections
of audit
projects
completed

Not achieved

To enable
efficient and
effective
SAHRA
management
and
operations

Development
of a Heritage
Resources
Information
System
(SAHRIS)

1.1.4 Training
and institutional
agreements
towards
adoption and
implementation
of the SAHRIS

Adoption
of SAHRIS
by nine
Provincial
Heritage
Resources
Authorities
(PHRAs)
and two
identified
heritage
institutions

Partially
achieved

Corporate
Affairs

Effective
information
system for
heritage users.
Improved
management
and conservation
of heritage
resources in
South Africa

Draft MOUs
were compiled
and are to be
negotiated with
the partners

Training on
the SAHRIS
was provided;
however,
finalisation
of the
agreements
depended on
other parties.
No contracts
were signed,
but drafts are
in place

Public community
participation
and family
engagements
took longer than
anticipated. The
Mapikela family
decided to declare
only the grave.
Further intense
engagements with
the Mahabane and
Moroka families are
ongoing
Audits are informed
by signed MOUs
and no MOUs
were signed
with KZN Amafa
management

Stakeholders were
reluctant to sign
the agreement
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STRATEGIC OUTCOME 2:

To maximise
the
performance
and
effectiveness
of SAHRA’s
Council,
management
and its
employees

Office of
the CEO

To ensure
adherence to
other financial
regulatory
frameworks

CFO

Leadership
and
management
development
Defining and
implementing
the Entity’s
culture and
values
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Reasons for
variance

Implement
2.1.1 Audit
good corporate report opinion
governance
and ensure
compliance
with legislative
requirements

a. Compliance
with the relevant
GRAP standards

Partially achieved

Completeness
will be
informed
by the audit
process
currently under
way

The opening
balances were
checked for
correctness. The
bank receivables
and creditors also
reconciled for
year-end closure.
All GL accounts
prepared for yearend closure

b. Established
Not achieved
theoretical
reconciliation of
the asset register
and GL

The migration
of data from
the Excel
spreadsheets to
the electronic
system took
longer than
anticipated.
Capacity within
the Unit was
also a major
challenge

Leadership and
working from
a commonly
understood set
of principles

2.1.2
Development
and
implementation
of successful
turnaround
strategy

Implementing
Phase 1 of the
turnaround
strategy

Achieved

No variance

Improved
Entity
compliance
with financial
legislation

2.1.3 National
treasury matrix

90 % compliance Achieved
reflected on the
matrix

No variance

2.1.4
Developed IT
strategy

Commencement
of
implementation
of the IT
governance
framework

Partially achieved

No variance

2.1.5 Property
management
strategy
development

Developing
property
management
strategy towards
optimising
SAHRA’s rental
revenue

Achieved

Reviewing
the Entity’s
structure
Implementing
good corporate
governance
and ensuring
the compliance
with legislative
requirements

To enable
Corporate Implementing
efficient and
Affairs
good corporate
effective
governance
SAHRA
and ensuring
management
compliance
and operations
with legislative
requirements
To build
capacity
within the
heritage
resources
management
sector

Service
delivery
indicator

Output and
outcome

Strategy
Aligning the
budgeting
framework to
the Strategic
Plan

Actual
targets met

CFO

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

To enhance
governance,
risk and
financial
management

Responsible
unit

Strategic
objective

Establishing effective and efficient governance systems

Corporate
Affairs
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Improved
management
and
conservation
of heritage
resources in
South Africa

IT strategy
approved by
EXCO and IT and
Asset Committee
No variance

STRATEGIC OUTCOME 3:

Actual
targets met

Reasons for
variance

3.1.1
Implemented
Performance
Management
System
(PMS)

Implementation
of an electronic
management
system

Partially
achieved

The OD process
and capacity
challenges
delayed the
implementation
of the system
during the year
under review

To enable
Human
efficient and Resources
effective
SAHRA
management
and
operations

Defining and
implementing
the Entity’s
culture and
values

To maximise
the
performance
and
effectiveness
of SAHRA

3.1.2 The
number of
workshops
towards
improving
staff moral

Two team
building events
undertaken

Achieved

3.1.3
Training and
development
strategy

Training and
development
strategy
developed

Not achieved

3.1.4 PHRAs
assessment
reports

Two PHRAs
assessed

Not achieved

Leadership
and
management
development

Human
Resources

To maximise
the
performance
and
effectiveness
of SAHRA

HRM

Devolvement
of some
functions and
responsibilities

PHRAs
perform the
functions
devolved to
them

Service
delivery
indicator

A
competitive
and
transparent
remuneration
and benefits
strategy and
policy

Output and
outcome

Reviewing and
implementing
a
remuneration
and benefits
strategy policy

Strategy

To enable
Human
efficient and Resources
effective
SAHRA
management
and
operations

Strategic
objective

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

Responsible
unit

Institutional capacity building

The manual
system
has been
developed;
however, the
PMS on the
VIP electronic
system is not
in place

No variance

Two
workshops
held during
2013/14:
Women’s Day
Workshop
and Change
Managements
Workshop in
February 2014
A policy was
developed as
part of the OD
process, but
no strategy is
in place

There are
ongoing
engagements
with the
provinces and
a strategy
to support
PRAHs is being
developed

The OD process
took longer
than planned.
Development
of the
strategy and
implementation
thereof will be
undertaken
in the new
financial year
The assessment
of PHRAs was
not undertaken.
The Council
is developing
a strategy to
establish and
capacitate
PHRAs
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STRATEGIC OUTCOME 4:

Partnerships

HRM

Developing
strategic
partnerships
with Entitys
which can
contribute
to SAHRA’s
mission and
objectives

Strategic
partnership
agreements

4.1.1 Number
of partnership
agreements
signed per
year

Five
partnership
agreements
signed per
year

Reasons for
variance

Actual
targets met

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

Service
delivery
indicator

Output and
outcome

Strategy

Strategic
objective

Responsible
unit

Establishing and maintaining strategic partnership with key stakeholders

Achieved

No
Five MOUs signed variance
– NHC, SASSETA,
DTA, Kara
Institute and the
Walter Sisulu
University

STRATEGIC OUTCOME 5:

Awareness
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Communications Promoting the Approved
and Marketing
SAHRA brand marketing
strategy

SAHRA Annual Report 2014

5.1.1
Marketing
Development
strategy
and
commissioned
implementation
of marketing
and
communications
brand strategy

Achieved

Reasons for
variance

Actual
targets met

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

Service
delivery
indicator

Output and
outcome

Strategy

Responsible
unit

Strategic
objective

SAHRA brand development

No
Communication variance
strategy
approved and
signed by
the Council.
Elements of the
communications
strategy
implemented

SUMMARY OF SAHRA PERFORMANCE 2013/2014
Key objective

Indicator

Responsibility

Comment

Improved management
and conservation of
heritage resources in
South Africa

1.1.1. A total of 45
students admitted
to the Heritage
Training Centre

HRM

Partially achieved

To manage and
conserve graves and
burial grounds of
cultural significances

1.1.2. A total of
12 graves and
sites of national
significance
declared

HRM

A total of 35 of the targeted 45 students registered

Partially achieved
A total of 9 out of 12 targeted graves were declared:
1. Pastor Beyers Naudé
2. Rev. Makgatho
3. Mr Gumede
4. Dr Pixley ka Isaka Seme
5. Dr R Sobukwe
6. Steve Biko
7. The SAS Pietermaritzburg
8. The Union Building
9. Lake Fundudzi

To locate and create
inventories of heritage
resources in state
ownership (DAC
National Audit project)

1.1.3. Two audit
projects completed
by March 2014

Corporate
Affairs

Not achieved

To facilitate cooperation
and collaboration from
key stakeholders

1.1.4 Training
and institutional
agreements
towards adoption
and implementation
of the SAHRIS, 9
PHRAs, and
2 institutions

Corporate
Affairs

Not achieved

To enhance governance,
risk and financial
management

2.1.1 Compliance
with the relevant
GRAP standards

Office of the
CFO

Partially achieved

To enhance governance,
risk and financial
management

2.1.1 Established
theoretical
reconciliation of
the asset register
and GL

Office of the
CFO

Not achieved

To maximise the
performance and
effectiveness of SAHRA’s
Council, management
and its employees

2.1.2 Development
and implementation
of a successful
turnaround
strategy

Office of the
CEO

Achieved

To ensure adherence
to other financial
regulatory frameworks

2.1.3 National
treasury
compliance matrix

Office of the
CFO

Achieved

To maximise the
performance and
effectiveness of SAHRA’s
Council, management
and its employees

2.1.4 Developed IT
strategy

Corporate
Services

Partially achieved

To improve management
and conservation of
heritage resources in
South Africa

2.1.5 Property
management
strategy developed

Corporate
Services

Achieved

Engagement was undertaken with KZN Amafa,
Ditsong; however, in the absence of a signed
agreement the audit process was not completed
despite the partners using the SAHRIS
No agreements were signed with the PHRAs and
the institutions, but drafts are in place for further
engagement

All GL accounts prepared for year-end closure

The annual asset verification was undertaken;
however, the asset register was not updated
accordingly. The verification results were also not
credible. The migration of data from the Excel
spreadsheets to the electronic system took longer
than anticipated. Capacity within this Unit was also a
major challenge
The development and implementation of the
turnaround strategy resulted in the completion of
the OD process, forensic investigation, and putting
in place a team to capacitate SAHRA through the
process
90% compliance was achieved

Provisionally, IT strategy approved by EXCO and IT
and asset committee

A property strategy to enhance the revenue base of
SAHRA was developed after undertaking an extensive
process, including an evaluation of the SAHRA portfolio
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SUMMARY OF SAHRA PERFORMANCE 2013/2014 (Continued...)
Key objective

Indicator

Responsibility

Comment

To maximise the
performance and
effectiveness of SAHRA’s
Council, management
and its employees

3.1.1. Implemented
performance
management
system

Human
Resources

Partially achieved

3.1.2 Number of
workshops towards
staff morale

Achieved

3.1.3 Training
and development
strategy developed

Not achieved

Two workshops held during 2013/14: Women’s Day
Workshop and Change Managements Workshop in
February 2014
A policy was developed as part of the OD process,
but no strategy is in place

To improve management
and conservation of
heritage resources in
South Africa

3.1.4 Two PRHA
assessment reports

HRM

To facilitate cooperation
and collaboration from
key stakeholders

4.1.1 Five
partnership
agreements signed
with strategic
partners

HRM

SAHRA brand
development

5.1.1 Development
and implementation
of marketing and
communications
brand strategy

Communications
and Marketing
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The manual system has been developed; however,
the VIP electronic system is not in place
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Not achieved
The assessment of PHRAs was not undertaken
Achieved
5 MOUs were signed with the following partners:
The National Heritage Council (NHC), SASSETA,
the Department of Traditional Affairs (DTA), Kara
Institute and the Walter Sisulu University

Achieved
A communication and marketing strategy
was approved by Council. Elements of the
communications strategy have been implemented

Budget versus performance
The Entity’s budget was allocated according to the sub-programmes. The Entity spent 99% of its allocated
budget. Below is a table showing the budget allocated to the various sub-programmes for delivering on
SAHRA’s mandate.
Programme 1: Administration
2013/2014
Subprogramme
name

Budget

Actual
expenditure

Actual
capital
expenditure
R’000

2012/2013
Over/under
expenditure

Budget

Actual
expenditure

Over/under
expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

178

24137

21968

2 169

R’000

R’000

Compensation of
Employees

26 067

25 889

Office of the CEO

10 628

10 745

-

-117

3 401

3 998

-602

Office of the CFO

5 183

5 380

-

-197

3 076

3 267

-191

Human
Resources
Management

2 585

2 419

-

166

2 616

2 396

220

Corporate
Services

5 876

5 461

41

374

4835

3390

1445

50 339

49 894

41

404

38 065

35 019

3 046

Total

Programme 2: Heritage Resources Management (HRM)
2013/2014
Subprogramme
name

2012/2013

Budget

Actual
expenditure

Actual
capital
expenditure

Over/under
expenditure

Budget

Actual
expenditure

Over/under
expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Executive
Management

991

801

-

190

461

511

-50

Grading and
Declaration

186

235

-49

50

38

12

Burial Grounds
and Graves

752

734

1 151

-1 133

800

674

126

Maritime
Archaeology

1 094

878

-

216

768

387

381

Heritage
Inspectorate

139

103

-

36

111

48

63

Archaeology,
Palaeontology,
Meteorites (APM)

605

539

1

65

413

285

127

Heritage Objects

332

223

-

109

218

196

22

98

22

1 123

-1 047

178

159

19

Built
Environment

551

624

-

-73

588

389

198

Sacred Sites

-

-

-

-

400

395

5

3 407

2 527

880

National
Inventory

Provinces
Total

198

182

-

16

4 946

4 342

2 275

-1 671
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4. HERITAGE RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PROGRAMMES
The main focus of the Heritage Resources
Management (HRM) Unit has been the
identification, assessment and management of
heritage resources as outlined in the National
Heritage Resources Act (NHRA) (No. 25 of 1999).
Implementing the legislative prescripts, which
form the mandate of the Institution, remained
central to the functions of the Unit, as regulatory
frameworks compel the Unit to adhere to these.
Enhancing and improving the management
and administration of heritage resources were
central in order to have efficient and effective
service delivery systems. A number of permits
were issued, heritage impact assessment reports
reviewed, and site inspections and monitoring
undertaken. New sites were nominated, graded
and declared in order to reflect the diverse
cultural heritage of a multi-cultural society.
Through multi-stakeholder processes, the Unit
ensures that heritage awareness is raised amongst
the stakeholders and, particularly, also amongst
the public and communities through awareness
activities. These activities were held to engage
stakeholders, create awareness and educate
South Africans on the role of SAHRA in protecting
and preserving the heritage, and to position
SAHRA as a leader in heritage management. Two
key events were undertaken, namely:
 Round Table discussion on ‘Heritage and
development’ – organised by SAHRA to
engage stakeholders on the milestones,
challenges and future interventions to protect
and preserve heritage, with a vision to solicit
support and cooperation in delivering the
heritage management mandate.
 Community outreach programme during ‘16
Days of Activism’ which was organised by
SAHRA in partnership with Ilitha Labantu in
Gugulethu. The event provided an opportunity
and platform for SAHRA to educate, inform
and communicate to the communities the
importance of heritage management.
Partnerships and public participation are key
drivers of the mandate of the HRM Unit. As such,
in 2013−2014 the following partnerships were
formalised and MOUs were signed with the following
key roleplayers within the heritage sector:
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i)

The Department of Traditional Affairs (DTA).
The aim of the MOU is to bring an understanding
of the arrangement for the conservation and
management of mutually agreed sites which
are associated with traditional and spiritual
leaders.

ii) The KARA Heritage Institute.
iii) SASSETA.
iv) The National Heritage Council (NHC).
A number of tombstones of the graves of founding
fathers, as well as other individuals who played
central roles in the liberation struggle, were
unveiled, following their declaration and restoration.
These included activities that profiled SAHRA and
its role in nation-building and social cohesion.
The shortage of skills within the heritage
resources sector remains the biggest challenge,
as few people are qualified in this sector. Better
opportunities and competitive remuneration in
other institutions have resulted in SAHRA losing
staff to such institutions. This caused gaps in the
implementation of the HRM Unit’s functions, which
are core for the existence of the Entity. SAHRA
will, nonetheless, continue to engage academic
institutions to train more students in the respective
fields of Heritage Resources Management.
The HRM Unit forms the core of the Entity and
carries SAHRA’s mandate through the following
sub-programmes and within the outlined strategic
objectives.
HRM sub-programmes:
 Training and Research Centre
 Grading and Declarations
 Burial Grounds and Graves (BGG)
 Heritage Inspectorate
 Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage
(MUCH)
 Archaeology, Palaeontology and Meteorites
(APM)
 Heritage Objects (HO)
 Built Environment (BE)
 National Inventory (NI)

SUB-PROGRAMME: TRAINING AND
RESEARCH CENTRE
The key objective driven by the sub-programme
Training and Research Centre, which is based
in Grahamstown, is to build capacity within
the heritage resources management sector.
In 2013−2014, this was realised through two
programmes, namely the Certificate Course in
Integrated Heritage Resources Management
Practice with Rhodes University, and the Heritage
Practice Learnership which is provided in three
provinces in partnership with the Culture, Arts,
Tourism, Hospitality and Sports Sector Education
and Training Authority (CATHSSETA), as well as
the Kara Institute.
i) The Certificate Course in Integrated
Heritage Resources Management Practice
The Integrated Heritage Resources Management
(IHRM) Certificate Course gives participants a
thorough foundation in the principles of heritage
resources management practice, and requires
active practical engagement and ongoing selfgeneration of knowledge. The course material
provide

core

information

on

the

basics

of

heritage management practice as well as tasks
that serve as a platform for research, discussion,
further learning, and application within the
workplace context. The tasks further allow for
the development of a range of skills and scaffold
understanding from one module to the next.
For the 2013 course, the applications were
invited and 35 participants were selected by the
SAHRA Training Centre in Grahamstown before
Rhodes University’s Education Labour Relations
Council (ELRC) came on board. One of these
participants did not attend the last two training
sessions, which is a pre-requisite for completion
of the course, and two participants were not
able to attend the on-course training for one of
the modules. However, in both these cases the
participants made special arrangements with
the relevant facilitator to catch up on the missed
course work, and are now back on track.
The training for all modules has been completed
according to schedule.

Module #

Module

Date undertaken

Module 1

Heritage Policy and
Legislation

19−21 June 2013

Module 2

Heritage Practice 1

29−31 July 2013

Module 3

Heritage Practice 2

26−28 August 2013

Elective

30 September−
2 October 2013

There are three elective modules offered in the
course, and at the end of the training for Module
2, when participants were selecting electives,
only three chose Heritage Inspection, Monitoring
and Evaluation. A decision was then taken not to
continue with this particular module for 2013.
The final report, including a financial report,
on the Professional Development Course in
Integrated Heritage Resources Management
Practice will be forwarded by Rhodes University.
A total of 24 participants graduated and obtained
certificates of attendance through Rhodes
University in February 2014. As a result of this
course, participants from the previous year’s
intake established a community of practice called
the Heritage Education Forum of South Africa
(HEFSA). This pilot project with Rhodes University
yielded good results and learners completed their
training.
However, due to challenges in some areas of the
programmes, the functions of the Centre had to
be suspended in order for SAHRA to review and
improve the current processes – particularly the
modules offered, accreditation, identification of
appropriate trainers, and general administrative
matters.
ii) Heritage Practice Learnership in
partnership with the Culture, Arts, Tourism,
Hospitality and Sports Sector Education and
Training Authority (CATHSSETA) and Kara
Institute
The Heritage Practice Learnership (NQF) Level
4 is funded by CATHSSETA and implemented
by the Kara Institute, based on the service
level agreement with SAHRA. The Heritage
Practice Learnership Programme concentrated
on three rural provinces, namely the Eastern
Cape, Limpopo and the Northern Cape. Learners
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were recruited based on their backgrounds,
and mainly displayed interest in the subject of
Heritage Management. Based on the provisions
of NSDS III, learners were not only provided with
theory but also with workplace experience, and
placement of learners to cultural institutions was
fundamental to the success of this programme.
Learners were inducted, screened and enrolled in
the three mentioned provinces. The 82 learners
from the three mentioned provinces are currently
undergoing training, as illustrated in the table
below.
Province

Category

Declared sites

Submissions
made to HRM
sub-committee
for grading

New
nominations
received

Parliament (BE)

Sibudu Cave
(APM)

Grave of Richard
Selope Thema

Union Buildings
(BE)

Kathu
Archaeological
Site (APM)

Freedom Park

Lake Fundudzi
(MUCH)

David Green
Fossilised
Shoreline (APM)

Block bound
by Strand,
Waterkant,
Buitengracht and
Bree Streets,
Cape Town
(referred to
Local Heritage
Authority)

Graves of Rev.
Sefako Makgatho,

West Coast Fossil
Park (APM)

Number of
learners

Employed

Unemployed

Total per
province

Eastern
Cape

15

11

26

Northern
Cape

19

7

26

Limpopo

19

11

30

Total

53

29

82

Josiah Gumede,

So far the project has been a success and only
one learner from the Eastern Cape dropped out
due to his personal circumstances and delays on
the transfer of stipends. Some institutions have
also indicated fundamental interest and opened
their doors to SAHRA after long engagements.

SUB-PROGRAMME: GRADING AND
DECLARATIONS
The main objective of the Unit has been
implementing Sections 3, 7, 9 and 27 (identification,
assessment, conservation management planning,
consultation and public participation and gazetting)
of the NHRA (No. 25 of 1999). The following
report summarises and captures the activities
undertaken by the Grading and Declarations
Unit for the 2013–2014 financial year that linked
to the functions associated with the processes
pertaining to grading and declarations, which were
incorporated into the various HRM Units.
Project 1: Identification, grading and
declaration strategy
Interim grading and declaration procedures
were agreed on by the Grading and Declarations
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Review Committee, and the status is set out in
the table below.
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Dr Pixley ka
Isaka Seme,
Dr Robert
Sobukwe,
Steve Biko, and
Pastor Christiaan
Frederick Beyers
Naudé (BGG)
SAS
Pietermaritzburg
(MUCH)

Melck Warehouse
(BE)
District Six (BE)

Liberation heritage route/Nelson
Mandela monuments for liberation and
reconciliation
After his passing, the focus of the Liberation
Heritage Route World Nomination has shifted to
the legacy and heritage of former President Nelson
Rolihlahla Mandela. Site visits to the Eastern Cape
were undertaken at the end of January 2014 to
inform managers of the intention, to determine
the condition of the sites, their readiness for
declaration, as well as for any comments or
concerns to be raised. The sites vary in their
condition and readiness for declaration; however,
there is an overall agreement of the intention and
willingness to facilitate the process of nomination
and declaration. A final list of sites to be declared

 Healdtown (Fort Hare University)

Doornbult concentration camp was one of the
many concentration camps that the British set
up as part of the ‘Scorched Earth Policy’ which
crippled the Boer defence during the Anglo Boer
War. Women, children and many African workers
were taken to these camps and forced to endure
harsh inhumane conditions.

 Palaces of Justice (Rivonia Trial and Liliesleaf

Freedom Park

nationally and to be included in the World Heritage
nomination list is being investigated. So far, the
following sites have been recommended:
 Mvezo (birthplace)
 Qunu (gravesite)

– hide out)
 Howick (capture site)
 Robben

Island

(already

nationally

and

internationally declared)
 Victor Verster prison (already nationally declared)
 Ohlange

Institute

(first

vote

for

Nelson

Mandela
 Union Buildings (already nationally declared)
 Parliament (already declared as a national site
in May 2014)
 Manaye Hall (all in Africa Conference; CODESA)
Selope Thema grave nomination
Nomination to declare the grave of Richard Victor
Selope Thema, the first editor of The Bantu
World newspaper and a leading member of the
ANC, was received. The Thema family has also
requested that the grave be relocated. Therefore,
a meeting with the family and SAHRA was held in
order to address questions surrounding SAHRA’s
mandate with regard to the relocation of the
grave and those of other family members, as
well as the erection of a memorial on the grave.
All the graves the family wishes to relocate are
younger than 60 years and, therefore, the family
was referred to the Municipality. The 60-days
advertisement notice was published.
Broster Beadwork Collection
The 60-days notice of the declaration was
published and the Section 27 letters were sent
out with the Heritage Objects Unit. Subsequently,
a service provider was appointed to draft the
Conversation Management Plan (CMP) for the
collection.
Doornbult concentration camp
A nomination to declare the Doornbult
concentration camp will be upgraded to a
serial nomination for all concentration camps.

Freedom Park was established in response to the
need identified by the Truth and Reconciliation
Commitee (TRC) for the symbolic reparation of
victims of past conflicts in South African history.
The nomination was received to have the site
declared as a national heritage site. There have
been ongoing deliberations and debates regarding
the significance of Freedom Park, resulting in the
Grading and Declaration Review Committee not
being able to reach a consensus. Therefore, the
nomination has been referred to the HRM subcommittee and Council for guidance.

SUB-PROGRAMME: BURIAL GROUNDS
AND GRAVES
The key objective of the Burial Grounds and
Graves (BGG) Unit is to declare, restore and
rehabilitate graves of cultural significance, and to
build stakeholder relations that will improve the
management of heritage resources.
Sites identified
 Queen Manthatisi (1781−1836)
Queen Manthatisi was one of the best known,
and most feared, women military and political
leaders of the early 19th century. She was
a strong, capable and popular leader – both
in war and in peace. Her popularity is clearly
indicated by the fact that instead of her people
being known as Batlokwa, they became known
as ‘Manthatisi’.
 Emily Hobhouse (1860−1926)
Emily Hobhouse was a British welfare
campaigner who set up distress funds for
South African women and children. She
was an enthusiastic opponent of World War
I and protested vigorously against it. Her
humanitarian work made her an honorary
citizen of South Africa, and SAHRA continues
to consult and rehabilitate concentration
camps in part to honour her.
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Liberation struggle graves

 Manche Masemola (1913−1928)
Manche Masemola was a Christian martyr of
the Bapedi tribe. She believed in Christianity
against her tribe which still practised the
traditional tribal religion. The Anglican Church
honours her because she suffered for her faith.
 The Queen Modjadji Dynasty
The Modjadji Dynasty is based on the system
of divine kinship which necessitated the use
of divine powers in ruling over the Balobedu
kingdom. The Modjadji Dynasty is also known
for rainmaking powers. While in the early period
rulers had always been men, in the early 1800s
the first woman, Queen Maselekwane Modjadji
I, ascended the throne during a period of great
political upheaval of the Mfecane/Difaqane. She
ruled until her death around 1845. She was
succeeded by Queen Masalanabo Modjadji II
in 1845, who ruled until 1894. Queen Modjadji
II was succeeded by Queen Khesetwane
Modjadji III in 1896, who ruled over her people
until 1959. It was during this period that land
dispossession of the Balobedu kingdom was
accelerated by both the colonial government
and the Union government. Makoma Modjadji
became the fourth queen to rule in a dynasty of
queens that had become established amongst
the Balobedu. She ruled from 1960 until 1980,
when she was succeeded by Queen Mokope
Modjadji V who took over in 1981 until 2001.
Queen Makobo Modjadji VI began her rule in
2002 until 2004.

Restoration of concentration camps
SAHRA commissioned the Heritage Foundation
to rehabilitate and restore concentration camps
throughout the country. This was done in
accordance with the legislative prescripts to
ensure the concentration camps are rehabilitated
for better presentation and public enjoyment.
The following
rehabilitated:

concentration

 Colesberg concentration camp
 Brandfort concentration camp
 Doornbult concentration camp
 Mafikeng concentration camp
 Heilbron concentration camp
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camps

were

The graves of the iconic leaders of the liberation
struggle movements are tangible representations of
the intangible heritage aspects of organised resistance
and defiance campaigns against successive, racially
repressive regimes. They transcend different
responses to 80 years of intensification of repressive
laws – from deputations, passive resistance and
defiance campaigns, to armed struggle and mass
struggles. They also represent a conviction to a just
political cause and attainment of political freedom
leading to the denial of personal liberties and an
ultimate price of banning orders, house arrest,
political assassinations, banishment, exile, political
imprisonment and in-detention death.
Declared and gazetted graves in 2013−2014
include:
 Steven Bantu Biko (1946−1977)
 Robert Mangaliso Sobukwe (1924–1978)
 Pastor Christiaan Frederick Beyers Naudé
(1915−2004)

Commemorative events
The Honourable Minister of Arts and Culture, Paul
Mashatile, unveiled the graves of Rahima Moosa
and an Arabic pyramid on 13 October 2013, as
well as the grave of Pastor Christiaan Frederick
Beyers Naudé on 2 November 2013 as national
heritage sites.
i) Rahima Moosa (14 October 1922–
29 May 1993)
A trade unionist, campaigner against unjust
laws and champion of women’s fight against
apartheid, Rahima Moosa was born in Cape Town
on 14 October 1922. Rahima began her political
activism in the trade union movement as a shop
steward for the Food and Canning Workers’ Union
in Cape Town in 1943, just before the advent of
apartheid. After moving to Johannesburg with
her husband, she became part of the Transvaal
Indian Congress (TIC), and thereafter she joined
the African National Congress (ANC). Rahima
Moosa, alongside Lilian Ngoyi, Helen Joseph
and Sophie Williams, led the women’s struggle
against apartheid, mobilising women under the
banner of the Federation of South African Women
(FEDSAW), collecting signatures for the petition
and taking the women’s disgust of the unjust pass

laws to the seat of the apartheid government at
the Union Buildings in Pretoria in August 1956.
As a result of her fearless spirit in fighting against
apartheid, she was ‘listed’ in the 1960s. Rahima
Moosa passed away in 1993.

BGG permits issued April 2013–
March 2014
Cancellation
1%

ii) Pastor Christiaan Fredrick
Beyers Naudé (10 May 1915 –
7 September 2004)
A pastor and fearless champion of the South
African struggle for liberation of hope, and of
compassionate and embracing justice for and
reconcilliation between all South Africans.

Rescue
31%
Relocation

Regulatory monitoring and
development control

68%

The table below outlines the permit applications
received in the financial year 2013/14.
Exhumations and relocations in
2013−2014:
During the financial year under review, ten
exhumations and relocations were undertaken,
five rescues, and one cancellation.

Permit number

Fee
paid

Applicant

Province

Date issued

Date expiry

Permit ID:239

N/A

F. Roodt

Limpopo

22/4/2013

22/4/2014

Permit ID:268

Y

A. van
Vollenhoven

Mpumalanga

16/5/2013

16/5/2014

Permit ID:307

Y

T. Hart

Western Cape

03/05/2013

03/05/2014

Permit ID:319

N/A

H. Clift

Western Cape

11/05/2013

11/05/2014

Permit ID:358

Y

H. Steyn

Mpumalanga

20/06/2013

20/06/2014

Permit ID:388

Y

A. Pelser

Eastern Cape

03/07/2013

14/09/2014

Permit ID:1019

N/A

E. Mathoho

Limpopo

18/11/2013

18/11/2014

Permit ID:1064

N/A

M. Murimbika

Limpopo

26/11/2013

26/11/2014

Permit ID:1086

Y

H. Steyn

Northern Cape

28/11/2013

28/11/2014

Permit ID:1101

Y

Mpumalanga

29/11/2013

28/11/2014

Permit ID:1338

Y

M. Murimbika

Mpumalanga

04/02/2014

04/02/2015

Permit ID:1487

Y

M. Patrick

Western Cape

07/03/2014

07/02/2015

Permit ID:1489

N/A

C. Nienaber

Limpopo

10/03/2014

10/03/2015

Permit ID:1491

Y

E. Matenga

Mpumalanga

18/03/2014

Permit
BG/12/102/001/83

Y

C. Nienaber

North West

1/06/2013

A. Pelser

Date
recorded

Report
recorded

01/06/2013

Y

24/10/2013

Yes

18/03/2015

30/03/2014

Yes

30/06/2014

CANCELLED
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SUB-PROGRAMME: HERITAGE
INSPECTORATE

SUB-PROGRAMME: MARITIME AND
UNDERWATER CULTURAL HERITAGE

The mandate of the Heritage Inspectorate Unit,
which was previously the Heritage Protection
Unit, is to undertake and coordinate inspections,
monitor, support, issue fines, and refer cases for
legal proceedings that will lead to imprisonment
as specified in Section 51 of the NHRA. The
NHRA (No. 25 of 1999) has mandated SAHRA as
custodians of the Act to enforce the law. Section 8
of the Act indicates that “... A heritage inspector
may at any time inspect work being done under
a permit issued in terms of this Act and may for
that purpose at all reasonable times enter any
place protected in terms of this Act.”

The Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage
(MUCH) Unit is tasked with the identification,
protection and management of the underwater
cultural heritage along South Africa’s coastline
and in South Africa’s internal waters and rivers.

It is envisaged that, in the new financial year, a
fully fledged Inspectorate Unit which will assist in
the conservation and protection of our heritage
resources for present and future generations, will
be established to undertake the following:

During the 2013/14 financial year, the MUCH
Unit has had a number of firsts, including the
declaration of the SAS Pietermaritzburg, the
declaration of Lake Fundudzi in Limpopo, a flagship
Oral History Project in the Eastern Cape, and the
arrest and subsequent guilty plea under Section
35 of the NHRA (No. 25 of 1999) for an illegal
salver in the Eastern Cape province. Amongst all
these notable firsts, the Unit has continued in its
efforts with community outreach programmes,
which focused this year mainly on the eastern
seaboard of South Africa, stretching from Cape
Town to Kosi Bay near the Mozambique border.

 Conduct inspections and monitor the declared
national heritage sites.

Formal protection of national heritage
sites

 Issue penalties where serious offences are
committed, and conduct advocacy for less
serious offences.

Pietermaritzburg

 Conduct research on penalties according
to Section 51 of the NHRA, and benchmark
against other countries that have successful
heritage inspectorate management systems
and have a comparative study undertaken on
penalties management.
 Source a functional cyber tracker device which
will be connected to SAHRIS.
SAHRA has challenges in implementing Section 50
and 51 of the NHRA, since the Entity in its existence
was never adequately funded to appoint heritage
inspectors who could enforce the Act, or to undertake
any training of inspectors. A further challenge is
that South African Police Services (SAPS) officials
are not specifically trained to deal with heritage
issues, making it difficult for SAHRA to enforce the
NHRA. SAPS officials cannot enforce Sections 50 of
the Act. Up to date, several inspections have been
reported and conducted for contraventions of this
Act. The Unit has, furthermore, formed links with
the SAPS as an initiative to protect the heritage
resources and sites.
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One of the sites that was declared in 2013, is
the SAS Pietermaritzburg, which was scuttled in
1994 near Miller’s Point, Simon’s Town, to form
an artificial reef.
The site has been nominated for protection as
a national heritage site as it is significant to
both the local and international communities. In
the process towards its official declaration as a
national heritage site, it was granted provisional
protection by SAHRA under Section 29 of the
NHRA. During this time, SAHRA had a number of
public participation meetings – the last one being
held on 26 April 2013, attended by members of
the public as well as SAHRA staff.
The attendees were given an update on the
progress towards declaration and given an
opportunity to voice any concerns or suggestions.
No issues were raised and all attendees completely
supported the declaration of the site. Attendees
signed the relevant Section 27 letters and meeting
registers, and, with no objections being raised
against its declaration, the SAS Pietermaritzburg
was officially declared a national heritage site on 1
August 2013. With the declaration now finalised,

SAHRA intends to erect information boards and
plaques in the vicinity of the wreck in Simon’s
Town during the coming financial year in order to
raise its public profile even further.
Lake Fundudzi
Lake Fundudzi was initially identified and brought
under the attention of the National Monuments
Council and SAHRA as early as 1998. Subsequent
to meetings held, the SAHRA Council approved
the motion to declare Lake Fundudzi a national
heritage site since the MUCH Unit had abided by
Section 27 of the NHRA and all legal processes had
been satisfied. On 7 February 2014, Lake Fundudzi
was finally declared a national heritage site.
The Eastern Cape Oral History Project
The Eastern Cape is seen as a microcosm for the
meeting of South Africa’s divergent cultures. It
has traditionally been a frontier province where
Xhosa, Zulu, Sotho, English and Afrikaans
cultures met, clashed, integrated and assimilated,
hence developing a mutual heritage narrative
that reflects and connects national diversity.
Many of South Africa’s most prominent historical
figures have emerged from this region, and many
significant historical events have their roots in
the province. The heritage of the Eastern Cape,
therefore, represents both unity and diversity.
The Eastern Cape Oral History Project entails the
collection of oral histories of coastal communities
within the province, from Port St. John’s to the
Msikaba River mouth. This was achieved by
conducting archival and oral history research to
identify the full extent and range of numerous
sites and associated material within the region.
The collected information will be made available
to communities in the 2014/15 financial year
through a series of workshops with the aim of
generating job creation and social upliftment
opportunities. By identifying and accurately
recording these sites and associated artefacts,
SAHRA will be in a better position to manage and
promote them to a broader audience, and will
also be able to assess their heritage significance
and identify potential threats to their survival. In
order to share skills, part of the project includes
conducting practical underwater archaeology
training workshops for divers and non-divers in
the Eastern Cape.

Co-operative programmes
Ecuador
Since the invitation of SAHRA in 2012, the
Ecuadorian Institute of Cultural Heritage has
moved on with the project and has co-opted the
Escuela Superior Politecnica Del Litoral (ESPOL),
a university in Ecuador, as well as the Corporation
National De Arqueo Antropologia E Historia
(CONAH), which are implementing the project.
The Director of CONAH at ESPOL, Dr Jorge
Marcos, requested that Mr Berry from SAHRA be
part of the ‘think tank’ that will be developing the
roadmap for all archaeology in Ecuador and will
assist in a research project involving Spondylus
distribution patterns tracing back to the Valdivia
(pre-Hispanic) period of Ecuadorian history. This
is a very significant project as it could open up the
investigation into ancient shipping trade routes in
the region, predating European colonisation.
The MUCH Unit also assisted in a second
project, namely Albarradas, which are stone
constructions used by Late Stone Age inhabitants
to collect water during the rainy season. It was
anticipated that SAHRA’s experience in mapping
Lake Fundudzi, and its understanding of peoples’
relationship with water and water bodies, could
be of assistance in answering some research
questions as it applies to these structures –
especially in relation to marketing and proper
management initiatives, which had largely been
unsuccessful until recently.
Following the recommendations of the MUCH
Unit, both the Albarradas and Valdivia projects
have been identified as possible research
projects for tertiary students at ESPOL, starting
in 2014. The above projects were hugely
successful and has helped SAHRA extend its
brand to the Americas. SAHRA’s expertise in
Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage was
also viewed as vital to this project.
Youth Development Programme
Since 2009, the MUCH Unit has coordinated the
Underwater Youth Development Programme
(UYDP) as part of the Unit’s public outreach and
education initiative.
Using the teaching resources already available,
together with the assistance of the partnering
museums, the MUCH Unit will develop a
curriculum-orientated education programme that
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will be implemented by the museums. During
2013, while working towards these outcomes,
the MUCH Unit conducted mini workshops in East
London and Mossel Bay, where they reiterated
their support for the initiative and suggested
various methods for implementation.
Awareness Raising Campaign
The MUCH Unit developed the Awareness Raising
Campaign (ARC) in which members of the Unit
travelled to different parts of the country to meet
with stakeholders and promote MUCH. They
followed the route along the east coast of South
Africa, between Cape Town and Sodwana Bay,
and it is envisaged that there will be follow-up
projects in Durban and Port Elizabeth, as well as
a visit to the area in which the upcoming Eastern
Cape oral history project will be implemented.
To clarify the SARS and SAHRA processes and
streamline these contacts, a database is being
compiled for the coastal network. This will help to
maintain regular contact and to inform members
of the network regarding permit applications
that had been lodged, stop suspected salvers,
etc. Greater attention needs to be given to other
members of the coastal network, such as the
museums and divers. To this effect, these groups
will be included in NAS training programmes and
other initiatives.

African slave wrecks project
The African slave wrecks project has formed part
of an ongoing local and international collaboration
between SAHRA, IZIKO Museums of South Africa,
The African Centre for Heritage Activities (ACHA),
The George Washington University (GWU), The
National Parks Service (NPS), the National
Association of Black Scuba Divers (NABS), and
the Smithsonian’s National Museum of African
American History and Culture to assist in the
mapping and surveying of the wreck site which
is believed to be that of the Portuguese slave
ship, the Sao Jose, which grounded in 1794 while
carrying 500 slaves.
Permits
During the 2013/14 financial year, the MUCH
Unit processed a total of two permit applications.
One is still pending, and the other one – for
the Grosvenor wreck – has been denied. In
addition, the Unit processed and commented on
24 development cases along the coast of South
Africa. It has, therefore, achieved its aim of
commenting on 100% of the applications for this
reporting period.

SUB-PROGRAMME: ARCHAEOLOGY,
PALAEONTOLOGY AND METEORITES

It is recommended that, in order for SAHRA to
improve management of coastal sites, greater
attention be given to identify the relevant law
enforcement bodies along the coast, offering
them sufficient support and training so that they
are better capacitated to enforce the NHRA.

Two key objectives of the Archaeology,
Palaeontology and Meteorites (APM) Unit were
to improve the management and conservation
of heritage resources, and to ensure that
archaeological and palaeontological resources
and meteorites are conserved and managed
effectively.

Surveys

Declaration: West Coast Fossil Park

As part of SAHRA’s mandate to identify, record
and manage national heritage sites, the MUCH
Unit annually assesses and maps underwater
cultural heritage sites (UCH). The information is
collected through survey and historical research,
and is then added to the SAHRA shipwreck
database which can be found on the South
African Heritage Resources Information System
(SAHRIS). For the 2013/2014 year, the Unit
identified three shipwrecks to map, based on the
recreational divers who visited these sites often
and the potential impact these activities may
have on the resources.

The APM Unit has placed a greater focus on
grading archaeological and palaeontological
heritage resources and working towards
declaring such sites. Given the vast number of
sites across the country and the challenge of
limited capacity within this Unit, the decision
was made to focus on grading sites that require
urgent attention. Sites identified for grading
during the year include Sibudu Cave (KwaZuluNatal), the David Green Fossilised Shoreline
(KwaZulu-Natal), and the Kathu Archaeological
Complex (Northern Cape). The grading of the
David Green Fossilised Shoreline as a Grade I
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site was approved by Council. However, Council
requires more information about the other two
sites, and the merits of their Grade I status need
further investigation. The Section 27 declaration
process will be undertaken for sites graded as
Grade I. In terms of declarations, the period for
public comment for the West Coast Fossil Park
declaration was finalised, and the gazette notice
for the declaration drafted. These will be finalised
in the coming months.
Raising SAHRA’s profile at conferences
(nationally and internationally)
Focus has also been on working towards raising
SAHRA’s profile – nationally and internationally
– and the Unit has contributed in this regard
by presenting at an international conference in
Botswana, hosted by the Association of Southern
African Professional Archaeologists (3−7 July
2013). The topic dealt with the management of
Stone Age material from a Cultural Resources
Management perspective, as well as the
introduction of SAHRIS as a management tool in
archaeology. The outcomes of these discussions
contributed towards the updating of the minimum
standards for archaeological impact assessments,
which will, in turn, contribute to a broader
heritage impact assessment policy in the future.
On a local level, positive progress has been made
with regard to the management of significant
geological sites when SAHRA’s APM presented at a
conference held by the Council for Geosciences in
Oudtshoorn (9−11 September 2013), focusing on
the role of SAHRA in Geoheritage management.
Palaeontological technical report and
palaeontological sensitivity map
Closer relations have been fostered with the
Council for Geosciences (CGS) as SAHRA is
working toward being more inclusive in its
management of geological features of heritage
significance. As a direct result of these contacts,
SAHRA was able to secure an agreement with
the CGS for the use of their base maps of South
Africa. This, in turn, has led to the production
of a national palaeontological sensitivity map.
The map is intended to be used by heritage
authorities, municipalities, developers, mines,
local communities and other interested parties
to better manage palaeontological heritage
resources at an early stage of any development or
mining application. This is the first management

tool of its kind nationally, and is accessible on the
SAHRA website via SAHRIS. This, in conjunction
with the palaeontological technical reports
which were produced by a service provider, is
an invaluable tool as it will assist SAHRA and
relevant heritage resources authorities in the
assessment, conservation and management of
palaeontological heritage resources. The next
phase of the project entails the update of pale
technical reports for the Northern Cape, Eastern
Cape, Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal, and to
integrate them with the national palaeontological
sensitivity map. The costs for this phase of
the project will be determined during the next
financial year.
Signing of Memorandum of Understanding
with key strategic partner: SAHRA and
Cradle of Humankind Management
Authority
Successful work has been done in the completion
and signing of a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with the Cradle of Humankind World
Heritage Site Management Authority. The MOU
was signed by the acting CEO of SAHRA and
the acting CEO of the Cradle of Humankind
Management Authority in March 2014.
Annual meetings with key strategic
stakeholders
One of the APM Unit’s ongoing initiatives throughout
the years has been building and maintaining
relationships with its key stakeholders. Annual
meetings have been held with executives of the
Palaeontological Society of South Africa and the
Association of Southern African Professional
Archaeologists, as well as representatives of the
CGS, the Department of Environmental Affairs,
the Department of Mineral Resources (Northern
Cape), and various provincial heritage resources
authorities. The need for such relationships is
imperative and ongoing, and the Unit will continue
to work effectively toward building partnerships
with key stakeholders.
Processing of development and mining
applications related to Section 38, and
Sections 32 and 35 permit applications
As part of SAHRA’s objective to identify, develop
and implement heritage resources systems, the
APM Unit has been managing all its Section 38
cases that are related to development and mining
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applications on SAHRIS. A total of 910 cases were
processed on the system.
There has been a greater volume of Section 32
and Section 35 permit applications processed for
archaeological work than for palaeontology. The
number of permits issued in the financial year
under review totals 135, with the Unit achieving
over and above its annual target of processing
50 cases annually. The Unit will thus continue its
role in processing all development and permit
applications on an annual basis.
Annual fossil site inspection programme:
Cradle of Humankind and Taung
The Unit focused on the oversight of compliance
at national heritage sites including the Cradle
of Humankind, Mapungubwe and Taung. Staff
members undertook inspections at these sites
in order to determine the state of conservation
of the archaeological and palaeoanthropological
sites, threats to such sites, and to determine and
monitor interventions. In addition to its monitoring
role at Mapungubwe, the Unit continues to be
part of the quarterly Environmental Management
Committee and Biodiversity Committee meetings.
Two representatives of the Unit also undertook a
site inspection at the Vele Colliery with respect
to the impacts to the Mapungubwe Cultural
Landscape. The Unit will continue to perform its
monitoring and compliance role in this regard.
Wonderwerk Cave national heritage site
A suitable service provider was sought to
construct and install a walkway, balustrades,
and additional infrastructure in the Wonderwerk
Cave national heritage site in the Northern Cape.
Wonderwerk Cave is a significant archaeological
site with deposits spanning nearly two million
years of human history. Progress with this project
has, however, been hampered due to insufficient
funds, and, as such, a service provider is yet to be
appointed to the project. The project, therefore,
carries over into the new financial year.
APM policy review
One of the Unit’s functions is to set policy on areas
of management that falls within its ambit. As
such, the Unit identified two policies for updating
at the beginning of the year, namely the minimum
standards for archaeological impact assessment
reports and the filming policy. Both policies
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underwent extensive updating, with the filming
policy subsequently approved by Council. It was,
however, the decision of Council not to approve the
minimum standards policy, as it wanted a broader
policy which related to minimum standards for
heritage impact assessments – not only the
archaeological and palaeontological components
of heritage impact assessments. While producing
such a broader policy document is not within the
scope of the Unit, it was agreed upon that the
archaeological and palaeontological policy should
be incorporated into a broader policy document.

SUB-PROGRAMME: HERITAGE OBJECTS
The Heritage Objects Unit (HOU) is tasked with
the identification, management and conservation
of South Africa’s diverse heritage objects. During
the period under review, the highlight for this
Unit was most certainly the meetings held with
the Chief and members of the Qebe community.
The meetings formed part of consultations with
communities regarding the declaration of the
Broster Beadwork Collection, as is prescribed in the
NHRA (No. 25 of 1999). Up until these meetings,
the only interaction the HOU had with people was
in the form of owners of heritage objects, auction
houses which apply for permits to export such
heritage objects outside of South Africa, as well
as with expert advisors or conservation bodies
who advise on the significance of heritage objects.
For the first time, awareness of SAHRA’s role in
the management and conservation of heritage
objects was raised within a rural community.
Raising awareness about the conservation and
management of significant heritage objects
amongst South Africans in general, is a challenge
that SAHRA is looking to address in the future.
One aspect of the HOU’s programme was to put
systems in place with Customs around their cooperative role in regulating the movement of
heritage objects outside of South Africa. Systems
were also explored with the South African Police
Services (SAPS) regarding the management of
firearms of heritage value, as well as their role
in heritage-related crime. Attention was further
given to State institutions and entities which
are required to conserve heritage objects in
their custody and consult SAHRA if they intend
to alienate any of these. The HOU’s programme
report is as follows:

Broster Beadwork Collection
The Broster Beadwork Collection (BBC), housed
at the Walter Sisulu University (WSU), Umtata,
Eastern Cape, has been on SAHRA’s agenda
for declaration since 1999. The BBC depicts
objects of adornment used during the 1950s and
1960s, mainly by the Qebe community, and has
tremendous cultural significance. The BBC is made
up of 3 000 pieces of beaded ornaments for the
head, neck, body, arms and legs. Many of the arm
ornaments are made of solid metal or metal wire
with a round foundation, as well as bangles of
plastic and rubber seals from the lids of bottles.
The rest of the collection comprises of clothing
and accessories such as skirts, headdresses,
cloaks, different kinds of cloth, and skin bags.
This is the first declaration of heritage objects
under the NHRA (No. 25 of 1999) where all the
requirements of the Act were complied with. There
was engagement with the Qebe community in the
Eastern Cape from where the BBC emanates, and
two public participation meetings were held with
all interested and affected parties. Advertisements
were also placed in newspapers, informing the
public of SAHRA’s intention to declare the collection
and to invite interested and affected parties to
raise their objections to the declaration within 60
days, as is required in the NHRA.
Due process was followed to appoint a service
provider to draft the Conservation Management
Plan (CMP) that stipulates how the BBC should
be conserved for present and future generations.
The first draft of the CMP was received and is
currently being reviewed. A Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) was entered into between
SAHRA, the WSU and the East London Museum
(ELM), and signed in March 2014. The MOU clearly
stipulates the roles and responsibilities of each
institution concerning the conservation of the
BBC, and the ELM has agreed to assist the WSU
with the conservation of the BBC. SAHRA greatly
expresses its appreciation for this. The building
in which the BBC shall be housed is already in its
final stages of completion.
SAHRA expresses its appreciation to June Hosford
for her guidance in this process, and also to the
Vice-Chancellor of the WSU, Prof. Mfenyana,
for his interest and co-operation regarding the
declaration and conservation of the BBC. The
dossier to declare the BBC has been submitted to
Council for approval.

Nomination of the Mayibuye Centre
Collection
The Mayibuye Centre Collection is made up of
documents, photographs and other objects that
depict the South African liberation struggle – both
inside and outside South Africa. The collection
was donated by the International Defence and
Aid Fund (IDAF) and activists who were involved
in the struggle, nationally and internationally.
After several engagements with stakeholders
such as the Vice-Chancellor and representatives
of the University of the Western Cape (UWC), the
Robben Island Museum (RIM), and the Mayibuye
Centre itself, a task team was established to
facilitate the nomination process. A meeting was
held with the ANC at Luthuli House to indicate the
intention to nominate and declare the Mayibuye
Centre Collection, and to establish their interest
in the collection. This was received well. The
nomination of the Mayibuye Centre Collection will
be finalised in the 2014/2015 financial year.
In addition to the above, the Environmental
Unit Manager of the RIM informed SAHRA that
he would be disposing of legacy waste like
scrap metal, rubble and used engine oils from
the island, and requested a site visit to ensure
that heritage objects are not disposed of in the
process. Six different ‘waste sites’ were visited
– some of these sites were determined to be
hazardous to the island, and posed a threat to
the environment. Some of the objects were also
identified as being on the asset register of the
Department of Public Works (DPW) and may,
therefore, not be alienated without discussions
with the latter. Others were objects identified
as being of heritage value, and some required
further research. Recommendations regarding
the assessment were submitted.
The South African National Defence Force
A meeting was held with the South African
National Defence Force (SANDF) to discuss the
donation of an Alouette helicopter to Zimbabwe
as well as the dismantling of the Avro Shackleton
aircraft. At the meeting, SAHRA did a presentation
on the provisions of the NHRA that compels the
SANDF and State institutions to consult the Entity
when they intend to destroy, export, dispose of or
alienate potential heritage objects. Subsequently,
an invitation was extended from SAHRA to the
Department of Defence: Integrated Project Team.
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Conservation management plan for the
Genadendal Mission Museum
The Genadendal Mission Museum (GMM) was
declared a national cultural treasure under the
National Monuments Act as a cultural treasure that
depicts household and other objects associated
with the mission station. In terms of the NHRA, all
previously declared moveable national monuments
and cultural treasures are specifically declared
heritage objects or collections. Since declared
collections must be managed with the aid of a
CMP, SAHRA is collaborating with the Western Cape
Museum Services regarding the terms of reference
for the CMP. The process of drafting the CMP will be
finalised in the 2014/2015 financial year.
Conservation management plan for
‘Blackie’
‘Blackie’ is the first steam locomotive that arrived
in South Africa in 1859, and although not the first
to operate, it is the oldest surviving locomotive in
the country. It was declared a national monument
under the National Monuments Act in 1969, but
in terms of the NHRA it is a specifically declared
heritage object. It was on display in the Cape
Town Station until 2010, then relocated due to
renovations for the Soccer World Cup. There have
since been engagements with the Passenger Rail
Agency of South Africa (PRASA) regarding its
return to the station. SAHRA has engaged PRASA
regarding the intention to draft the CMP and the
Terms of Reference (TOR), and the process will be
finalised in the 2014/15 financial year.
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MOU with Customs
Entering an MOU with SARS is a strategic
initiative towards co-operative governance to
ensure that Customs officials fulfil their role in
regulating the movement of heritage objects that
are coming into as well as leaving South Africa,
as is prescribed in the NHRA (No. 25 of 1999).
SAHRA and SARS are in the process of finalising the
prohibited and restricted list that informs the public
of the heritage objects described on the gazetted
list of types of objects that may not be exported
without a permit from SAHRA. The list of types of
heritage objects has been adapted in order to meet
with Customs’ requirements, and are included in
the prohibited and restricted list. Definitions of
terms, such as ‘ethnographic’ and ‘geology’, have
been debated and it was agreed to exclude the
term ‘geology’ until further discussions.
As requested by Customs, an agreement is to be
signed between SAHRA and SARS and not with
Customs. There has also been noted progress
regarding the co-operative governance role of SARS
in regulating the movement of heritage objects.
MOU with the South African Police Service
There has been engagement between SAHRA
and SAPS to enter into an MOU regarding the
management of firearms that are intended
for destruction and export, which evolved into
including heritage-related crime. Standard
operating procedures that clearly stipulate the
roles and responsibilities of both SAHRA and
SAPS were also drafted and are in operation.

ASSESSMENT OF FIREARMS 2013/2014
Since the firearms guidelines have been drafted, the co-ordination of the assessment has improved and
there has been an increase in the assessment of firearms based on the firearms guidelines:
PROVINCE

REASON FOR
ASSESSMENT

DATE

EXPERT
EXAMINER

TOTAL
FIREARMS
ASSESSED

TOTAL
IDENTIFIED
AS BEING OF
HERITAGE
VALUE

Western Cape

Destruction

20.06.2013

Stephan Fourie

1 100

0

Destruction

20.06.2013

Stephan Fourie

1 174

0

Destruction

15.04.2013

John Keene

4 000

8

Destruction

09.07.2013

John Keene

1 500

5

Destruction

15–18.11.2013

Carvel Webb

5 000

Postponed to
January 2014

Destruction

29–31.01.2014

Carvel Webb,
Dirk Bouwer,
Andrie Meyer and
Elmarie Cronje

5 363

0

Extension of
assessment

29 and
31.01.2014; 3
and 7.02.2014

Carvel Webb,
Dirk Bouwer,
Andrie Meyer and
Elmarie Cronje

5 363

113

Gauteng

Northern Cape

Destruction

11.06.2013

Kobus de Villiers

850

10

Deactivation

11.06.2013

Kobus de Villiers

2

2

KZN

Destruction

19−24.06.2013

Peter G. Maunder

17 000

12

Limpopo

Destruction

05.07.2013

M.C. Heunis

816

65

Destruction

13.02.2014

Charles Bressler
and Paul Eksteen

599

2

Destruction

05.07.2013

Tony Lombard and
Rolf Angelkbauer

1 000

29

Eastern Cape
North West

Mpumalanga

Free State

Destruction

04.07.2013

G.G.J. Black

1 035

7

Destruction

29.01.2014

George Black and
Riaan Smith

690

Awaiting report

Destruction

01−09.07.2013

N. Brand and Mike
Hickey

5 600

129

Destruction

17.02.2014

N. Brand, Andrie
Meyer and Mike
Hickey

5 000

Not completed
due to challenges

Extension of
assessment

26 and
27.02.2014

N. Brand, Andrie
Meyer and Mike
Hickey

5 000

Not completed
due to challenges

Destruction

01−09.07.2013

M.C. Heunis and
Shaun Cronje

816

65

Destruction

10.02.2010

M.C. Heunis

1 276

Awaiting report
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Firearms guidelines
SAHRA, in consultation with both SAPS and
the National Arms and Armaments Collectors
Association (NAACSA), drafted firearms guidelines
that set out the management of the firearms with
heritage value amongst the three Entitys. The list
of firearms on page 39 was assessed according to
these guidelines. SAHRA addressed the NAACSA
conference on 8 November 2013 regarding the
firearms guidelines, which resulted into further
collaboration and more input provided. SAHRA
expresses its appreciation to the Chairman of the
NAACSA and members for availing their time free
of charge to assess firearms of heritage value
when appointed to do so. The firearms guidelines
are currently on the Council’s agenda.
SAHRA has collaborated with SAPS and the
NAACSA to discuss the challenges concerning the
assessment of firearms, the operational plans,
and firearms guidelines. These engagements
were historic, as it was the first time that
these three Entitys held a meeting together –
surely an indication of the progress that has
been made over the years in strengthening
strategic partnerships and collaboration with
key stakeholders. Subsequently, SAHRA and
SAPS held a meeting to discuss, amongst other
matters, signing of the MOU. It was agreed upon
to intensify engagements and to sign the MOU
as soon as possible.
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Heritage Agreement between SAHRA,
SANParks and the University of Pretoria
There has been a great deal of discussion
around the draft Heritage Agreement (HA)
and the document underwent many rounds of
amendments. There was also engagement with
both the University of Pretoria (UP) and South
African National Parks (SANParks) regarding the
draft HA. The purpose of the HA is to stipulate roles
and responsibilities concerning the management
and conservation of the Mapungubwe specifically
declared collection, currently housed at the UP.
The outcome of engagements with SANParks
and UP was an agreement to set up a task
team (comprising of SAHRA, SANParks and UP
members), as envisaged in the draft HA, in order
to drive the finalisation thereof.
Processing permit applications
During the financial year under review, the HOU
received and processed a total of 38 permit
applications, as reflected in the table on page
41. Details are accessible on SAHRIS. There has
been an increase in permit applications during
this financial year in comparison to the 24 permit
applications received and processed during the
previous one. However, until such time that
Customs fulfil their role as heritage inspectors,
heritage objects may, unfortunately, still be
exported illegally and illicit trafficking could go
undetected.

Processing permit applications
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

TYPE OF
PERMIT

DECISION

1.
2.

‘Talbot’ 1914 Motor Car Export

Temporary

Approved

‘The Malay Bride’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Declined

3.

‘The Malay Bride’ by Irma Stern

Temporary

Approved

4.

Four Tsonga Headrests

Permanent

Declined

5.

‘Portrait of a young girl’ by Maggie Laubser

Permanent

Approved

6.

‘Marone, Eastern Transvaal’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

7.

‘Karoo Landscape’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

8.

‘Malay girl with Fruit’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

9.

‘Somershuis/Summerhouse’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

10.

‘The pyramids’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

11.

‘The Skapu Player’ by Anton van Wouw

Permanent

Approved

12.

‘The Laughing Basuto’ by Anton van Wouw

Permanent

Approved

13.

‘Portrait of a young African lady’ by Alfred Neville Lewis

Permanent

Approved

14.

‘Journey’s End’ by Vladimir Tretchikoff

Permanent

Approved

15.

‘An Arab Couple with a Child’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

16.

‘Portrait of a Man in Orange Headdress’ by Pieter Willem Frederick Wenning

Permanent

Approved

17.

‘Four Spanish ladies’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

18.

‘Mother and Child’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

19.

‘Malay Quarter’ by Pieter Willem Frederick Wenning

Permanent

Approved

20.

‘The Albion Dogcart’

Permanent

Declined
(appeal upheld)

21.

Late 18th Century Anglo-Indian Engraved Ivory Cabinet

Permanent

Approved

22.

‘Huts, Two Figures carrying Calabashes and a Cow’ by Maggie Laubser

Permanent

Approved

23.

‘Landscape’ by Maggie Laubser

Permanent

Approved

24.

‘Bezuidenhout’s farm, Bezuidenhout Valley’ by Frans David Oerder

Permanent

Declined

25.

‘Zulu Maiden’ by Vladimir Tretchikoff

Permanent

Approved

26.

‘Still life with Persian Vase and Flowers’ by Alexis Preller

Permanent

Approved

27.

‘Cloud study’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

28.

‘District Six, Cape Town’ by Gregoire Johannes Boonzaier

Permanent

Approved

29.

‘Istanbul’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

30.

‘Fishing Boats, Amalfi’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

31.

‘Still life with Golden-Rod Flowers’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

32.

‘Wilde Vye Boom, Sweetwaters, Louis Trichardt’ by Jacob Hendrik Pierneef

Permanent

Approved

33.

‘Zanzibar Woman’ by Irma Stern

Permanent

Approved

34.

‘The Wicker Chair’ by Freida Lock

Permanent

Approved

35.

‘Pnina Salzman and the Cape Town Orchestra’ by Alfred Neville Lewis

Permanent

Approved

36.

‘Mrs Wilmot of Carolina’ by Ruth Everard Haden

Permanent

Approved

37.

‘The Peach Pickers’ by Alfred Neville Lewis

Permanent

Approved

38.

Mascot of the 4th South African Infantry Regiment (SA Scottish), who
served in World War I

Temporary

Pending

Appeal: ‘Albion Dogcart’
In 2012, the owner of the ‘Albion Dogcart’ applied
for a permit to permanently export the piece. The
permit was refused. In 2013, the owner, however,
applied for a temporary export permit which was
granted under certain conditions, one of which
was that the car must be returned by December
2013. During this time, the applicant applied for a
permanent export permit which was refused. The

applicant then appealed against the decision in
November 2013. The Appeal Committee dismissed
the appeal and upheld the decision of the Permit
Committee, which was to deny the applicant a
permanent export permit. The applicant was
requested to return the car. It was the first time in
SAHRA’s history that an applicant did not comply
with the conditions under which a temporary export
permit was issued. The matter is currently being
looked into.
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Art panel meetings
Two art panel meetings were held – one on 23 August
2013 and another meeting on 7 February 2014 –
where the artworks intended for export to annual
South African art sales, organised by Bonham’s in
London and held twice a year, were discussed and
recommendations made to the Permit Committee.
SAHRA expresses its appreciation to all those who
made their time available to attend these Art Panel
meetings, as well as those who advised SAHRA
on the significance of heritage objects outside of
meetings – all of whom did so free of charge.
Stolen objects and illicit trafficking
A meeting was held with Helene Vollgraaff,
Chairperson of the International Council of
Museums (ICOM), to discuss registering SAHRA as
part of the ICOM observatory on illicit trafficking
on the ICOM website. This was done and in
consultation with the Inventory Unit, SAHRIS was
enabled to record thefts of heritage objects.

outside South Africa. A great amount of research
has been done to draft the regulations, which
included looking for benchmarks in Australia and
Canada. In addition, the dealers and auction
houses were initially unresponsive, and by the
time they responded the 2013/2014 financial
year was almost over.
Meetings were held with the South African
Institute of Auction Houses (SIA) on 12 March
and with the South African Dealers Association
(SAADA) on 18 March 2014. It was agreed upon
that the draft regulation would be discussed
further and taken forward in the new financial
year.

 Anglo-Zulu War heritage objects on sale in
London.

The plans to establish the Heritage Objects Permit
Committee (HOPComm) were placed on hold, as
Council recommended a review of the need and
constitution of the proposed committee. SAHRA’s
profile was raised during a presentation made at
the South African Museums Association (SAMA)
conference held in October. SAHRA expresses
its appreciation to all the expert advisors,
conservation bodies, and art panel who advised
us regarding the significance of heritage objects
forming part of the national estate.

 Medals, decorations, citations, log books and
other military objects associated with the late
Lieutenant General R.H.D. Rogers.

SUB-PROGRAMME: BUILT
ENVIRONMENT

Reports concerning theft of heritage objects were
received as follow:

 Objects stolen in the East London Museum.
 The silver palm tree ornament stolen from the
Bredasdorp Museum.
Since the National Forum on Law against Heritage
Related Crime (NALEH) no longer exists, there
is a gap in the co-ordination of heritage-related
crime. There are no national statistics available
regarding heritage-related crimes, although
such crimes are reported to SAPS. SAHRA is in
the process of dealing with this issue with the
help of SAPS. In the interim, whenever SAHRA is
informed of heritage-related crime, the affected
museum will be advised on the correct procedures
to follow in order to report the crime, as well as
the requirements for a successful investigation,
nationally and internationally.
Regulations for the registration of dealers
in heritage objects
The NHRA (Section 32) makes provision for
SAHRA to make a regulation for dealers in order
to control the movement of heritage objects
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Conservation in heritage resources
management
The Built Environment Unit (BEU) of the
2013/2014 financial year consisted of five
staff members, and performed a number of
functions as a construct of the national heritage
resources authority, SAHRA. The key role of the
Unit is being the advisory body to the Heritage
Resources Management (HRM) sub-committee
with regard to matters of the built environment,
cultural landscapes and cultural sites as heritage
significant spaces.
The Unit also plays a role as advisory and
administrative arm across all units, where its inputs
are required on matters related to applications for
sites under their management in respect of built
fabric, materiality, as well as sites where there
are instances of the overlap of significances. In
addition to this, its role has been that of secretariat
and coordinator of the Built Environment and
Landscape Permit Committee (BELCOM), a
committee constructed and appointed by the

SAHRA Council. The Unit received, prepared and
presented submissions that are related to Grade
I sites, provisionally protected as well as national
heritage sites, and facilitated permitting as well as
commented as per discussion and decisions passed
at the committee level (BELCOM). Furthermore,
the Unit plays an advisory role with regard to

Province

built environment and cultural landscape-related
applications, queries and research to the broader
South African heritage landscape, particularly
around Section 8 (Section 34 and 38 within Grade
I sites) of the NHRA (Act No. 25 of 1999).
The following table illustrates the applications
processed during 2013−2014.

Developmental Control (Section 8, 27, 29,
34 and 38)

RoD/

HIA/HS

National and Grade I Sites

Permit/Comments/
Letters Issued

CMP/ICMP/NID/
Reports

Bo-Kaap

8(C)

2

Constantia-Tokai

7(M)

CPOA

3(L)

Kassiesbaai, Arniston

3(L)

Dollas Downs

2(C)

World Heritage Site (WHS) – Robben Island

Western Cape

Blue Stone Quarry

2(C)

Proposal for sports event

1 (C)

SAHRIS – Requirements for applications

1 (Workshop)

Maintenance plan for diesel fuel

4 (M)

Madiba House, Drakenstein Correctional Services
(formally Victor Verster prison)

3 (Decisions)

Parliament of South Africa

1 (Site meeting) 1 (L)

Test pit (services)

4 (Site visits and
meetings)

Nelson Mandela Bust Advisory Site visit and
meetings (Secretary to Parliament)
Table Mountain National Park

1 (ICMP) in process
1 (MOU) DCS - DPW
- SAHRA

Meetings

Advice NCOP
(2)C

HWC:
Institutional liasing – Bo-Kaap
Langa Grading and Declaration
City of Cape Town

Free State

Eastern Cape

Langa mapping

(4) Workshops

District Six mapping

(1)

Weslyan School

1(C)

Mapikela House

1(C)

O.R. Tambo, Nkantolo

1 (P)

HIA

O.R. Tambo, Khananda

1 (P)

HIA

Precinct upgrade: Drostdy Hotel, Graaff-Reinet
North West

Taung Skull heritage site

Kzn

None to be reported

Northern Cape

Robert Sobukwe House

Gauteng

1(C)
1 (P)
3 (P)
1(E)

Union Buildings:
Nelson Mandela statue

Limpopo

None to be reported

Mpumalanga

None to be reported
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Identification and Declaration
The following projects have been identified,
declarations affected, or are currently in the last
phases of the declaration process:

migrant labour routes and sites of significance.
A mapping exercise is underway to include these
and resolve areas of difficulty between the city,
SAHRA and Heritage Western Cape.

The Union Buildings

Mapikela House

The BEU did exceptionally well during the financial
year under review, declaring a key heritage
resource, the Union Buildings, with the declaration
of the Parliament of South Africa in the final stages.
SAHRA played a significant role in meeting with
the steering committee in the presidency, who is
responsible for the centenary celebrations of the
Union Buildings, as well as played a significant role
in the installation of the Nelson Mandela statue.
In this regard, SAHRA contributed in the design
development, location and the installation of the
Nelson Mandela statue at the Union Buildings.

Public participation and discussions on the site
as a national heritage site have been completed,
and letter distribution to interested and affected
parties is currently underway.

The Union Buildings were declared a national heritage
site in December 2013. A plaque was prepared
for the unveiling at the centenary celebrations of
the Union Buildings, celebrating its declaration as
national heritage site. His Excellency, President
Jacob Zuma, the President of South Africa, unveiled
the plaque and statue during this event.

A series of sites and approvals have been
affected and completed during the preceding and
current financial year. A notice of intent has been
distributed to the representative family member.
Formal notification is to follow within the first
quarter of the 2014 financial year.

Parliament Buildings

A series of approvals have been affected and
completed during the preceding and current
financial year. A landscape development plan is
currently in process. A notice of intent has been
distributed to the representative family member.
Formal notification is to follow within the first
quarter of the next financial year, and SAHRA is
anticipating declaration by the second quarter of
2014.

The Parliament of South Africa was another
project which required attention in preparation
of the celebration of the fifth parliament of the
democratic South Africa. This project was brought
to a conclusion at the end of the financial year
by way of the distribution of Section 27 letters,
advice and comments with regard to the Nelson
Mandela bust, which is located in front of the
National Council of Provinces building, which was
to be unveiled in April 2014.
District Six
A series of meetings were held with the District Six
Museum, discussing the matter of progress with
regard to the declaration of District Six. In addition,
a number of discussions with the Parliamentary
Portfolio Committee for Arts and Culture led to
the resolution for the expedition of the mapping
and declaration of District Six. The matter will be
concluded by the second quarter of 2014.
Langa
SAHRA is in ongoing discussions with the City of
Cape Town regarding the core heritage area, the
Heritage Overlay Zone, and its relationship to the
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Wesleyan School
Public participation and discussions of the site
as a national heritage site have been completed.
Letter distribution to interested and affected
parties is currently underway.
O.R. Tambo, Nkantolo

O.R. Tambo, Nkantolo

Groot Constantia
A stakeholder’s meeting and consultation in
preparation of the declaration of Groot Constantia
as a national heritage site have been held with
the Chief Executive’s office and Chairperson of
the Board. The process will be concluded by the
second quarter of 2014.
Kassiesbaai (Arniston, Struisbaai
Municipality)
An agreement was reached for the declaration of
Kassiesbaai fishing village as a national heritage
site. Outstanding processes are the proposed
site development, urban design framework, and
the conservation management plan which are all
subject to agreement and final approval.

Madiba House and Drakenstein Correctional
Services (formally Victor Verster prison)

a scrutiny fee policy in respect of applications
and submissions.

Meetings and discussions were held around the
development of the integrated conservation
management plan and the introduction of the
road and developmental applications within the
immediate context of the Madiba House.

 SAHRA has a MOU with one PHRA, Heritage
Western Cape, in the previous financial year
– particularly around Grade I sites. It is
envisaged that more PHRAs will be taken on
board and MOUs signed if and when required.

Conferences and workshops

 The Langa Heritage Protection Overlay Zone
(HPOZ) is an initiative by the City of Cape
Town in which SAHRA participates to give
due recognition to sites of national heritage
significance within its urban core.

 On 19 August 2013, a presentation was done
by SAHRA at the Nelson Mandela Gateway
building to open a dialogue around the issues
of stakeholder management, SAHRIS (how
to manage applications using this system as
a portal), SAHRA’s Built Environment Unit
functions and processes.
 During March 2014, a meeting was held with the
Association of Professional Heritage Practitioners
(APHP) to discuss, amongst other matters, the
requirements regarding submissions.
Outreach, education and public participation
According to the Castle Management Act (No.
27 of 1993), SAHRA is mandated to have a
representative on the Castle Control Board. The
Entity, therefore, participated in projects at the
Castle of Good Hope relating to re-profiling its
role as a site of inclusive memory. The actions
included participating in meetings, the displaying
of architectural and conservation material in
conjunction with the MUCH Unit, and engaging
with other exhibitors to further market SAHRA. The
BEU also attended the Heritage Day celebrations
at the Castle of Good Hope – the first time a large
group of First People and Traditional Leadership
ever attended to share in this historical moment.
The BEU and MUCH Unit also put up an exhibition
during Freedom Day celebrations at the Castle.
SAHRA

has,

in

support

of

education

and

encouragement, also sponsored an annual prize at
the Cape Peninsula University of Technology. The
prizes were awarded to students who excelled in
Architectural Theory and History. Prizes were also
awarded to students who excelled in the subject
of Town Planning, particularly around matters of
environmental studies.
Policies and guidelines
 The BEU, in consultation with other Units
within SAHRA, is setting up a framework for

 SAHRA provided input in respect of the Robben
Island Framework Agreement with Mcelengeni
Mzanzi Africa on the control of numbers and
sports-related tourism to the island. The inputs
were on tourism management – relative to the
significance of the island as a national and a
world heritage site, and the development of
its profile.

SUB-PROGRAMME: NATIONAL
INVENTORY
The National Inventory Unit (NIU) is tasked with
compiling and maintaining the inventory of the
national estate, in terms of Section 39 of the NHRA
(No. 25 of 1999). This inventory must be in the
form of a database of information on heritage
resources and the South African Heritage Resources
Information System, SAHRIS, fulfils this function.
SAHRIS also serves to manage the processing of
development and mining applications, in terms
of Section 38 of the NHRA, permit applications in
terms of Sections 27, 32, 34, 35 and 36, and also
functions as a tool for collections management.
The NIU, with its limited staff compliment,
has undertaken digitising the SAHRA registry,
concluding the development phase of SAHRIS.
Provincial Heritage Resources Authorities
(PHRAs)
One of the great successes achieved in 2014,
was the adoption of SAHRIS by Amafa, KwaZuluNatal’s PHRA, for its case processing. This
resulted in an increased volume of traffic on the
website, together with a growing number of new
users registering on the site. Amafa staff received
extensive and ongoing training on SAHRIS and
obtained sufficient knowledge of the system to be
able to handle queries from the public.
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The close collaboration with Amafa assisted
SAHRA in developing the wizard-driven application
process which was released in October 2013.
This process streamlines the creation of new
applications by guiding the applicant through
the necessary steps. Other PHRAs that received
training on SAHRIS include those of Gauteng, the
Eastern Cape, and the staff and newly inducted
council of the Northern Cape’s PHRA.
Currently, SAHRIS provides live feeds of cases
under assessment to the Northern Cape’s PHRA
website and heritage portal, ensuring that the work
done by the HRM Unit at SAHRA is in the public eye.

as well as the Vernacular Architecture Society. A
presentation on SAHRIS was undertaken with SAPS
to discuss the identification of firearms of heritage
significance. Integration and collaborations on
SAHRIS have been proposed with the Geological
Society of South Africa, Africa Media Online,
BAS Land Audit, and the Graaff-Reinet Historical
Society. The Five Hundred Year Archive (FYA)
project, based at UCT, has also expressed interest
in using SAHRIS as a digital repository.

A service level agreement was drawn up in April
2013 to regulate support and maintenance of
SAHRIS, which was subsequently approved by
the SAHRA Asset Committee and uploaded to
SAHRIS. Engagements with Heritage Western
Cape, to discuss the alignment of their proposed
database with SAHRIS, are currently ongoing.

SAHRIS was represented at an international
conference on the Drupal system that took place
in Oregon, USA, and also at the Association of
Southern African Professional Archaeologists
(ASAPA) conference held in Gaborone, Botswana.
The debate focused mainly on the mandatory site
recording process that is proposed for heritage
impact assessment work. Finally, further exposure
was ensured by the publication of articles on
SAHRIS in SAA’s in-flight magazine, Indwe, The
Explore and the Pan African Review publications.

SAHRIS training for external stakeholders

Co-operative government initiatives

SAHRIS training workshops were held for the
Gauteng Institute for Architects, CATHSSETA rock
art training programme, Hout Bay Heritage Trust,

Discussions held with the SPIsys, a spatial
information system of the Department of Rural
Development and Land Reform in the Northern

Photo: Mapped sites on SAHRIS – Blaauboschkraal Stone Ruins, Mpumalanga, and Winburg
Boer War Military Cemetery, Free State
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Cape and Free State, revealed that most of the
declared sites in these two provinces have been
mapped. This information was imported into
SAHRIS and assisted SAHRA in mapping the
country’s declared heritage sites. This information,
together with the KZN site co-ordinates supplied
by Amafa, has assisted SAHRA in accurately
mapping nearly 1 500 national and provincial
heritage sites across the country, with only the
Western Cape sites currently outstanding. This
has also improved the quality and relevance of
the information retained by SAHRA pertaining to
the national estate.
An extensive training workshop held for the
Department of Mineral Resources in Kimberley has
contributed to the efficient processing of mining
applications for the Northern Cape. Whereas
the Department of Mineral Resources (DMR)
previously sent bulk batches of environmental
management plans to SAHRA for processing,
these applications are now loaded online as and
when they are submitted to the DMR, resulting in
improved applications responses by SAHRA.
SAHRA is represented in the quarterly Expert
Reference Group (ERG) meetings for the special
environmental assessment areas, which are
coordinated by the Department of Environmental
Affairs (DEA) in collaboration with the Council for
Scientific and Industrial Research as a means of
streamlining the application process for renewable
energy projects. The promotion of GIS functionality
of SAHRIS on a multi-disciplinary collaborative
platform has ensured that heritage remains
subject to special investigation in instances where
other impact studies might be waived.
SAHRIS also provides a tool for auditing
heritage assets in state ownership, which is
now a requirement by the National Treasury in
compliance with GRAP 103 accounting standards,
and mandated by Section 9 of the NHRA. A
presentation on SAHRIS and its GRAP 103
application was made to the DAC at the CFO’s
Forum. At this Forum it was proposed that explicit
endorsement from the Minister for Arts and Culture
of SAHRIS as the official repository for national
museums’ digitised collections, should be sought.
Museum workshops and collections
management
Museum workshops have been successful in
introducing museum professionals to the various

management functions offered via SAHRIS. The first
museum workshop took place at Ditsong in August,
followed by another workshop held at SAHRA’s
head office. The final presentation for the financial
year took place at the South African Museums
Association Conference in Kimberley. As a result
of the interactions with museum professionals,
SAHRA is investigating gaining accreditation with
an international collections management standard,
SPECTRUM, in addition to ensuring explicit
endorsement for SAHRIS as the national collections
management system from the DAC.
National audit project
The national audit project aims to assist national
museums and other institutions with holdings of
heritage objects through the digitisation of their
collections. This work ensures the longevity of the
collections in digital record, as well as increases
the audience which the museums can reach.
During the year under review, the NIU concluded
the audit at the Performing Arts Council of the
Free State (PACOFS) which was initiated in the
prior year. This audit ensured the digitisation of
the collection of nearly 50 objects, which had
no electronic records at all and was, therefore,
considered a highly vulnerable collection. The
photographs of the objects inventorised are due to
be linked to the records in the next financial year.
The KwaZulu Cultural Museum, which contains
one of the most comprehensive collections of
heritage objects related to the past people of
KwaZulu-Natal, had its records migrated on
SAHRIS. This entailed capturing the existing 5
591 records of the museum, aligning them with
the requisite fields for import into SAHRIS. The
linking of the photos has commenced.
Project plans have been drafted for two audits
for the financial year 2014/15, and the MOUs
have been submitted to the relevant parties for
signing. These institutions are the Johannesburg
Art Gallery, which has a collection of over 2 000
artworks that will be digitised, and the Museum
van de Caab at Solms-Delta Wine Estate, which
contains a collection of archaeological and
cultural-historical artefacts.
The Johannesburg Art Gallery is a state institution
and will thus receive full funding for the project
through the DAC. Museum van de Caab, on
the other hand, is a private repository and will
fund its own audit. The McGregor Museum in
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Kimberley, which has a vast collection of highly
significant heritage objects related to the history
and pre-history of the Northern Cape, has also
been engaged by the NIU manager in preparation
for conducting a full audit of its collection in the
new financial year.
Fossil sensitivity map
Following discussions with the Palaeontological
Society of South Africa, the Geological Society
of South Africa and the Council for Geosciences
(CGS), SAHRA was able to obtain a version of the
CGS 1:250 000 geological map of South Africa.
SAHRA captured and annotated the relevant
geological layers that can contain sensitive fossils,
and the map was released via SAHRIS. This map,
which allows the general public and heritage
professionals to ascertain the fossil sensitivity of
a specific area, is a world first.

Registry digitisation
At the beginning of the 2013 financial year, the
digitisation of the registry files was undertaken
and a total of 7 941 files were scanned onto
the system. Old documentation related to the
National Monuments Council has been scanned,
and 632 files and a total of 8 573 registry
volumes have been scanned to SAHRIS to date.
The next phase of the digitisation project will
entail the extraction of the information in all the
files onto SAHRIS.
SAHRIS statistics
At the end of the 2013/14 financial year there
were 2 397 registered users on SAHRIS. To date
a total of 24 966 sites have been recorded on
SAHRIS, and 12 651 objects captured on the
system. SAHRA and the PHRAs have processed
4 389 cases online, and according to the web
traffic rating site, www.alexa.com, SAHRIS

Fossil sensitivity map produced in collaboration with CGS
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attained its highest ranking in terms of amount of
traffic on the website in South Africa, ranking the
8 499th most visited website in the country. It
also attained its highest international ranking yet
of 845 004.
To facilitate alignment of HRM operations and
integration into SAHRIS, the NIU was moved
from Corporate Services to HRM. This aligns
the Unit more closely with the functions of
SAHRA’s mandated business and the activities
that stimulate the growth and expansion of the
national estate database.
Plans for the NIU for the coming financial year
include the establishment of a research project,
the Cape mapping project, that will serve to
expand the content of the database of the
national estate by creating a new Geographical
Information System (GIS) layer on SAHRIS,
depicting the historic farm boundaries and

settlements of areas of the Northern, Western
and Eastern Cape.
Further training will be rolled out to the PHRAs,
with Gauteng and North West’s PHRAs already
earmarked for training workshops. The Free State
DMR will also receive training, and it is expected
that the DMR offices in each province will be visited.
The NIU is also providing training to the various
provincial institutes for architects, exposing them
to SAHRIS in anticipation of the PHRAs in those
provinces actively taking up the system.
A presentation will be made to the Pan-African
Archaeological Congress and, subsequently, an
abstract for presentation at the South African
Museums Association Conference. Another
exciting prospect for SAHRA is further streamlining
the application wizard and improving on the
means that SAHRIS provides to track and report
on heritage crimes.

Monthly page views for the 2013/2014 financial year
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PART C
Governance

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Mr F. Makhanya

Dr N. Ndlovu

Mr M. Makeka

Dr C. Twala

Ms R. Gani

Mr D. Lithole

Mr J. Sindane

Dr G. Houston

Adv T. Mogatusi

Chairperson

Dr W. Ndlala

Ms J. Burgess

Mr P. Mokwena

Ms L. Malgas

Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary

1. INTRODUCTION
Corporate governance embodies processes and
systems by which public entities are directed,
controlled and held to account. In addition to
legislative requirements based on a public entity’s
enabling legislation, as well as the Companies
Act, corporate governance with regard to public
entities is applied through the precepts of the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run
in tandem with the principles contained in the
King’s Report on Corporate Governance.
Parliament, the Executive, and the Accounting
Authority of the public entity, are all responsible
for corporate governance.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
The Portfolio Committee meetings were held on
the following days:
15 October 2013
22 October 2013
4 February 2014

3. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
Responsibilities and duties of the Council
The primary role of the Council is to provide
leadership to the Executive of an entity in
discharging the responsibilities assigned to it
under its establishment statute, the DAC policies,
other relevant legislation, and approved codes
of good practice in governance and business

behaviour. Council members of SAHRA are valued
as professionals on the basis of their individual
expertise, and they are not to represent the
sole interest of their companies or institutions.
The functions below should be read with the
Governance Manual developed by the DAC.
Functions of the Council
Functions as outlined in Section 14 of the NHRA
are to
 manage the affairs of SAHRA in line with the
Act establishing the Entity, the PFMA, the DAC
priorities, Medium Term Strategic Framework
(MTSF), Medium Term Expenditure Framework
(MTEF), and other relevant strategies and
policies;
 set up a broad strategy for the Entity to meet
its objectives and performance targets;
 ensure proper preparation and approve strategic,
annual performance plans, compliance reports,
key procedures and policies;
 approve decisions related to strategic
initiatives such as commercial ventures,
significant acquisitions, internal restructures
and disposals; and
 approve the annual budget of the Entity.
Board Charter
The Council Charter was accordingly approved by
Council in May 2013. The incoming Council, that
was inducted in August 2013, was provided with
the approved Charter.
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Composition of the Council with term ended 30 July 2013
Designation
(in terms of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Date
appointed

Date of the
end of the
term resigned

Area of
expertise

Other committees
(e.g. Audit
Committee)

Number of
meetings
attended

Chairperson

14 May 2010

July 2013

Politics

-

20

Deputy Chairperson

1 Aug 2010

July 2013

Service
Delivery

HRM Sub-Committee,
Asset & IT Gov SubCommittee

22

Mr Cameron
Dokoda

Member

14 May 2010

July 2013

HRM Sub-Committee

19

Dr Khononani
Khorrombi

Member

14 May 2010

July 2013

Water
Affairs

HRM Sub-Committee,
Audit Committee

23

Name
Prof. Somadoda
Fikeni
Ms Irene
Mafune

Dr Chitja Twala

Member

14 May 2010

July 2013

History

HRM Sub-Committee

16

Mr Moses
Makhweyane

Member

14 May 2010

July 2013

Legal

HR Sub-Committee

14

Ms Mmabatho
Ramagoshi

Acting CEO

1 November
2012

July 2013

Mr David
Nkaiseng

Member

14 May 2010

July 2013

Legal

Audit, HR SubCommittee

23

Adv. Ronee
Robinson

Member

14 May 2010

September
2012

Legal

Asset & It SubCommittee

3

Ms Laura
Robinson

Member

14 May 2010

14 September
2012

Heritage

Audit Committee,
HRM Sub-Committee

2

Ms Nothemba
Mlonzi

Member

14 May 2010

13 September
2012

Legal

-

2

23

Present SAHRA Council & Sub-Committees
Designation
(in terms of
the Public
Entity Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Date of the
end of the
term resigned

Area of
expertise

Other committees
(e.g. Audit
Committee)

Number of
meetings
attended

Chairperson

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Architecture

-

15

Mr Jabulani
Sindane

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Management

Audit & Risk
Committee,
HR & REMCO

15

Dr William
Ndlala

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Education

HRM Committee

11

Dr Gregory
Houston

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Political
Scientist

HRM, IT & Asset
Committee

12

Dr Chitja Twala

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

History &
Heritage

HRM Committee,
HR & REMCO

20

Dr Ndukuyakhe
Ndlovu

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Archaeology

HRM Committee,
HR & REMCO

18

Ms Reyhana
Gani

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Chartered
Accountant

Audit & Risk
Committee & HR &
REMCO

14

Ms Jean
Burgess

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Living Heritage

HRM Committee & IT
& Assets

10

Mr Mokena
Makeka

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Architecture

HRM Committee & IT
& Assets Committee

9

Mr Donald
Lithole

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Heritage

HRM Committee

12

Adv. Tebogo
Mogatusi

Council
Member

1 August 2013

31 July 2016

Legal

HRM Committee

1

Name

Mr Fanie
Makhanya
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Committees of Council
Names of the
Committees
Audit & Risk Committee

HRM Committee

HR & REMCO Committee

IT & Asset Committee

Names of the members

Numbers of
meetings held

Number of
members

Number of
meetings attended

Ms Reyhana Gani (Chairperson)

3

5

3

Ms Ruth Benjamin-Swales

3

5

3

Adv. Dave Mitchell

3

5

3

Mr Jabulani Sindane

3

5

1

Ms Thembeka Semane

3

5

3

Dr Ndukuyakhe Ndlovu (Chairperson)

3

7

3

Dr William Ndlala

3

7

3

Dr Gregory Houston

3

7

3

Mr Donald Lithole

3

7

1

Mr Mokena Makeka

3

7

1

Ms Jean Burgess

3

7

2

Dr Chitja Twala

3

7

2

Dr Chitja Twala (Chairperson)

8

4

8

Dr Ndukuyakhe Ndlovu

8

4

6

Mr Jabulane Sindane

8

4

4

Ms Reyhana Gani

8

4

5

Mr Mokena Makeka (Chairperson)

1

4

1

Ms Jean Burgess

1

4

1

Dr Gregory Houston

1

4

1

Mr Peter Hill

1

4

1

Remuneration of council members
 Members are remunerated per meeting attended.
 Members who are employed by the State are not remunerated.
 Costs for travelling, accommodation and meals are paid to members who attend meetings.
 The Chairperson and Chairperson of each sub-committee receive a cell phone allowance.
Total expenses 2013/2014 for Council remuneration
Expense

Amount (R)

Accommodation and meals

188 839

Airfares and bus tickets

839 008

Catering
Telephone
Total
Name of council member

87 254
54 480
1 169 581
Total remuneration received (R)

Dokoda, C.M.

24 095

Fikeni, S. (Prof.)

20 768

Makhweyane, M.

19 757

Nkaiseng, D.S.

17 660

Robinson, L. (resigned October 2012)

-

Twala, C. (Dr)

67 462

Burgess, J.P.

24 376

Houston, G. (Dr)

31 688

Makeka, M.

20 366

Makhanya, F.

59 061

Ndlala, M.W. (Dr)

29 396

Ndlovu, N. (Dr)

50 394

Mogatusi, A.T. (Adv.)

2 510

Hill, P.

2 169

Gani, R.
Total

9 126
378 828
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT
SAHRA did a thorough analysis of its risks and operational risk registers as well as the strategic risk
registers which are compiled and reviewed quarterly by the established Risk Management Committee.
A risk framework and policy were developed accordingly.
Risk management strategies which were put in place to identify risks and manage these risks, include
the following:
 Facilitating departmental risk workshops.
 Developing departmental risk registers.
 Consolidating these into an operational Entity risk register.
 Developing strategic risk registers and consolidating it into Entity risk registers.
 Developing a Committee Terms of Reference for the Risk Management Committee.
 Amending/updating the framework in order to reflect the current assessment methodology.
Audit plans were developed and the following audit reviews were undertaken to address the risks
identified:
 Audit plans.
 Internal audits.
 Risk-based audit plan from the 2012/2013 operational risk register.
 Finance – asset management.
 IT review.
 Human Resources.
 Facilities management.
 ODP.
 Supply chain management.
 Travel and subsistence.

5. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The functions of the internal audit in SAHRA are outsourced. The services of the contracted company were
not active for the greater part of the year under review due to procurement processes that were under
investigation. Subsequently, the services were re-instated in February 2013 after which they commenced
with the risk management of the entire Entity.

6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members.
Name

Qualifications

Internal
or
external

Date appointed

Date
resigned

Number of
meetings
attended

Ms R. Gani

Chartered Accountant

External

24 August 2013

-

3

Adv. D.J. Mitchell

Chartered Accountant & Advocate

External

1 December 2011

-

9

Ms R. Benjamin-Swales

Chartered Accountant

External

1 February 2013

-

6

Mr J. Sindane

Master’s Degree in African Politics
& Diploma in Management
Advanced Programme

External

24 August 2013

-

1

Ms T. Semane

PGDBA & BCom Accounting

External

18 October 2013

-

3

Mr D. Nkaiseng

LLB & LLM

External

1 December 2011

31 July 2013

5

Dr K. Khorommbi

Doctorate in Adventure Tourism

External

1 February 2013

31 July 2013

3
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7. C
 OMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
During the year under review, the following
financial management policies were approved by
Council:
 Supply Chain Management Policy (SCM) and
Delegations
 Financial Management Policy
 Debtors Management
The SCM and Financial Management policies
were undertaken with a workshop with all staff
members during the fourth quarter of the financial
year. The SCM Unit was capacitated to enable
improved segregation of duties and compliance
with the relevant regulations and policies. The
Entity also used the developed Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) compliance matrix to
assess compliance and report to the DAC.
Furthermore, processes were put in place to
ensure that all reconciliations and journals are
reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer. The SCM
checklists were also improved and enforced to

forum on all issues facing the Entity, including
those which could have potential financial
misconduct.
Although there are no cases reported at this stage,
a forensic investigation will take place during the
new financial year to focus on the areas identified
by management as having possible fraudulent
incidences.

9. M
 INIMISING CONFLICT OF
INTEREST
The Entity has implemented a process where
new managers complete a conflict of interest
form at the point of signing their employment
contracts. A related party disclosure form was
also implemented for the first time in April 2013.
As part of improving the compliance environment
and internal controls, managers will from
now on be directed to complete the conflict of
interest forms annually. The SCM processes also
ensure that all members of the bid committees
declare their interest during the evaluation and
adjudication of bids.

enable compliance.
The Entity developed a portal of all policies to
enable improved monitoring and updating. This
portal will be reviewed quarterly by the executive
managers to enable periodic reassessment and
management.

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The fraud prevention plan was approved in
November 2011 and a workshop with staff was
undertaken. This policy will be reviewed during
the new financial year 2014/15. The Entity has
been using the communication provided by the
DAC to reinforce communication of fraud on a
monthly basis. The ‘Blitz’ charts from the DAC are
designed in a manner that attracts attention and
send the relevant message to all staff. The charts
are pasted on the walls at the relevant points and
also sent via email to all staff.
There has been an implementation of a private
email to the CEO for reporting possible financial
misconduct and fraud cases. The CEO engaged
with all staff at the quarterly staff communication

10. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Code of Conduct is provided to all new
employees at the point of joining the Entity. All
employees are then required to commit that they
are aware of the policy by signing the Code. The
bid adjudication and evaluation committees are
also appointed in writing by the CEO and also
provided with the Code of Conduct.
The Code of Conduct will be workshopped with
the reviewed and approved Fraud Prevention
Policy during the new financial year.

11. H
 EALTH SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
During the period under review, the Entity
performed ongoing exercises for the sustained
health and safety of its employees, and there
were no reported incidents of health and safety
hazards in the workplace. The internal auditing of
the health and safety compliance contributed to
better risk management in this area.
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12. COMPANY SECRETARY

13. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

A Company Secretary must be appointed to attend
and minute all Council meetings. The Company
Secretary should have a detailed knowledge
of the established legislation of SAHRA and
other legislation and government policies that
affect the Entity. Apart from the administrative
responsibilities, the Company Secretary will also

SAHRA, as an Entity, annually embarks on
social responsibility programmes through its
employees. During the year under review, staff
members participated in a blood donation drive in
response to a national call due to the low levels
of blood at the blood bank. National Mandela
Day was also honoured, and SAHRA identified
a community-based child care centre in Langa
to be supported. Staff members assisted the
day-care centre by establishing a food garden,
painting and refurbishing the building, providing
food parcels, and by donating blankets to the 32
children being housed at the centre.

 facilitate professional development
programmes of the Council;
 advise the Council on implementation of
corporate governance programmes; and
 advise members on legal obligations of
members and of the public Entity.
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14. REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
We are pleased to present our report for the
South African Heritage Resources Agency for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014.
Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it
has complied with its responsibilities arising
from Section 51 (1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.1.
The Audit and Risk Committee also reports
that it has adopted appropriate formal terms
of reference as its Audit Committee Charter,
has regulated its affairs in compliance with this
charter and has discharged all its responsibilities
as contained therein.
The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit
work, which was based on the risk assessments
conducted in the public entity revealed certain
weaknesses, which were then raised with the
public entity.
The following internal audit work was completed
during the year under review:
 Corporate Services Facilities Management and
Operational Health and Safety
 Supplier Chain Management
 Pre-determined objectives
 Human Resources Administration and Payroll
 Maritime Vehicle Usage (Ad hoc request)
 Property management in Paarl, Dal Josafat
(Ad hoc request)
 South African Heritage Resources Information
System Open Source Software Review (ad hoc
request)
 South African Resources Agency Information
and Communications Technology review

The areas of concern around inadequate internal
controls and proper reviews were brought to
the attention of management with clear risk
identification and recommendations.
In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report
The public entity has complied with the Treasury
Regulation 29.3.1 by submitting quarterly
performance reports to the executive authority.
Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed and
discussed the audited annual financial statements
prepared by the public entity and which is included
in this Annual Report with management, the
Auditor General and Council. We have satisfied
ourselves that management has complied with all
the required accounting standards and have fairly
disclosed all relevant information at their disposal.
Auditor’s Report
The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed
the entities audit report and management
report and has discussed all the findings and
recommendations with the Auditor General and
management and Council.
We have reviewed and monitored the entity’s
implementation plan for audit issues raised in the
prior year and we are satisfied that the matters
have been adequately resolved except for the
following:
 Usefulness of the performance information
and setting of smart targets.
The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and
accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General
on the annual financial statements and is of
the opinion that the audited annual financial
statements be accepted and read together with
the report of the Auditor-General.

__________________________
Mrs. Reyhana Gani, C.A. (S.A)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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HRM COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dr N. Ndlovu

Adv T. Mogatusi

Ms J. Burgess

Dr W. Ndlala

Mr D. Lithole

Mr M. Makeka

Dr G. Houston

Chairperson

Dr C. Twala

Mr P. Mokwena

Mr D. Sibayi

Ms L. Malgas

Chief Executive Officer

Executive: Heritage
Resources Management

Company Secretary

RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Ms R. Gani

Ms R. Benjamin- Swales

Mr J. Sindane

Adv D. Mitchell

Chairperson
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Mr P. Mokwena

Ms C. Motsisi

Ms L. Malgas

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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Ms T. Semane

IT AND ASSET COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr M. Makeka

Dr G. Houston

Ms J. Burgess

Mr P. Hill

Chairperson

Mr P. Mokwena

Ms M. Nkhasi-Lesaoana

Ms L. Malgas

Chief Executive Officer

Executive:
Corporate Affairs

Company Secretary

HR AND REMCO COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dr C. Twala

Ms R. Gani

Mr J. Sindane

Dr N. Ndlovu

Chairperson

Mr P. Mokwena

Mr G. Hughes

Ms C. Motsisi

Ms L. Malgas

Chief Executive Officer

Executive:
Human Resources

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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16 DAYS OF ACTIVISM AGAINST NO VIOLENCE
AGAINST WOMEN AND CHILDREN

Community members

The panel

MANDELA DAY 2013

Helping hands on Mandela Day

Vegetable garden

SAHRA donates warm blankets
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PART D
Human Resource Management

Former Acting CEO Ms Mmabatho
Ramagoshi signing NEHAWU recognition
agreement with Union

Former Acting CEO Ms Mmabatho
Ramagoshi with SAHRA Human
Resources Officer and Shop Steward

Organisational Development Project
Reference Group 1

Gcina Mhlophe, author and poet
motivating SAHRA staff

1. INTRODUCTION
In 2012, the SAHRA Council identified a need
for a turnaround strategy that will improve the
Entity performance in order to enhance service
delivery. This project is a key strategic objective
and was put in place to reposition the Entity and
improve its overall effectiveness in terms of the
realisation of its mandate. During this turnaround
process, the turnaround team identified the
need for an Organisational Development Process
(ODP).
During the financial year under evaluation, a
service provider was appointed to partner with
SAHRA to facilitate the ODP throughout the
Entity. In order to drive a culture of excellence,
the ODP project involved the establishment of a
Project Referance Group (PRG) which consisted of
representatives from each Unit at various levels
to partake in this process ODP.
The project focused on the following aspects of
SAHRA’s Organisational repositioning:

 Conducting an organisational culture audit
through the participation of all SAHRA
employees.
 Identifying key organisational development
issues that will require the attention of the
Entity and leadership going forward.
 Reviewing the SAHRA
structure and fully
aligning it with the mandate of the Entity, as
stipulated in the NHRA.
 Reviewing of SAHRA’s remuneration systems.
 Conducting of a skills audit of all SAHRA
employees with the intention to identify skills
gaps and develop an appropriate strategy for
skills development.
 Developing a Performance Management
System (PMS) which would enable SAHRA to
achieve its strategic objectives.
 Changing management procedures.
In conclusion: The ODP was completed in February
2014, and the Human Resources Department is
currently embarking on a process to implement
the outcomes derived from this project.

SAHRA Workforce Profile
15
12
9
6
3
0

Male
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Female

2. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Personnel cost by programme
Programme

Office of the CEO

Total
expenditure
for the Entity
(R’000)

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel
expenditure
as a % of total
expenditure
(%)

Number of
employees

Average
personnel cost
per employee
(R’000)

17 127

6 382

37

7

912

Finance

8 179

2 919

36

12

243

Corporate Affairs

9 920

4 438

44

23

193

Human Resources

3 506

965

27

4

241

HRM

17 702

11 096

62

37

300

TOTAL

56 434

25 800 (*)

45

83

311

(*) The difference between the amounts disclosed in this schedule and the statement of financial
performance is the relocation cost which was budgeted as general expenditure.
Training costs
Directorate/Business Unit

Personnel training
expenditure (R’000)

Number of employees
trained

Average training cost
per employee (R’000)

Office of the CEO

32

9

4

Finance

23

8

3

Corporate Affairs

18

5

4

Human Resources

67

7

10

HRM

51

10

5

Employment changes
Salary band

Employment during
the 2013/2014
period

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at the
end of the period

Top management

5 276

1

1

Senior management

7 289

1

5

Professional qualified

8 599

1

4

14

Skilled

3 579

2

3

25

838

2

18

3

1

Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Interns
Training
Total

25

7

9
11

191
25 800 (*)

12

10

83

(*) The difference between the amounts disclosed in this schedule and the statement of financial
performance is the relocation cost which was budgeted as general expenditure, as well as the interns
cost not included in the employee cost as disclosed in the statement of financial performance.
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Reasons for staff leaving
Reason

Number

Total number of staff leaving (%)

Death

0

-

Resignation

6

60%

Dismissal

0

-

Retirement

2

20%

Ill health

0

-

Expiry of contract

1

10%

Other

1

10%

10

100%

TOTAL

Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning

1

Written warning

6

Final written warning

1

Dismissal

0

Employment equity
Levels

Male
African

Coloured

Indian

White

(Current)

(Current)

(Current)

(Current)

Top management

1

0

0

0

Senior management

1

1

0

0

Professional qualified

1

2

0

0

Skilled

8

1

0

2

Semi-skilled

1

3

0

0

Unskilled

1

5

0

0

Intern

3

0

1

0

TOTAL

16

12

1

2

Female
Top management

0

0

0

0

Senior management

3

0

0

0

Professional qualified

4

6

0

1

Skilled

6

3

0

5

Semi-skilled

8

5

0

1

Unskilled

3

0

0

0

Intern

6

0

0

1

TOTAL

30

14

0

8
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2014
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the public entity's annual financial
statements and for the judgements made in this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the annual financial
statements.
In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations of the public entity for the financial
year ended 31 March 2014.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the AFS of the public entity.
The 2014 annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been audited by the
external auditors and their report is presented on page 70 to 71.
The Annual Financial Statements of the public entity set out on page 76 to 123 have been approved.

___________________________

__________________

Mr Kgereshi Petrus Mokwena

Mr Fanie Makhanya

Chief Executive Officer
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014

Chairperson of the board
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
General financial review of the Entity
At the backdrop of the initiatives and efforts aimed at turning around the Entity and creating leadership
capacity, it has become obvious that the Entity is not adequately funded to enable the execution of the
mandate and compliance with the financial management regulations.
Notwithstanding the above, the Entity continued relentlessly during the year to improve controls around
financial management as well as to use the limited resources in order to deliver on some of the targets
set in the Annual Performance Plans (APP).
Efforts were put in place in the third quarter of the financial year to create capacity within the Finance
Unit by appointing a management accountant. Plans are in place to continue with the implementations
of the new structure for Finance and other Governance units such as Internal Audit, Risk Compliance
and Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E).
The financial stability of the Entity is a high priority on the agenda of the Accounting Authority. The
major critical challenge created by the funding constraints is the fact that there are certain aspects of
the NHRA which SAHRA has not been able to implement as envisaged due to limited resources. This
situation, if not swiftly addressed, could threaten the very of existence and relevance of the Entity.
We have already commenced with the development of a comprehensive motivation for engaging the
Department of Arts and Culture as well as National Treasury on possible additional funding.
Spending trends
SAHRA’s revenue is derived from transfers from the Department of Arts and Culture, rent received from
tenants, permit fees, and interest gained. The table below shows the revenue received during the year
under review:
Revenue received
2013/2014
Source of revenue

Adjusted
R’000

Transfer payments

2012/2013

Actual amount Over/under
collected
collection
R’000
R’000

Estimate

Actual amount Over/under
collected
collection
R’000
R’000

R’000

43 666

43 666

-

41 037

41 037

-

Rent received

539

685

146

500

-40

-540

Permit fees

120

30

-90

15

20

5

Interest

160

3 474

3 314

120

2 417

2 297

-

64

64

-

37

-37

5 756

5 756

-

200

200

-

41 872

43 711

1 839

Other
Deferred revenue
(collected in prior
years)
Rollover received
Total

5 044

5 044

-

55 285

58 719

3 434

Revenue received exceeded the forecast by 6%. This increase is largely attributable to the interest
received from the capital transfer of R47 million which was received from DAC in April 2012. Rent
received also exceeded the forecasted amount by 27%. This is largely attributable to the enhanced debt
management process.
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Expenditure analysis
The table below gives a synopsis of how the Entity spent these funds.
2013/2014
Original
budget

Actual
expenditure

R’000

R’000

Administration
Heritage Unit
Employee cost
Total

2012/2013
Variance
R’000

Original
budget

Actual
expenditure

R’000

R’000

Variance
R’000

22 398

22 551

-162

14 065

13 051

877

6 820

6 604

225

3 470

2527

943

26 067

25 749

318

24 137

21 968

2 169

55 285

54 904

381

41 672

37 546

3 989

The Entity managed to spend 99% of the adjusted budget. The original baseline budget of R50 241
was increased by the approved rollover request of R5 044 million to R55 285 million. Included in the
expenditure is Project Funds which amount to R5 756 million.
Capacity constraints and challenges facing the public Entity
As reported in the previous financial year, SAHRA continued to finalise the Organisational Development
Project (ODP) which was aimed at aligning the functional structures and creating an enabling environment
for improved operational effectiveness of the Entity.
Council endorsed the structures of all other divisions, except for Heritage Resource Management,
which required further review on alignment with the mandate. Certain critical posts such as the Human
Resource Manager, Management Accountant, and other lower level posts were filled during the year.
Notwithstanding the above initiatives, capacity remains a challenge since the Entity did not receive
additional funding for the implementation of the turnaround strategy and related initiatives. The Entity
is unfortunately still relying on consultants and contract workers in some areas of the business as there
are no funds available to create permanent posts, and there is neither sustainable nor strategic.
The skills audit conducted during the Organisational Development Project will enable the Entity to
identify misplacements and development needs of staff. While all these initiatives are dependent on the
availability of funds, we will endeavour during the MTEF to motivate for additional funding.
Requests for rollovers
SAHRA did not over spend on its baseline. A rollover request will be made for use of accumulated
interest of R 3,4 million as well as the unspent budget of R381 000.
Supply chain management
During the year under review, SAHRA reported minimal irregular expenditure which arose from recurring
contracts which were concluded in the previous years and could not be cancelled as they were still
legally binding.
While we concede that the Supply Chain Management Unit still needs to be capacitated and properly
trained, there is notable improvement in the internal controls established and implemented during the
year. We intend to improve planning across the Entity in the new financial year to reduce urgent cases
which impede procurement processes.
A significant amount of irregular expenditure incurred in the previous financial year was condoned by
the Accounting Authority. However, proper analysis was done to determine the nature and causes of the
irregular expenditure. Most of the cases came as a result of the fact that the Entity did not have any
established supply chain management processes.
Other cases, which were subjected to forensic investigations, will be dealt with according to the
recommendations of the report.
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Previous year audit queries and how they were resolved
A comprehensive action plan was put in place during the year under review to monitor implementation
of the audit findings. Internal controls were enhanced through the development of policies and by
improving the review of financial transactions.
Except for the challenges surrounding the movable asset management, which remained prevalent at the
end of the financial year, other general ledger reconciliations were reviewed on a monthly basis. Errors
made in the previous year were corrected and correctly reported in the new annual financial statement.
Governance issues raised were also addressed during the year under review, with capacity created in
relevant areas such as the management of predetermined objectives.
The Audit Committee and Executive Committee both played essential roles in monitoring the progress
made on the clearing of audit findings.
Future plans to address financial management challenges
The Entity has approved a new structure for the Finance Unit. The post of Finance Manager was created
and planned to be filled during the first quarter of the financial year. An asset management clerk will be
employed to provide the necessary support for monthly reconciliation and updating of the asset register.
The check list for month-end processes has been enhanced to enable better monthly review of all
accounts on the Trial Balance.
The financial system ACCPAC has been improved and accounts reconfigured in order to produce more
informative and correct reports. Project codes on the system have also been improved to enable more
refined management of project funds.
There is a dedicated qualified management accountant who has been appointed to assist the CFO in
ensuring the Entity weans off the use of consultant by conducting a consistent interrogation of the
financial transactions and accounting on a monthly basis. The system which the Entity acquired for
the production of the AFS will also enable the Entity to produce its financial information with minimal
support from external consultants. The Entity incurred no major financial transactions after the balance
sheet date.
The annual Financial Statements set out on pages 76 to 123 have been approved by the Accounting
Officer.

___________________________
Mr Kgereshi Petrus Mokwena
Chief Executive Officer
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE
SOUTH AFRICAN HERITAGE RESOURCES AGENCY
Report on the financial statements
Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the
South African Heritage Resources Agency
set out on pages 76 to 123, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2014, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets,
cash flow statement and budget statement
for the year then ended, as well as the notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Accounting Authority’s responsibility for
the financial statements
2. T
he Accounting Authority is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South
African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP)
and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as
the accounting authority determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. M
 y responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with the
Public Audit Act of South Africa (Act No. 25
of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in
terms thereof, and International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that I comply
with ethical requirements, and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
4. A
n audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the Auditor
General’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud

70

SAHRA Annual Report 2014

or error. In making those risk assessments,
the Auditor General considers internal control
relevant to the Entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion.
Opinion
6. I n my opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the South African Heritage
Resources Agency as at 31 March 2014 and its
financial performance, cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with SA Standards
of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
7. In accordance with the PAA and the general
notice issued in terms thereof, I report the
following findings on the reported performance
information against predetermined objectives
for selected objectives presented in the annual
performance report, non-compliance with
legislation as well as internal control. The
objective of my tests was to identify reportable
findings as described under each subheading,
but not to gather evidence to express assurance
on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express
an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
Predetermined objectives
8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence
about the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information for the
following selected objectives presented in the
annual performance report of the Entity for the
year ended 31 March 2014:

 Objective 1: Effective heritage
management, on page18 .

resources

 Objective 2: Governance and accountability,
on page 18.
9. I evaluated the reported performance information
against the overall criteria of usefulness and
reliability.
10. 
I evaluated the usefulness of the reported
performance information to determine whether
it was presented in accordance with the National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether
the reported performance was consistent with the
planned objectives. I further performed tests to
determine whether indicators and targets were
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time
bound and relevant, as required by the National
Treasury’s Framework for Managing Programme
Performance Information (FMPPI).
11. I assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether
it was valid, accurate and complete.
12. T
 he material findings in respect of the selected
objectives are as follows:

Objective 2: Governance and
accountability
Usefulness of reported performance
information
13. T
 he FMPPI requires that performance indicators
and target must be well defined by having clear
data definitions so that data can be collected
consistently and is easy to understand and
use. 100% of the indicators were not well
defined. This was because management was
not trained in the requirements of the FMPPI.
14. T
 he FMPPI requires that performance targets
must be specific in clearly identifying the
nature and required level of performance,
and that performance must be measurable.
The measurability of planned targets and
indicators could not be assessed due to a lack
of technical indicator descriptions.
Additional matter
15. I draw attention to the following matter. This
information should be considered in the context
of the material findings on the usefulness of

the reported performance information for the
selected objectives reported in paragraphs 13
to 14 of this report.
Achievement of planned targets
16. R
efer to the annual performance report
on pages 19 to 49 for information on the
achievement of targets for the year. This
information should be considered in the
context of the material findings on the
usefulness of the reported performance
information for the selected objectives
reported in paragraphs 13 to 14 of this
report.
Compliance with legislation
17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence
that the Entity had complied with legislation
regarding
financial
matters,
financial
management and other related matters.
My finding on material non-compliance with
specific matters in key legislation, as set out
in the general notice issued in terms of the
PAA, is as follows:
Expenditure management
18. T
he Accounting Authority did not take
effective steps to prevent fruitless and
wasteful expenditure, as required by section
51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
Internal control
19. I considered internal control relevant to my audit
of the financial statements, performance report
and compliance with legislation. The matters
reported below are limited to the significant
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the
findings on the annual performance report and
the findings on non-compliance with legislation
included in this report.
Leadership
20. S
 ufficient oversight was not exercised to
prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
21. T
he leadership did not exercise adequate
oversight to ensure that indicators and targets
were well defined to be specific, measurable
and time-bound to facilitate the appropriate
measurement of the progress of implementing
the strategic objectives of the Entity.

Cape Town
30 July 2014
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Accounting Authority’s responsibilities and approval
The Accounting Authority is required by the Public
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) to maintain
adequate accounting records and is responsible for
the content and integrity of the financial statements
and related financial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the Accounting
Authority to ensure that the financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the Entity as at the
end of the financial year, as well as present the results
of its operations and cash flow for the period then
ended. External auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion on the financial statements and
were given unrestricted access to all financial records
and related data.The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by
the Accounting Standards Board.
Furthermore, the financial statements are based
upon appropriate accounting policies which are
consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.
The Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is
ultimately responsible for the system of internal
financial control established by the Entity, and
places considerable emphasis on maintaining a
strong control environment. In order to enable the
Accounting Authority to meet these responsibilities,
the Accounting Authority sets standards for internal
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit
in a cost effective manner. The standards include
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a
clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures, and adequate segregation of duties to
ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the Entity and all
employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring that the Entity’s

_______________
Mr F. Makhanya
Chairperson of Council
SAHRA
Date: 31 July 2014
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business is conducted in a manner that, in all
reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The
focus of risk management within the Entity falls on
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the Entity. While
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the
Entity strives to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.
The Accounting Authority is of the opinion that,
based on the information and explanations given
by management, the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial
records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system
of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or deficit.
The Accounting Authority has reviewed the
Entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31
March 2015 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, it is satisfied
that the Entity had, or has, access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for
the foresee able future.
The Accounting Authority is primarily responsible
for the financial affairs of the Entity.
The external auditors are responsible for auditing
and reporting on the Entity’s financial statements.
The financial statements have been examined by
the Entity’s external auditors and their report is
presented on page 70 to 71.
The financial statements set out on pages 76 to 123,
which have been prepared on the going concern
basis, were approved by the Accounting Authority
on 31 May 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

Accounting Authority’s Report
The members of the Accounting Authority submitted their report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

1. Review of activities
Main business and operations
The Entity is engaged in the business of identifying, developing, managing, promoting and preserving South
Africa’s national heritage resources and operates principally inside the country.
The operating results and state of affairs of the Entity are fully set out in the attached financial statements
and do not, in our opinion, require any further comment.

2. Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations, and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.

3. Subsequent events
The members are not aware of any matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year
that may require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.
On 1 April 2014, Mr Petrus Mokwena was appointed as the CEO of SAHRA in terms of the South African
Heritage Resource Agency Act (No. 25 of 1999).

4. Accounting Authority
The following council members, as appointed by the Minister of Arts and Culture in 2013, held office as
at 31 March 2014:
Name

Changes

Burgess, J.P.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Gani, R.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Houston, G. (Dr)

Appointed 1 August 2013

Lithole, D.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Makeka, M.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Makhanya, F.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Mogatusi, A.T. (Adv.)

Appointed 1 August 2013

Ndlala, W. (Dr)

Appointed 1 August 2013

Ndlovu, N. (Dr)

Appointed 1 August 2013

Ramagoshi, M. (Former Acting CEO Ex officio)

Appointed 1 August 2013

Sindane, J.

Appointed 1 August 2013

Twala, C. (Dr)

Appointed 1 August 2013

5. Bankers
ABSA Bank Limited, Nedbank Limited
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(Figures in Rand)

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2014
Note(s)

2014

Restated 2013

Assets
Current assets
Receivables from exchange transactions

3

385 212

588 418

Cash and cash equivalents

4

74 486 250

81 470 573

74 871 462

82 058 991

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

5

20 929 055

17 778 098

Intangible assets

7

656 629

744 685

Heritage assets

6

-

-

Operating lease asset

8

17 351 731

16 445 964

38 937 415

34 968 747

340 247

-

114 149 124

117 027 738

46 561

39 993

Non-current assets held for sale

9

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Operating lease liability

8

Payables from exchange transactions

10

4 034 219

2 934 463

Retirement benefit obligation

13

143 956

130 953

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

14

2 502 243

2 393 317

6 726 979

5 498 726

Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities

12

3 101 930

3 121 035

Retirement benefit obligation

13

3 960 026

3 905 273

7 061 956

7 026 308

13 788 935

12 525 034

100 360 189

104 502 704

Revaluation reserve

17 529 749

14 107 168

Accumulated surplus

82 830 440

90 395 536

100 360 189

104 502 704

Total liabilities
Net assets
Reserves

Total net assets
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(Figures in Rand)

Statement of Financial Performance
Note(s)

2014

Restated 2013

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Permit fees
Rental income
Income from reversal of provision

30 210

20 100

1 591 175

1 579 679

-

1 036 298

65 026

54 943

3 474 371

3 564 908

5 160 782

6 255 928

43 666 000

41 236 733

161 561

704 853

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

43 827 561

41 941 586

Total revenue

48 988 343

48 197 514

(294 259)

(71 036)

(1 349 745)

(1 183 322)

Other income

16

Interest received investment
Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government grants and subsidies

15

Public contributions and donations

Expenditure
Debt impairment

17

Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

18

-

(240)

General expenses

19

(25 298 468)

(14 824 137)

-

(77 464)

(170 987)

(215 763)

(2 315 233)

(3 828 047)

(717 276)

(908 586)

Impairment loss
Loss on disposal of assets
Project expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits

(26 407 471)

(22 124 919)

(56 553 439)

(43 233 514)

Operating (deficit) / surplus

(7 565 096)

4 964 000

(Deficit) / surplus for the year

(7 565 096)

4 964 000

Total expenditure
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(Figures in Rand)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Revaluation
reserve

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

10 148 438

84 779 529

94 927 967

-

652 007

652 007

10 148 438

85 431 536

95 579 974

3 958 730

-

3 958 730

3 958 730

-

3 958 730

-

4 964 000

4 964 000

3 958 730

4 964 000

8 922 730

14 107 168

90 395 536

104 502 704

Revaluation of land and buildings

3 422 581

-

3 422 581

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets

3 422 581

-

3 422 581

-

(7 565 096)

(7 565 096)

3 422 581

(7 565 096)

(4 142 515)

17 529 749

82 830 440

100 360 189

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Correction of errors refer to Note 27
Balance at 1 April 2012 as restated
Changes in net assets
Revaluation of land and buildings
Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets
Surplus for the year
Total changes
Balance at 1 April 2013 as restated
Changes in net assets

Surplus (deficit) for the year
Total changes
Balance at 31 March 2014
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(Figures in Rand)

Cash Flow Statement
Note(s)

2014

Restated 2013

Cash flow from operating activities
Receipts
Grants

43 666 000

78 102 110

3 474 371

3 564 908

980 314

558 092

48 120 685

82 225 110

Employee costs

(26 319 422)

(22 044 035)

Suppliers

(27 265 183)

(19 839 487)

-

(240)

(53 584 605)

(41 883 762)

(5 463 920)

40 341 348

Interest income
Other cash receipts

Payments

Finance costs
Net cash flow from operating activities

23

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

5

(1 501 298)

(1 014 154)

Purchase of intangible assets

7

-

(278 719)

(1 501 298)

(1 292 873)

(19 105)

(12 445)

(19 105)

(12 445)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(6 984 323)

39 036 030

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

81 470 573

42 434 543

74 486 250

81 470 573

Net cash flow from investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of other financial liabilities
Net cash flow from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

4
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(Figures in Rand)

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on cash basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final budget

Actual
amounts on
comparable
basis

Difference
Reference
between final
and actual
budget

Statement of financial performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Rental of facilities and
equipment

539 000

-

539 000

885 078

346 078

Permit fees

120 000

-

120 000

95 236

(24 764)

Interest received
investment

160 000

-

160 000

3 474 371

3 314 371

819 000

-

819 000

4 454 685

3 635 685

5 756 000

5 044 536

10 800 536

43 666 000

-

43 666 000

Total revenue from
exchange transactions

35.1.3

35.1.1

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Deferred revenue
Government grants and
subsidies

- (10 800 536)
43 666 000

35.1.2

-

Total revenue from nonexchange transactions

49 422 000

5 044 536

54 466 536

43 666 000 (10 800 536)

Total revenue

50 241 000

5 044 536

55 285 536

48 120 685

(7 164 851)

Expenditure
Personnel

(26 067 000)

- (26 067 000)

(25 799 708)

267 292

General expenses

(24 174 000)

(5 044 536) (29 218 536)

(29 286 195)

(67 659)

Total expenditure

(50 241 000)

(5 044 536) (55 285 536) (55 085 903)

199 633

Surplus (deficit)

-

-

-

(6 965 218)

(6 965 218)

Actual amount on
comparable basis as
presented in the budget
and actual comparative
statement

-

-

-

(6 965 218)

(6 965 218)

Reconcilation
Basis difference
Expenditure differences

(1 379 487)

37.2.1

Personnel

(88 049)

37.2.3

Revenue differences

867 658

37.2.2

(518 517)

37.2.3

518 517

37.2.1

Format and classification differences
Employee cost
General expenditure
Actual amount in the
statement of financial
performance
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(7 565 096)

Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including
any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued
by the Accounting Standards Board.These financial
statements have been prepared on an accrual basis
of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention, unless specified otherwise. They
are presented in South African Rand.
A summary of the significant accounting policies
are disclosed below.
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of
estimation uncertainty
In
preparing
the
financial
statements,
management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts represented
in the financial statements and related disclosures.
Use of available information and the application
of judgement are inherent in the formation of
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ
from these estimates which may be material to
the financial statements. Significant judgements
include:
Trade receivables
The Entity assesses its trade receivables for
impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in surplus or deficit, the Entity makes
judgements as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flow from a financial asset.
The impairment for trade receivables is calculated
on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific
economic conditions, as well as other indicators
present at the reporting date that correlate with
defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios
are applied to balances in the portfolio.
Impairment testing
The Entity reviews and tests the carrying value of
assets when events or changes in circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and

liabilities. If there are indications that impairment
may have occurred, estimates are prepared
of expected future cash flows for each group
of assets. Expected future cash flows used to
determine the value in use of tangible assets are
inherently uncertain and could materially change
over time. They are significantly affected by a
number of factors, such as inflation and interest.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management
determined an estimate based on the information
available.
Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, and other assets
The Entity’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment, and other assets. This estimate is
based on the pattern in which an asset’s future
economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the Entity.
Post-retirement benefits
The present value of the post-retirement
obligation depends mainly on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a
number of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost (income) include the
discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions
will impact on the carrying amount of postretirement obligations.
The Entity determines the appropriate discount
rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present
value of estimated future cash outflows expected
to be required to settle the pension obligations.
The most appropriate discount rate that reflects
the time value of money is with reference to
market yields at the reporting date on government
bonds. In cases where there are no deep markets
in government bonds with a sufficiently long
maturity to match the estimated maturity of all the
benefit payments, the Entity uses current market
rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter
term payments, and estimates the discount rate
for longer maturities by extrapolating current
market rates along the yield curve.
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Other key assumptions for pension obligations are
based on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in Note 13.
Effective interest rate
The Entity used the prime interest rate to discount
future cash flows.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On receivables, an impairment loss is recognised
in surplus and deficit when there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. The impairment
is measured as the difference between the
receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate, computed at initial
recognition.
1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible
non-current assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental
to others, or for administrative purposes, and are
expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset when
 it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will
flow toward the Entity; and
 the cost or fair value of the item can be
measured reliably.
Property, plant and
measured at cost.

equipment

are

initially

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the cost.
Where an asset is acquired at no cost or for a
nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date
of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment
is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset
or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary
and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item’s fair value was not determinable,
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its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.
Costs include those costs incurred initially
to acquire or construct an item of property,
plant and equipment, as well as costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service
it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located is also included in the cost of
property, plant and equipment, where the Entity
is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the
asset or using it for purposes other than the
production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment ceases
when the item is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Major spare parts and standby equipment, which
are expected to be used for more than one period,
are included in property, plant and equipment.
In addition, spare parts and standby equipment
which can only be used in connection with an item
of property, plant and equipment are accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs, due to the continuing use
of an item of property, plant and equipment and
which meet the recognition criteria above, are
included as a replacement in the cost of the item
of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are
derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, except for land and buildings
which are carried at the revalued amount being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment loss.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as

to such an extent that the carrying amount does

a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus

not differ materially from that which would be

or deficit in the current period. The decrease

determined using fair value at the end of the

is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to

reporting period.

the extent of any credit balance existing in the

When an item of property, plant and equipment
is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the
date of the revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. The revaluation is carried out at the end of
the reporting period.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as
a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a
revaluation surplus. The increase is recognised in
surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.
Item
Buildings

revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.
The revaluation surplus in equity, related to a
specific item of property, plant and equipment, is
transferred directly to retained earnings when the
asset is derecognised.
Subsequent to initial measurement property, plant
and equipment, except for land and buildings, are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
the straight line basis over their expected useful
lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment have been assessed as follows:
Average useful life
75 years

Computer equipment and peripherals

317 years

Furniture and fixtures

515 years

Motor vehicles

510 years

Plant and equipment

515 years

Vessels deck equipment, rib winches, cranes, anchors

12 years

Vessels propulsion systems, engines, gearboxes, propellers

20 years

Vessels research and patrol-hulls

20 years

Minor assets

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation
method of each asset are reviewed at the end
of each reporting date. If the expectations differ
from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual
basis does not require the Entity to amend the
previous estimate, unless expectations differ
from the previous estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item, is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is
recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included
in the carrying amount of another asset.

1 year

Items of property, plant and equipment are
derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds,
if any, and the carrying amount of the item. Such
difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when
the item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised.
Compensation from third parties for an item of
property, plant and equipment that was impaired,
lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the compensation becomes receivable.
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1.3 Intangible assets
An asset is identified as being intangible when it
 is capable of being separated or divided from the
Entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged; and either individually or together
with a related contract, assets or liability; or
 arises from contractual rights or other legal
rights, regardless whether those rights are
transferable or separate from the Entity or
from other rights and obligations.
An intangible asset is recognised when
 it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits or service potential that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Entity;
and
 the cost or fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a
non-exchange transaction, the cost will be its fair
value as at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets are, furthermore, carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an
indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflow or service potential. Amortisation is
not provided for intangible assets, but they are
annually tested for impairment and to find out
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis
over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for intangible assets are reviewed at
each reporting date.
Through reassessing the useful life of an
intangible asset with a finite useful life, after it
was classified as indefinite, could indicate that
the asset is impaired. As a result, the asset is
tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing
titles, customer lists and items similar in substance,
are not recognised as intangible assets.
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Amortisation is provided to write down the
intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their
residual values as follows:
Item

Useful life

Website

Indefinite

Computer software

19 years

Intangible assets are derecognised
 on disposal; or
 when no future economic benefits or service
potential are expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss from the derecognition of an
intangible asset is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the intangible asset. Such
difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when
the intangible asset is derecognised.
1.4 Heritage assets
Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural,
environmental, historical, natural, scientific,
technological or artistic significance, and are held
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future
generations.
Recognition
The Entity recognises a heritage asset as an asset
if it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset will
flow to the Entity, and the cost or fair value can
be measured reliably.
Where the Entity holds assets that might be
regarded as heritage assets but which, on initial
recognition, do not meet the recognition criteria
of a heritage asset since it cannot be measured
reliably, information on such a heritage asset is
disclosed in Note 7.
Initial measurement
Heritage assets are measured at cost. Where a
heritage asset is acquired at no cost, or for a
nominal cost, the cost is its fair value as at the
date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement, heritage
assets are carried at its cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment
The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a heritage asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Entity estimates the recoverable amount or the
recoverable service amount of the heritage asset.
Derecognition
Heritage assets are derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits or service
potential are expected from their use or disposal.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
a heritage asset is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such
difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when
the heritage asset is derecognised.
1.5 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or a residual interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition, minus principal repayments, minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and
minus any reduction (directly or through the
use of an allowance account) for impairment or
uncollectibility.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could
be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction.
Classification
The Entity has the following types of financial
assets (classes and category) that are reflected
on the face of the statement of financial position,
or in the notes thereto:
Class

Category

Receivables from exchange
transactions

Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

The Entity has the following types of financial
liabilities (classes and category) that are reflected

on the face of the statement of financial position,
or in the notes thereto:
Class

Category

Payables from exchange
transactions

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

Unspent conditional grants
and receipts

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

Initial recognition
The Entity recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability in its statement of financial position when the
Entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Furthermore, it recognises
financial assets by using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
The Entity initially measures a financial asset and
financial liability, other than those subsequently
measured at fair value, at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.
The Entity initially measures all other financial
assets and financial liabilities at their fair value.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities
The Entity measures all financial assets and
financial liabilities after initial recognition using
the following categories:
Financial instruments at amortised cost
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
rate method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, and minus any
reduction directly for impairment or uncollectibility
in the case of a financial asset. All financial assets
measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject
to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations
Short-term receivables and payables are not
discounted where the initial credit period granted
or received is consistent with terms used in
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the public sector – either through established
practices or legislation.

the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Reclassification

Where financial assets are impaired through
the use of an allowance account, the amount of
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit within
operating expenses. When such financial assets
are written off, the write-off is made against
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against operating expenses.

The Entity does not reclassify a financial
instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 a combined instrument that is required to be
measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets
the requirements for reclassification.
Gains and losses
For financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss
is recognised through the amortisation process,
or in surplus or deficit when the financial asset
or financial liability is derecognised or impaired.
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial
assets
The Entity assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired.
For amounts due to the Entity, significant financial
difficulties of the receivable, the probability that
the receivable will enter bankruptcy, as well as
default of payments are all considered as being
indicators of impairment.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. In
such a case, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced directly and the amount of the loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is directly
reversed. The reversal, however, does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at
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Derecognition
Financial assets
The Entity derecognises financial assets using
trade date accounting.The Entity derecognises a
financial asset only when
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, are settled or
waived;
 the Entity transfers to another party
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset; or
 the Entity, despite having retained some
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, has transferred control of
the asset to another party and the other party
has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able
to exercise that ability unilaterally without
needing to impose additional restrictions on
the transfer. In this case, the Entity
-

derecognises the asset; and

-

separately recognises any rights and
obligations created or retained in the
transfer.

The carrying amount of the transferred asset
is allocated between the rights or obligations
retained and those transferred on the basis
of their relative fair values at the transfer
date. Newly created rights and obligations are
measured at their fair values at that date. Any
differences between the consideration received
and the amounts recognised and derecognised,
are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period
of the transfer.
On the derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the carrying

amount and the sum of the consideration received
are recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial liabilities
The Entity removes a financial liability (or a
part of a financial liability) from its statement
of financial position when it is extinguished, i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract was
discharged, cancelled, expired or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and
lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as having
extinguished the original financial liability, after
which a new financial liability is recognised.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms
of an existing financial liability, or a part thereof,
is accounted for as having extinguished the
original financial liability and having recognised a
new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability (or part thereof) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed
by another entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction, are accounted for in accordance
with the standard of GRAP on revenue from nonexchange transactions (taxes and transfers).
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is considered a financial liability,
is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus
or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument
or a component that is considered a financial
liability, is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only
offsets. They are represented by the net amount
occurring in the statement of financial position
when the Entity currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
1.6 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
substantially transfers all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not substantially transfer
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings
elements, the Entity assesses the classification of
each element separately.
Operating leases – the lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue
on a straight line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised
as revenue and the contractual receipts are
recognised as an operating lease asset or
liability. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis as the lease revenue.
The total cost of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental revenue over the lease term
on a straight line basis.
Any contingent rents are recognised separately as
revenue in the period in which they are received.
Operating leases – the lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as
expenses on a straight line basis over the lease
term. The difference between the amounts
recognised as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognised as an operating lease
asset or liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
Any contingent rents are recognised separately
as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.
1.7 Non-current assets held for sale and
disposal groups
Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is only met when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or a disposal group)
is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
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recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.
Non-current assets (or a disposal group) held for sale
are measured at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
A non-current asset is not depreciated (or
amortised) while it is classified as held for sale,
or while it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, are recognised in surplus or deficit.
The gain or loss on the eventual sale of noncurrent assets held for sale is included in the
Statement of Financial Performance as gain or
loss on sale of assets. The gain or loss on the
eventual sale of non-current assets held for sale
is calculated on the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
individual assets or the disposal group.
1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating
assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held
by the Entity with the primary objective of
generating a commercial return. When an asset
is deployed in a manner consistent with that
adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates
a commercial return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other
than cash-generating assets.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cashgenerating asset exceeds its recoverable service
amount, it is considered impaired.
The Entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that a noncash-generating asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Entity estimates the
recoverable service amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment, the Entity annually tests a non-cashgenerating intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life, as well as a non-cash-generating
intangible asset not yet available for use for
impairment. This is done by comparing the asset’s
carrying amount with its recoverable service
amount. This impairment test is performed at the
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same time every year. Therefore, if an intangible
asset was initially recognised during the current
reporting period, that intangible asset was tested
for impairment before the end of the current
reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the
present value of the assets’ remaining service
potential.The present value of the remaining
service potential of a non-cash-generating asset
is determined using the following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service
potential of a non-cash-generating asset is
determined as the depreciated replacement cost
of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset
is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service
potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect
the asset in its used condition. An asset may
be replaced either through the reproduction
(replication) of the existing asset, or through
the replacement of its gross service potential.
The depreciated replacement cost is measured
as the reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower, minus accumulated
depreciation, which is calculated on the basis
of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or
expired service potential of the asset.
The replacement cost and reproduction cost
of an asset is determined on an ‘optimised’
basis. The rationale is that the Entity would not
replace or reproduce the asset with a similar
asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced
is an overdesigned or overcapacitised asset.
Overdesigned assets contain features which are
unnecessary for the goods or services the asset
provides. Overcapacitised assets are assets that
have a greater capacity than is necessary to
meet the demand for goods or services the asset
provides. The determination of the replacement
cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential
required of the asset.
Restoration cost approach
Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service
potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The
present value of the remaining service potential
of the asset is determined by subtracting the
estimated restoration cost of the asset from the

current cost of replacing the remaining service
potential of the asset before impairment. The
latter cost is determined as the depreciated
reproduction or replacement cost of the asset,
whichever is lower.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cashgenerating asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable service amount. This reduction is an
impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit.
After the recognition of an impairment loss,
the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the
non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate such an asset’s revised carrying
amount, minus its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The Entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cashgenerating asset may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
Entity estimates the recoverable service amount
of that asset.

such an asset’s revised carrying amount, minus
its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life.
1.9 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are due to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service.Short-term employee
benefits include items such as
 wages,
salaries
contributions;

and

social

security

 short-term compensated absences (such as
paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where
the compensation for the absences is due to
be settled within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;
 bonus, incentives and performance-related
payments payable within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related service; and
 non-monetary benefits (such as medical care,
and free or subsidised goods or services such
as housing, cars and cell phones) for current
employees;

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable service amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its recoverable service amount. The increase is
a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation or amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods.

 When an employee has rendered service to
the Entity during a reporting period, the Entity
recognises the undiscounted amount of shortterm employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service;

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cashgenerating asset is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit.

 as an expense, unless another standard
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits
in the cost of an asset.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised, the depreciation (amortisation)
charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods in order to allocate

The expected cost of compensated absences is
recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the
case of non-accumulating absences, when the

 as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting
any amount already paid. If the amount
already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, the Entity recognises
that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to
the extent that the prepayment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund; and
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absence occurs. The Entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount that the Entity expects to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.
The Entity recognises the expected cost of
bonuses, incentives and performance-related
payments when the Entity has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments
as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made. A present
obligation exists when the Entity has no realistic
alternative but to make the payments.
Other post-retirement obligations
The Entity provides post-retirement health care
benefits upon retirement to some retirees.
The entitlement to post-retirement health care
benefits is based on the employee remaining in
service up to retirement age and the completion
of a minimum service period. The expected costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment. Independent qualified actuaries
carry out valuations of these obligations. The
Entity also provides a gratuity and housing
subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An
annual charge to income is made to cover both
these liabilities.
Actuarial assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually
compatible. Financial assumptions are based on
market expectations, at the reporting date, for
the period over which the obligations are to be
settled.
The rate used to discount post-employment
benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded)
reflects the time value of money. The currency
and term of the financial instrument selected to
reflect the time value of money is consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the postemployment benefit obligations.
Post-employment benefit obligations are measured
on a basis that reflects
 estimated future salary increases;
 the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or
resulting from any constructive obligation that
goes beyond those terms) at the reporting
date; and
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 estimated future changes in the level of any
state benefits that affect the benefits payable
under a defined benefit plan, if, and only if,
either
-

those changes were enacted before the
reporting date; or

-

past history, or other reliable evidence,
indicates that those state benefits will
change in some predictable manner, for
example, in line with future changes in
general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of
estimated future changes in the cost of medical
services, resulting from both inflation and specific
changes in medical costs.
1.10 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when
 the Entity has a present obligation as a result
of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the
obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of
the expenditure expected to be required in order
to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date.
Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the liability.
Where some, or all, of the expenditure that is
required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the
Entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement
is treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement does not
exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of
a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. This increase is then recognised
as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for
which the provision was originally recognised.

dividends or similar distributions, is recognised
when
 it is probable that the economic benefits
or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Entity; and
 the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using
the effective interest rate method.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating
expenditure.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

If the Entity has an onerous contract, the present
obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract
is recognised and measured as a provision.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations
which specify that the future economic benefits
or service potential embodied in the asset is
required in order to be consumed by the recipient
as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events. Its existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not entirely
within the Entity’s control.
A contingent liability is
 a possible obligation that arises from past events
and of which the existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not
entirely within the Entity’s control; or
 a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because
-

-

it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle
the obligation; or
the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in
Note 25.
1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of trade
discounts, and volume rebates.
Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of the
Entity’s assets yielding interest, royalties and

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations
that limit or direct the purposes for which a
transferred asset may be used, but do not specify
that future economic benefits or service potential
are required to be returned to the transferor if
not deployed as specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in
laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement,
imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by
entities external to the reporting Entity.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset is recognised
as revenue, except to the extent that a liability
is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the Entity satisfies a present obligation
recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow
of resources from a non-exchange transaction
recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying
amount of the liability recognised and recognises
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue

received

from

conditional

grants,

donations and funding are recognised as revenue
to the extent that the Entity has complied with all
of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied
in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met, a
liability is recognised.
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Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is
measured at the amount of the increase in net
assets recognised by the Entity.When, as a result of
a non-exchange transaction, the Entity recognises
an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair
value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability. Where a liability
is required to be recognised it will be measured
as the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and
the amount of the increase in net assets, if any,
recognised as revenue.

contravention of or that is not in accordance with a
requirement of any applicable legislation, including
a) this Act; or
b)	the State Tender Board Act (No. 86 of 1968),
or any regulations made in terms of the Act.
All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the statement
of financial performance in the year that the
expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is
classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and, where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the statement of
financial performance.

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind

1.17 Budget information

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind,
are recognised as assets and revenue when it
is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the Entity and, also,
if the fair value of the assets can be measured
reliably.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis
and covers the 12 months ending 31 March 2014.

1.13 Investment income
Investment income is recognised on a timeproportion basis using the effective interest
method.
1.14 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been
reclassified in order to conform with changes
made in presentations of the current year. Refer
to Note 29 for details of reclassifications.
1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure refers to expenditure which
was made in vain and could have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful
expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the statement of financial performance in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. The
expenditure is classified in accordance with the
nature of the expense, and, where recovered, it
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
statement of financial performance.
1.16 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure, as defined in Section 1 of
the Public Finance Management Act, is expenditure
other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
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The financial statements and the budget are
not prepared on the same basis of accounting.
The actual financial statement information is,
therefore, presented on a comparable basis to
the budget information. The comparison and the
reconciliation between the statement of financial
performance and the budget for the reporting
period, have been included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts.
The Entity provides explanations for variances
between the budget and actual amounts where
the variances are greater than 10%.
The financial statements and the budget are not
on the same basis of accounting; therefore, a
reconciliation between the statement of financial
performance and the budget has been included in
the financial statements.
1.18 Related parties
The Entity operates in an economic sector currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned by the South African Government. As a
consequence of the constitutional independence
of the three spheres of government in South
Africa, only entities within the national sphere of
government are considered to be related parties.
Management comprises of those persons
responsible for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Entity, including those charged
with the governance of the Entity in accordance
with legislation, in instances where they are
required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are
considered to be those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
members of management in their dealings with
the Entity.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s
length, or not in the ordinary course of business,
are disclosed.
1.19 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments where the
Entity commits itself to future transactions that
will normally result in the outflow of resources.

Capital commitments are not recognised as
liabilities in the statement of financial position,
but are included in the disclosure notes in cases
where
 approved and contracted commitments are in
place;
 the expenditure has been approved and the
contract has been awarded at the reporting
date; and
 disclosure is required by a specific standard
of GRAP.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2. New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective
and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the Entity has adopted the
following standards and interpretations that are
effective for the current financial year and that
are relevant to its operations:
GRAP 25: Employee benefits
The objective of GRAP 25 is to prescribe the
accounting and disclosure for employee benefits.
Although similar to IAS 19 (Employee Benefits)
that was previously applied, the main difference
between the two standards is that GRAP 25 does
not permit application of the corridor method,
resulting in the immediate recognition of the full
amount of actuarial gains and losses arising during
the year. GRAP 25 must be applied by an employer
in accounting for all employee benefits, except in
the case of share-based payment transactions.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 1 (as revised in 2012): Presentation
of financial statements
Minor amendments were made to the statement
of financial performance as well as the statement
of changes in net assets.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 3 (as revised in 2012): Accounting
policies, change in accounting estimates
and errors
Cosmetic amendments were made to the
standard. However, these amendments do not
affect the underlying accounting treatment of any
assets, liabilities or events.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 9 (as revised in 2012): Revenue from
exchange transactions
Amendments were made to the scope and
definitions of the standard, and the Entity has
adopted this amended standard for the first time
in the 2014 financial statements.
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The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 13 (as revised in 2012): Leases
Amendments were made to disclosures required
by the standard.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 17 (as revised in 2012): Property,
plant and equipment
Insignificant amendments were made to the
measurement after recognition, derecognition
and disclosure required by the standard.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
GRAP 31 (as revised in 2012): Intangible
assets (replaces GRAP 102)
Cosmetic amendments were made to the
standard. However, these amendments do not
affect the underlying accounting treatment of
intangible assets.
The adoption of this standard has not had a
material impact on the results of the Entity.
2.2 Standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective
For the period under review, a number of
standards and interpretations were issued but
have not yet become effective. These standards
and interpretations were not adopted as at the
reporting date.
GRAP 18: Segment reporting
Segments are identified by the way in which
information is reported to management, both for
purposes of assessing performance and making
decisions about how future resources will be
allocated to the various activities undertaken by
the Entity. The major classifications of activities
identified in the budget documentation will
usually reflect the segments for which an entity
reports information to management.
Segment information is either presented based
on service, or geographical segments. Service
segments relate to a distinguishable component

of an entity that provides specific outputs or
achieves particular operating objectives that
are in line with the entity’s overall mission.
Geographical segments relate to specific outputs
generated, or particular objectives achieved, by
an entity within a particular region.
Although this standard has been approved by
the Board, its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance. The
effective date indicated is a provisional one and
could change, depending on the Minister’s decision.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between
entities under common control
The objective of this standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer and
transferor in a transfer of functions between
entities under common control. It requires an
acquirer and a transferor that prepares and
presents financial statements under the accrual
basis of accounting in order to apply this standard
to a transaction or event that meets the definition
of a transfer of functions. The standard includes a
diagram and entities are required to consider this
diagram in determining whether this standard
should be applied in accounting for a transaction
or event that involves a transfer of functions or
merger.
It furthermore covers concepts like definitions;
identifying
the
acquirer
and
transferor;
determining the transfer date; assets acquired
or transferred and liabilities assumed or
relinquished; accounting by the acquirer and
transferor; disclosure; transitional provisions;
and the effective date of the standard.
Although this standard has been approved by the
Accounting Standards Board, its effective date
has not yet been determined by the Minister of
Finance.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between
entities not under common control
The objective of this standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer
of functions between entities not under common
control. It requires an entity that prepares and

presents financial statements under the accrual
basis of accounting to apply this standard to
a transaction or other event that meets the
definition of a transfer of functions. The standard
includes a diagram and entities are required to
consider this diagram in determining whether this
standard should be applied in accounting for a
transaction or event that involves a transfer of
functions or merger.
It furthermore covers concepts like definitions;
identifying a transfer of functions between entities
not under common control; the acquisition
method; recognising and measuring the difference
between the assets acquired, liabilities assumed
and the consideration transferred; measurement
period; determining what is part of a transfer
of functions; subsequent measurement and
accounting; disclosure; transitional provisions;
and the effective date of the standard.
Although this standard has been approved by the
Accounting Standards Board, its effective date
has not yet been determined by the Minister of
Finance.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
GRAP 107: Mergers
The objective of this standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer
of functions between entities not under common
control. It requires an entity that prepares and
presents financial statements under the accrual
basis of accounting to apply this standard to a
transaction or other event that meets the definition
of a transfer of functions. It includes a diagram
and requires that entities consider the diagram
in determining whether this standard should be
applied in accounting for a transaction or event
that involves a transfer of functions or merger.
It furthermore covers concepts like definitions;
identifying a transfer of functions between
entities not under common control; the
acquisition method; recognising and measuring
the differences between the assets acquired,
liabilities assumed and the consideration
transferred; measurement period; determining
what is part of a transfer of functions; subsequent
measurement
and
accounting;
disclosure;
transitional provisions; and the effective date of
the standard.
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Although this standard has been approved by
the Board, its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
GRAP 20: Related party disclosures
The objective of this standard is to ensure that
a reporting entity’s financial statements contain
the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the
possibility that its financial position and surplus or
deficit may have been affected by the existence
of related parties as well as by transactions and
outstanding balances with such parties.
Related party transactions are not disclosed if
they were not done at arm’s length.
Although this standard has been approved by the
Accounting Standards Board, its effective date has
not yet been determined by the Minister of Finance.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
IGRAP 11: Consolidation – Special purpose
entities
The interpretation provides guidance for the
identification of special purposes entities that
should be incorporated into the consolidated
financial statements. SAHRA does not have any
special purpose entities. Therefore, it is considered
that this interpretation will not have a material
impact on the Entity’s financial statements once
it becomes effective.
The effective date of this interpretation is
dependent on/in conjunction with the effective
date of GRAP105, 106 and 107.
The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Nonmonetary contributions by ventures
This interpretation of the standards of GRAP deals
with the venture’s accounting for non-monetary
contributions to a Jointly Controlled Entity (JCE)
in exchange for an interest in the net assets in
the JCE that is accounted for using either the
equity method or proportionate consolidation.
The effective date of this interpretation is
dependent on/in conjunction with the effective
date of GRAP105, 106 and 107.
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The Entity expects to adopt the standard for the
first time once it becomes effective.
GRAP 108 Statutory receivables
 This standard prescribes the accounting
treatment for receivables arising from
legislation rather than from contracts entered
into between parties. This standard provides
that statutory receivables are initially measured
at transaction price and subsequently
measured using the cost model. Application of
the cost model allows for adjustments to be
made to the carrying amount in order to reflect
any interest or other charges that may have
accrued on the receivable, impairment losses
or amounts derecognised. This standard is not
anticipated to have a significant impact on the
financial statements of the Entity.
 Although this standard has been approved by
the Board, its effective date has not yet been
determined by the Minister of Finance.
 The Entity expects to adopt the standard for
the first time once it becomes effective.
IGRAP 1 (as revised in 2012): Applying
the probability test on initial recognition of
revenue
Paragraphs .03, .04, .05, .06, .08 and .10 were
amended and paragraph .02 was added in the
interpretation of the standards of GRAP.
This interpretation of the standards of GRAP now
addresses the manner in which an entity applies
the probability test on initial recognition of both
a) exchange revenue, in accordance with the
standard of GRAP on revenue from exchange
transactions; and
b) non-exchange revenue, in accordance with
the standard of GRAP on revenue from nonexchange transactions (taxes and transfers).
This interpretation of the standards of GRAP
replaces the previous interpretation of the
standards of GRAP: Applying the probability test
on initial recognition of exchange revenue (issued
in 2009).
The effective date of the amendment is for years
beginning on or after 1 April 2013.
The Entity has adopted the amendment for the
first time in the 2014 financial statements.

(Figures in Rand)

3. Receivables from exchange transactions
2014

Trade receivables

Restated 2013

236 668

386 450

46 000

152 486

102 544

49 482

385 212

588 418

Trade receivables

715 450

964 482

Sundry receivables

212 424

49 483

46 000

152 486

(588 662)

(578 033)

385 212

588 418

Deposits
Sundry receivables

Reconciliation of receivables from exchange transactions

Deposits
Less impairment allowance

Trade and other receivables pledged as security
No trade and other receivables were pledged as security.
Credit quality of trade and other receivables
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past, due, nor impaired, can be
assessed by reference to historical information about counterparty default rates.
Trade and other receivables past due, but not impaired
Trade and other receivables that are more than 30 days outstanding are considered past due. All
receivables are individually assessed for impairment.
The Entity has assessed these balances for recoverability and believes that they are still of good credit
quality.
The ageing of amounts past due, but not impaired, is as follows:
30 days

14 643

-

60 days

6 803

-

90 days

2 899

-

178 793

28 860

More than 90 days
Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2014, trade and other receivables to the value of R588 662 (in comparison to R 653 934
in 2013) were impaired and provided for.
The amount of the allowance was R468 662 as of 31 March 2014 (in comparison to R578 032 in 2013).
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
Current

97 917

30 582

30 days

215 940

2 161

60 days

8 000

8 029

90 days

8 000

9 071

258 805

604 091

More than 90 days
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(Figures in Rand)
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
2014

Restated 2013

Opening balance

578 033

440 336

Provision for impairment

120 000

158 792

(109 371)

-

-

(21 095)

588 662

578 033

1 325

4 441

Bank balances

44 633 269

52 019 034

Short-term deposits

29 851 656

29 447 098

74 486 250

81 470 573

Amounts written off as uncollectible
Telephone debt written off

4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand

Restrictions on use of cash and cash equivalents
Included in bank balances and short-term deposits are amounts held that may only be used in accordance
with agreements with various transferors for receipt of non-exchange revenue (refer to Note 14).
At the reporting date the Trust funds subject to restrictions were as follows:
A. Galla Workshops

1 085

1 029

A. Skakanga Trust Fund

1 122

1 064

Almshouses

1 637

1 553

98 454

99 412

4 480

4 249

17 709

14 378

147 612

140 034

Bo-Kaap Trust

6 293

5 969

Constitution Hill

1 495

1 418

Australian War Graves
Bellingham
Bethanie Restoration Trust
Bien Donne Restoration Trust

D.R. Church, Somerset West

2 383

2 277

58 681 610

59 758 076

Dutch Reformed Church Ladies

48 326

45 482

Empire Road, Parktown

19 728

18 714

297 667

28 236

1 683

1 596

940 539

1 046 937

963

914

11 460

10 871

2 918

2 768

La Motte

15 107

14 330

Langenhoven’s Arbeidsgenot

34 247

32 483

Department of Arts and Culture projects

Esme Lownds
Fort Armstrong
Genadendal
Getty Foundation
Hugo Vault
Klein Bosch Cemetery
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(Figures in Rand)

2014

Lemana Cottage, Elim

Restated 2013

67 909

64 418

477 334

452 794

Mackie Niven

12 309

12 290

Mamre project

16 284

15 447

Matjes River Leakey Foundation

43 516

41 278

Mgwali Mission Church

48 559

46 062

NMC Publications Trust Fund

26 202

24 854

National Geographic’s Footprint

16 811

15 947

1 095 031

1 092 800

405 589

384 734

M.M. Hill Trust Fund

National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund projects
Oppenheimer Geological
Other projects

-

58 234

Owl House Trust Fund

43 609

41 367

Sanlam Award, de Bult

11 330

10 748

Sanlam Fund, Waenhuiskranz

33 953

32 207

Sanlam, Steinkopf Mission

2 978

2 825

Sanlam, Valdezia

2 465

2 338

Sharley Cribb Nursing Home

7 763

7 364

Sontonga Memorial Fund

2 690

2 552

St Stephen’s Church

6 577

6 239

Steinkopf Mission Church

7 656

7 633

16 924

16 054

Trust bank accounts:

-

-

Vrijstatia Association

12 917

12 253

Woutersen Wessels Vault

3 139

2 977

Rowland & Leta Hill

6 497

6 497

154 833

154 833

Egazini (Eastern Cape government grant)

7 025

7 025

Sanlam Restoration Trust

9 859

9 859

269 194

269 194

Strand Street Lutheran Church

Ansteys Building, Johannesburg

Prestwich
British War Graves
Makapan
Makgabeng

1 000

1 000

1 662 174

1 585 594

840 051

80 703

65 648 696

65 699 910
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(Figures in Rand)

5. Property, plant and equipment
2014

Cost/
valuation

Land and buildings

Restated
2013

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

Cost/
valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

17 000 000

-

17 000 000

13 800 000

-

13 800 000

Plant and equipment

1 453 313

(523 528)

929 785

1 418 665

(414 837)

1 003 828

Furniture and fixtures

1 131 123

(612 117)

519 006

1 094 094

(607 958)

486 136

Motor vehicles

1 713 117

(1 047 304)

665 813

2 610 474

(1 469 846)

1 140 628

IT equipment

2 753 932

(1 317 481)

1 436 451

1 846 743

(896 016)

950 727

Vessels

616 080

(241 548)

374 532

616 080

(219 301)

396 779

Minor assets

130 552

(127 084)

3 468

70 431

(70 431)

-

24 798 117 (3 869 062)

20 929 055

21 456 487 (3 678 389)

17 778 098

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment 2014
Opening
balance

Land and buildings
Plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Revaluations

Depreciation

Total

13 800 000

-

-

-

3 422 581

(222 581) 17 000 000

1 003 828

134 597

(25 431)

-

-

(183 209)

929 785

486 136

226 829

(73 518)

-

-

(120 441)

519 006

1 140 628

-

-

(340 247)

-

(134 568)

665 813

IT equipment

950 727

1 079 714

(72 038)

-

-

(521 952)

1 436 451

Vessels

396 779

-

-

-

-

(22 247)

374 532

-

60 158

-

-

-

(56 690)

3 468

17 778 098

1 501 298

(170 987)

(340 247)

Minor assets
Total

3 422 581 (1 261 688) 20 929 055

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment 2013
Opening
balance

Land and buildings

Additions

Disposals

Revaluations

Depreciation

Impairment loss

Total

10 000 000

-

-

3 958 730

(158 730)

- 13 800 000

Plant and equipment

451 518

702 310

(22 485)

-

(127 515)

-

1 003 828

Furniture and fixtures

740 461

66 921

(184 992)

-

(136 254)

-

486 136

1 467 652

-

-

-

(327 024)

-

1 140 628

IT equipment

999 023

235 874

(3 085)

-

(281 085)

-

950 727

Vessels

497 000

-

-

-

(22 756)

(77 465)

396 779

(9 050)

-

-

Motor vehicles

Minor assets

-

9 050

-

-

14 155 654

1 014 155

(210 562)

3 958 730

(1 062 414) (77 465) 17 778 098

The land and buildings included in the Entity’s property, plant and equipment is 109/111 Harrington
Street which is declared a national monument vide Government Notice No. 2517, as was published
in the Government Gazette 12814 on 2 November 1990. The building was formerly known as Granite
Lodge and is now used as SAHRA’s head office.
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Revaluation of land and buildings
The land and buildings were revalued on 31 March 2014 by an independent valuer. The method of
valuation employed was the Income Capitalisation Approach. The net normalised income of the property
was determined based on the assumption that the property is being fully let at open market rental;
market escalation applies, and incurs market-related operating cost. The net normalised income is then
capitalised into perpetuity, using a market-related capitalisation rate to reflect the open market value.
The capitalisation rate was 9%.

6. Heritage assets
Heritage assets of which the fair values cannot be reliably measured
The following heritage assets were recognised at nil value due to a reliable measurement not being
possible on initial recognition.
Land and buildings
The reason why the assets below could not be measured reliably is due to their cultural significance,
which cannot be reliably measured. Heritage assets are objects and places of cultural significance as
defined by the National Heritage Resources Act. SAHRA is responsible for coordinating the identification
and management of heritage resources in the country. In principle, the heritage properties are held in
custody by the Entity on behalf of the nation for the present and future generations.
A notarial deed has been registered over the portion of Old Fort, Durban, in the name of Ethekwini
Municipality, restricting the Entity’s control over this property. It is currently a provincial heritage site
under the new Act.
Due to initial adoption of GRAP 103
Birthplace of General Louis Botha, Greytown

Old English Fort, Marabastad

Blarney Cottage, Richmond

Old Fort and Cemetery, Potchefstroom

Burgher Monument, Boomplaats

Old Gaol, Grahamstown

Dal Josafat Farms, Paarl

Old Residency, King William’s Town

Het Posthuys, Muizenberg

Onderdal School, Wellington

Elandslaagte Battlefield, Ladysmith

Piet Retief’s grave, Ulundi

Erf 255, Tulbagh

Portion of Old Fort, Durban

Erf 56, Tulbagh

Powder Magazine, Potchefstroom

Fishermans’ cottages, Struisbaai

Site of Dr. David Livingstone’s House, Marico District

Garden of Remembrance, Aliwal North

Spioenkop Battlefield, Ladysmith

Groenberg School, Wellington

The Lookout, Uitenhage

Hugo Family Vault, Simon’s Town

Union Masonic Temple, Kimberley

Kleinbosch Cemetery, Dal Josafat

Valkenberg Manor, Observatory

Krugerhof, Waterval-Boven

Van Riebeeck’s Hedge, Bishops Court

Mapoch Caves, Roossenekal

Verdun Ruins, Soutpansberg District

Mooimeisiesfontein, Riebeeck East

Welcome Cottage, Simon’s Town

Moorddrift Monument, Potgietersrus

Woutersen Wessels Vault, Green Point

Old Congregational Church, Cradock
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Transitional provisions
Heritage assets of which the fair values cannot be reliably measured
The Entity changed its accounting policy for heritage assets in 2013. This change was made in accordance
with its transitional provision as per Directive 2 of the GRAP Reporting Framework according to which
the Entity is not required to measure heritage assets for reporting periods beginning on or after a date
within three years following the date of initial adoption of the standard of GRAP on heritage assets. The
transitional provision expires on 30 June 2015.
In accordance with the transitional provisions as per Directive 2 of the GRAP Reporting Framework,
certain library books were not recognised and cannot be reliably measured due to the initial accounting
of these books being incomplete by the end of the reporting period. The Entity has embarked on a
process to specifically measure books for the new reporting period. The process of measuring these
books is ongoing and earmarked to be completed in the next financial year.

7. Intangible assets
2014
Cost/
valuation

Restated 2013

Accumulated
amortisation
and
impairment

Carrying
value

Cost/
valuation

Accumulated
amortisation
and
impairment

Carrying
value

Computer software

557 139

(386 785)

170 354

557 139

(298 729)

Website SAHRIS

486 275

-

486 275

486 275

-

486 275

1 043 414

(386 785)

656 629

1 043 414

(298 729)

744 685

Opening
balance

Amortisation

Total

258 410

Reconciliation of intangible assets 2014

Computer software

258 410

Website SAHRIS
Total

(88 056)

Total
170 354

486 275

-

486 275

744 685

(88 056)

656 629

Reconciliation of intangible assets 2013
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

Total

Computer software

367 075

17 444

(5 202)

(120 907)

258 410

Website SAHRIS

225 000

261 275

-

-

486 275

592 075

278 719

(5 202)

(120 907)

744 685

Total

Other information
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:
SAHRIS is an integrated and interactive computer system used to manage the country’s national heritage
resources inventory, i.e. it is responsible for the management of the inventory of the national estate. The
system will be required into perpetuity, as long as its requirements, as stipulated in the NHRA, remain in
place. Impairment of SAHRIS will be tested on an annual basis.
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8. Operating lease asset/liability
2014

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Total

Restated 2013

17 351 731

16 445 964

(46 561)

(39 993)

17 305 170

16 405 971

Leases have terms between 1 and 65 years, with the option to extend for a further period. The rentals
escalate at 10% on average per year.

9. Non-current assets held for sale
In terms of Section 58(10) of the National Heritage Resource Act (No. 25 of 1999), SAHRA is obligated
to make arrangements, on the establishment of a provincial heritage resource authority, for the transfer
of assets, rights liabilities and obligations to the Provincial Heritage Resources Authority.
Currently, five motor vehicles are awaiting transfer to the respective provincial heritage resources
authorities. The completion date of transfer of ownership is unknown.
Assets and liabilities
2014

2013

Non-current assets held for sale
Property, plant and equipment

340 247

-

-

-

Reconciliation of non-current assets held for sale
Assets held for sale at the beginning of year
Transfers from property, plant and equipment

340 247

-

340 247

-

2 026 132

985 176

85 847

19 367

Accrued leave pay

617 920

705 704

Accrual for 13th cheque

564 398

514 064

50 608

19 980

689 314

690 172

4 034 219

2 934 463

Assets held for sale at the end of year

10. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables
Sundry payables

Deposits received
Accruals
Total
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11. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions 2013
Opening balance Reversed during
the year

Provision for PAYE and UIF

1 036 298

(1 036 298)

Total
-

The provision relates to outstanding UIF and PAYE returns dating back to the 20012004 financial periods.
After the initial claim by SARS was investigated, the amounts were found not to be outstanding and,
therefore, the provision was reversed.

12. Other financial liabilities
Amortised cost
2014

Trust liabilities

3 101 930

Restated 2013
3 121 035

Trust liabilities reflect monies held in trust accounts to be used for a specific purpose or project, such
as the maintenance of a specified asset.
Reconciliation of trust liabilities
Opening balance

3 121 035

3 133 480

Expenses on trust funds

(160 000)

(145 783)

Interest capitalised
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140 895

133 338

3 101 930

3 121 035
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13. Employee benefit obligations
Post-retirement healthcare benefit
Obligations to employees under SAHRA’s post-employment healthcare plan were independently valued
at 31 March 2014. At the time of this actuarial valuation there were four active members and six
continuation and widow(er) members. As per the current policy, SAHRA contributes 60% of the plan
option on which the members currently participate.
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:
Carrying value

2014

Restated 2013

Present value of the defined benefit obligation wholly unfunded

(4 103 982)

(4 036 226)

Non-current liabilities

(3 960 026)

(3 905 273)

(143 956)

(130 953)

(4 103 982)

(4 036 226)

4 036 226

3 605 000

68 649

68 000

(130 953)

(121 000)

Current liabilities

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Opening balance
Service cost
Contributions by employer
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains)/losses

297 807

301 000

(167 747)

183 226

4 103 982

4 036 226

68 649

68 000

(130 953)

(121 000)

Net expenses recognised in the statement of financial performance:
Current service cost
Contributions by employer
Interest cost

297 807

301 000

(167 747)

183 226

67 756

431 226

Discount rates

8.64%

7.50%

Medical cost trend rates

7.55%

7.00%

Actuarial (gains) losses

Key assumptions used
Assumptions used at the reporting date:
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Other assumptions
Assumed healthcare cost trends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surplus or
deficit. A one percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trends rates would have the following
effects:
2014

Restated 2013

One percentage One percentage
point increase point decrease

Change in past service contractual liability

554 038

(463 750)

Change in service costs plus interest cost

52 770

(43 975)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

4 103 982

4 036 226

3 605 000

2 941 000

2 390 000

14. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprise of:
Makapans Valley
Makgabeng

1 662 194

1 585 614

840 049

807 703

2 502 243

2 393 317

2 393 317

3 232 783

(1 562)

(758 803)

110 488

126 839

-

(207 502)

2 502 243

2 393 317

Movement for the year
Balance unspent at the beginning of the year
Conditions met and transferred to revenue
Interest
Repaid during the year
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Reconciliation of unspent conditional grants and receipts
1. Makapans Valley Lottery Project

2014

Balance unspent at the beginning of year

1 585 614

Conditions met transferred to revenue

Restated 2013
1 523 270

(781)

(747)

77 361

63 091

1 662 194

1 585 614

Balance unspent at the beginning of year

-

208 999

Conditions met transferred to revenue

-

(236 930)

Interest

-

27 931

-

-

Interest

2. Shipwrecks National lottery project

3. Maritime Archaeology Development Project Department of Arts and Culture project
Balance unspent at the beginning of year

-

719 107

Conditions met transferred to revenue

-

(520 378)

Interest

-

8 773

Repayment

-

(207 502)

-

-

807 703

781 417

(781)

(748)

33 127

27 034

840 049

807 703

4. Makgabeng Lottery Project
Balance unspent at the beginning of year
Conditions met transferred to revenue
Interest

1. Makapans Valley Lottery Project
Makapans Valley Development.
(Agreement signed in August 2003, no required completion date noted.)
The grant agreement indicates that money paid to SAHRA must be used for the specific purpose.
The National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund (NLDTF) has the right to withhold or reclaim the funds from
the Entity if the money is not used in the manner agreed.
Unspent funds at the end of the project are to be paid back to the NLDTF.
2. Shipwrecks National lottery project
Funding to establish a major, long-term project of national significance in the area of surveying of
heritage. (Agreement signed in July 2003, no required completion date noted.)
The grant agreement indicates that money paid to SAHRA must be used for the specific purpose.
The National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund (NLDTF) has the right to withhold or reclaim the funds from
the Entity if the money is not used in the manner agreed.
Unspent funds at the end of the project are to be paid back to the NLDTF
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3. Maritime Archaeology Development Project Department of Arts and Culture project
Developing a strategic and sustainable underwater cultural heritage management programme.
(Project commenced in April 2009 and was to be reviewed after three years. Completed at this stage.)
The remaining balance of funds was repaid to the transferor in the previous year.
4. Makgabeng Lottery Project
Writing of the history of Makgabeng, conducting a survey and research, and documenting the heritage
resources in Makgabeng.
(Agreement signed in June 2003, no required completion date noted.)
The grant agreement indicates that money paid to SAHRA must be used for the specific purpose.
The National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund (NLDTF) has the right to withhold or reclaim the funds from
the Entity if the money is not used in the manner agreed.
Unspent funds at end of the project are to be paid back to the NLDTF.

15. Government grants and subsidies
2014

Government grants and subsidies

Restated 2013

43 666 000

National lottery projects

41 037 000

-

199 733

43 666 000

41 236 733

16. Other revenue
Reversal of provision
Recoveries

-

1 036 298

65 026

54 943

65 026

1 091 241

17. Debt impairment
Contributions to debt impairment provision

120 000

71 036

Debts impaired

174 259

-

294 259

71 036

-

240

18. Finance costs
Interest paid on bank accounts
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19. General expenses
2014

Administrative expenses

Restated 2013
449

-

692 090

111 358

2 707 800

1 756 320

29 517

32 442

Cleaning

144 442

22 727

Computer expenses

310 709

13 197

Advertising
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges

Conference costs

96 978

592 678

7 746 070

2 058 497

Entertainment

268 470

208 300

Honorariums

587 822

281 220

1 048 657

616 374

945 935

707 873

Consulting and professional fees

Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Minor assets

1 136

-

Motor vehicle expenses

174 627

93 190

Petty cash expenditure

1 336

7 980

Postage and courier

119 538

113 021

Printing and stationery

215 826

255 254

Property rates and taxes

255 210

316 716

Public functions

494 240

133 088

Publications

334 567

180 256

Security

550 464

489 925

44 329

31 910

Staff recruitment

899 023

537 991

Staff welfare

115 189

127 263

40 180

37 555

Staff bursaries

Subscriptions and membership fees
Telephone and fax

799 021

669 664

Travel expenditure

5 573 620

4 033 829

Water and electricity

732 610

802 025

Workshops

368 613

593 484

25 298 468

14 824 137
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20. Salaries and benefits
2014

Acting allowances

Restated 2013

63 000

68 190

14 661 743

12 938 643

1 186 460

1 188 987

623 300

482 494

Leave pay charge

50 143

(126 401)

Long-service awards

10 000

-

1 131 478

933 664

191 414

89 767

4 516 166

3 622 314

198 709

-

2 681 113

2 179 868

Relocation and removal costs

518 517

248 973

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances

455 939

404 837

UIF

119 489

93 583

26 407 471

22 124 919

Basic
13th cheque
Housing benefits and allowances

Medical aid company contributions
Other short-term costs training
PAYE
Post-retirement healthcare benefits
Provident fund

Executive committee remuneration 2014
Annual
remuneration

M. Ramagoshi

13th
cheque

Leave paid
Relocation
out upon
cost
termination Allowances

Total

1 503 014

-

214 953

-

106 000

1 823 967

464 239

38 272

-

-

183 289

685 800

271 792

-

-

-

143 714

415 506

466 890

-

-

-

151 257

618 147

627 641

-

197 374

-

183 665

1 008 680

452 244

37 283

-

-

173 839

663 366

3 785 820

75 555

412 327

-

941 764

5 215 466

Acting Chief Executive Officer
Employment date: 01.11.2012
Term 2014: 12 months

K. Nkhasi-Lesaoana
Executive Officer: Corporate Affairs
(current)
Employment date: 01.12.2012
Term 2014: 4 months

G. Hughes
Executive Officer: Human Resources
Management
Employment date: 15.08.2013
Term 2014: 8 months

L. Malgas
Company Secretary
Employment date: 01.12.2012
Term 2014: 12 months

C. Motsisi
Chief Financial Officer (current)
Employment date: 07.01.2013
Term 2014: 12 months

D. Sibayi
Executive Officer: Heritage Resources
Employment date: 01.08.1998
Term 2014: 12 months
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Executive Committee remuneration 2013
Annual
remuneration

S.L. van Damme

13th
Cheque

Leave paid
Relocation
out upon
cost
termination Allowances

Total

365 255

62 746

-

-

146 226

574 227

585 833

-

49 478

-

47 500

682 811

174 383

34 877

-

47 251

73 606

330 117

322 568

22 605

-

-

75 175

420 348

174 383

-

-

12 072

88 138

274 593

111 500

2 291

-

-

53 806

167 597

34 877

29 064

-

10 173

14 721

88 835

139 375

-

16 550

-

38 065

193 990

478 333

-

-

38 086

-

516 419

418 520

34 876

-

-

180 055

633 451

2 805 027

186 459

66 028

107 582

717 292

3 882 388

Chief Executive Officer (previous)
Termination date: 29.10.2012
Term 2013: 7 months

M. Ramagoshi
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Employment date: 01.11.2012
Term 2013: 5 months

H. Gous
Executive Officer: Corporate Affairs
(previous)
Termination date: 31.08.2012
Term 2013: 5 months

K. Nkhasi-Lesaoana
Executive Officer: Corporate Affairs
(current)
Employment date: 01.12.2012
Term 2013: 4 months

Z. Fakier
Executive Officer: Human Resources
(previous)
Termination date: 31.08.2012
Term 2013: 5 months

L. Malgas
Company Secretary
Employment date: 01.12.2012
Term 2013: 4 months

B. Khumalo
Chief Financial Officer (previous)
Termination date: 30.04.2012
Term 2013: 1 month

C. Motsisi
Chief Financial Officer (current)
Employment date: 07.01.2013
Term 2013: 2 months and 3 weeks

S. Baker
Acting Chief Financial Officer
Employment date: 08.05.2012
Term 2012: 8 months

D. Sibayi
Executive Officer: Heritage Resources
Employment date: 01.08.1998
Term 2013: 12 months

Subtotal
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Allowances comprise of:
Car, cell phone, housing, relocation, acting, and other allowances

Accounting Authority Council
Expenses

2014

Restated 2013

Accommodation and meals

188 839

258 321

Airfares and bus tickets

839 008

657 756

Catering

87 254

3 645

Telephone and fax

54 480

42 480

1 169 581

962 202

Dokoda, C.M.

24 095

36 594

Fikeni, S. (Prof.)

20 768

81 848

Makhweyane, M.

19 757

20 702

Nkaiseng, D.S.

17 660

73 669

9 126

-

-

5 595

Twala, C. (Dr)

67 462

28 405

Burgess, J.P.

24 376

-

Houston, G. (Dr)

31 688

-

Makeka, M.

20 366

-

Makhanya, F. (Chairperson)

59 061

-

Ndlala, M.W. (Dr)

29 396

-

Ndlovu, N. (Dr)

50 394

-

Mogatusi, A.T (Adv.)

2 510

-

Hill, P.

2 169

-

378 828

246 813

11 122

2 169

-

3 710

16 954

20 533

Mvulane, P. (resigned June 2012)

-

6 110

Sihlaba, T. (resigned June 2012)

-

1 885

Council: Honorarium

Gani, R. (CA.SA)
Robinson, L.

Audit committee Honorarium
Benjamin-Swales, R.
Dukandar, M. (resigned August 2012)
Mitchell, D.

Gani, R. (CA.SA) (Chairperson)
Semane, T.
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28 632

-

6 784

-

63 492

34 407

(Figures in Rand)

21. Investment revenue
Interest revenue

2014

Interest on bank accounts

3 474 371

3 564 908

2 707 800

1 756 320

(7 565 096)

4 964 000

1 349 745

1 183 322

170 987

215 763

-

77 464

294 259

71 036

(899 199)

(825 565)

67 756

431 226

-

(1 036 295)

(91 053)

(259 206)

-

37 000 000

1 099 755

(640 921)

108 926

(839 476)

(5 463 920)

40 341 348

253 000

649 739

- within one year

424 275

284 583

- in 2nd to 5th year inclusive

907 569

133 397

1 331 844

417 980

Restated 2013

22. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees

23. Cash generated from operations
(Deficit)/surplus
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation and amortisation
 Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities
 Impairment loss
 Debt written off
 Movements in operating lease asset and accruals
 Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
 Reversal of provision
Changes in working capital:
 Receivables from exchange transactions
 Other receivables from non-exchange transactions
 Payables from exchange transactions
 Unspent conditional grants and receipts

24. Capital commitments
Authorised expenditure
Approved and contracted for
Operating leases as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Entity for the renting of offices of its regional
offices.The leases were negotiated for a period of 36 months, with the option to renew. The rentals
escalate with a rate of 8% per annum.
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Operating leases as lessor (income)
Minimum lease payments due

2014

Restated 2013

- within one year

405 935

317 545

- in 2nd to 5th year inclusive

380 373

385 324

- later than 5 years

62 394 802

62 503 890

63 181 110

63 206 759

Operating lease income represents rentals received by the Entity relating to buildings owned. Leases
have terms between 1 and 65 years, with the option to extend for a further period. The rentals escalate
by 10% per year on average.

25. Contingencies
There is currently a dispute with a lessor over the lease period. The lessor has informed his attorneys
that he would like to settle. The best estimate of the settlement amounts to R170 000. The amount and
timing of the outflow is, however, uncertain.
A previous tenant withdrew judgement that was obtained by SAHRA over outstanding rental fees. The
applicant is claiming costs incurred in alterations to the property. The best estimate of the cost amounts
to R30 000. The amount and timing of the outflow is, however, uncertain.
The Entity has accumulated surpluses of R82 830 440 (R90 395 539 restated in 2013) for which approval
for retention has not been obtained from National Treasury.

26. Related parties
Relationships
 Controlling Department of the Agency
 The Department of Arts and Culture
 Agency of the Department of Trade and Industry
 National Lottery Fund
Related party balances
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
National Lottery Fund

2 502 243

2 393 317

120 000

-

(120 000)

-

Amounts included in trade receivables
Amounts due from former acting CEO
(a member of senior management)
Amounts included in the provision for impairment
Amounts due from former acting CEO
(a member of senior management)
Related party transactions
Operational grants received
The Department of Arts and Culture
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Amounts included in the provision for impairment (expense)
Amounts due from former acting CEO
(a member of senior management)

2014

Restated 2013

120 000

-

A provision for impairment has been raised against the receivable as the payment of the debt is subject
to conditions which are still to be fulfilled. Refer to Note 20 for the compensation of key management.

27. Prior period errors
1. Operating leases
The operating lease liability was understated by R37 634 for the 2013 financial year. This was due to the
Canon operating lease which was not straight-lined as required by GRAP 13. The comparative statement
for 2013 was thus restated.
2. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade and other receivables were understated by R10 120 due to a rent deposit refundable that was
incorrectly recorded as revenue in the 2013 financial year. The comparative statements for 2013 were
thus restated.
3. Accruals
Accruals were overstated by R45 625 in the 2012 financial year due to accruals that were not accounted
or incorrectly accounted for as well as invoices that were processed twice. The opening balance for the
2013 financial statements was adjusted accordingly and the figure for the prior year restated.
General expenses and accruals were understated by R110 830 in the 2013 financial year due to accruals
that were not raised in this year. The comparative statements for 2013 financial year were thus restated.
4. Receivables from exchange transactions
 Trade and other receivables were understated by R169 909 in the previous years as a result of
incorrect take-on balances for the 2009 and 2010 financial years. The opening balance for the 2013
financial statements was adjusted accordingly and the prior year figure restated.
 Trade and other receivables were understated by R46 000 in the 2013 financial year due to deposits
on operating leases not accounted for in that year. The comparative statements for the prior year
were thus restated.
 In the same financial year, trade and other receivables were understated with R32 486 due to an
overpayment from a supplier. The comparative statements for the prior year were thus restated.
 Trade and other receivables were overstated with R87 755 in the 2012 financial year due to incorrect
provision of staff debtors. The opening balance for the 2013 financial statements was adjusted
accordingly and the prior year figures restated.
5. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment were understated R168 954 in the 2012 financial year due to assets that
were not reflected in the fixed asset register of the Entity. The opening balance for the 2013 financial
statements was adjusted accordingly and the figures for this financial year restated.
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6. Employee cost
Employee cost was understated by R154 299 due to the underprovision of the provident fund payable for
the 2012 financial year. The opening balance for the 2013 financial statements was adjusted accordingly
and the comparative statements for this financial year restated.
7. Unspent conditional grants
Unspent conditional grants were overstated by R548 264 in the 2012 financial year and by R38 622 in
the 2013 financial year. This was due to expenditure relating to the Shipwreck Project which was not
allocated against the project, but rather against the operational budget. The opening balance for the
2013 financial statements was adjusted accordingly and the comparative statements for this financial
year restated.
8. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was understated by R49 480 in the 2013 financial year. This was due
to relocation costs which were paid without following the Entity’s policies and procedures.
Statement of financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2014
Revenue
Rental income
Project income
Total revenue

Balance as
previously reported

Prior period

Restated

error

balance

1 589 799

(10 120)

1 579 679

666 161

38 692

704 853

2 255 960

28 572

2 284 532

158 791

(87 755)

71 036

14 448 853

375 284

14 824 137

3 821 841

6 206

3 828 047

Expenditure
Debt impairment
General expenses
Project expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits
Total expenditure

Surplus for the year
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1 174 097

(265 511)

908 586

22 044 035

80 884

22 124 919

41 647 617

109 108

41 756 725

41 647 617

109 108

41 756 725

5 044 536

(80 536)

4 964 000

(Figures in Rand)
Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014
Assets

Balance as
previously
reported

Prior period
error

Restated
balance

Current assets
Receivables from exchange transactions
Total current assets

340 023

248 395

588 418

340 023

248 395

588 418

17 609 145

168 953

17 778 098

17 609 145

168 953

17 778 098

2 359

37 634

39 993

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Operating lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions

2 577 955

356 508

2 934 463

Unspent conditional grants

2 941 581

(548 264)

2 393 317

5 521 895

(154 122)

5 367 773

84 779 530

652 007

85 431 537

5 044 536

(80 536)

4 964 000

89 824 066

571 471

90 395 537

426 446

49 480

475 926

Total current liabilities
Net assets
Accumulated surplus opening balance
Surplus
Total net assets
Notes to the financial statements
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
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28. Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.
Internal audit fees have been reclassified from auditors’ remuneration as consulting and professional
fees in terms of the prior year audit finding. Payments for internet services were incorrectly classified
as repairs and maintenance, and these payments were reclassified to telephone expenses in the year
under review.
The effect of the reclassification is as follows:
Statement of financial performance

2014

Restated 2013

Decrease in auditors’ remuneration

-

Increase in consulting and professional fees

-

131 214

Decrease in repairs and maintenance

-

(237 091)

Increase in general expenses

-

237 091

(131 214)

29. Risk management
Financial risk management
The Entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including liquidity risk and credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
ensuring the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities, and the
ability to close out market positions.
The Entity’s risk to liquidity is the risk that funds are not available to cover future commitments. The
Entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
The table below analyses the Entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
At 31 March 2014

Less than
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over
5 years

Payables from exchange transactions

4 034 216

-

-

-

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

2 502 243

-

-

-

At 31 March 2013

Less than
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over
5 years

Payables from exchange transactions

2 934 463

-

-

-

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

2 393 317

-

-

-

Other financial liabilities consist out of trust liabilities where the Entity is responsible for maintaining
specific assets. There are no contractual dates included in these trusts, therefore, the maturity of these
liabilities cannot reliably be included in the above table.
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Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade receivables. The Entity only
deposits cash with major banks that have a high quality credit standing, limiting exposure to any one
counterparty. All banks being used are approved by National Treasury.
Trade receivables include an extensive customer base. Therefore, management has to evaluate customerrelated credit risk on an ongoing basis. Otherwise, no independent rating process is in place, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account factors such as its financial position and
past experience.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year-end were as follows:
Financial instrument
Trade receivables before impairment

2014

2013

715 450

964 482

Interest rate risk
The Entity’s interest rate risk arises from short-term deposits. Short-term deposits issued at variable
rates expose the Entity to cash flow interest rate risk. On the other hand, short-term deposits issued at
fixed rates expose the Entity to fair value interest rate risk. During 2013 and 2014, the Entity’s deposits
and bank balances at variable rates were denominated in the Rand.

30. Events after the reporting date
The Accounting Authority is not aware of any matters or circumstances that occurred since the financial
year ended 31 March 2014 and the date of this report, or otherwise dealt with in the financial statements,
which could significantly affect the financial position of the Entity and the results of its operations.

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
2014

Opening balance

Restated 2013

475 926

258 925

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

214 953

236 101

Condoned or written off by Council

(358 542)

(19 100)

332 337

475 926

Current year

214 953

236 101

Previous years

117 384

239 825

332 337

475 926

Interest on overdue accounts

-

2 791

Telephone account expenses incurred unnecessarily

-

27 832

Settlement due to Commission for Conciliation

-

150 000

214 953

49 478

-

6 000

214 953

236 101

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Deviation from the required employment policies and procedures
Expenses paid in vain
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Analysis of expenditure condoned per age classification

2014

Current year

Restated 2013
-

-

(358 542)

(19 100)

(358 542)

(19 100)

-

(358 542)

Prior year

Events after the reporting period
Council condoned the following amount of fruitless and wasteful
expenditure after the reporting period, but before the annual
financial statements were approved.

The Entity has taken steps to recover the amount of R214 953 (in comparison to R49 478 in 2013) that
was incurred without following the set employment policies and procedures. A provision for impairment
has been raised against the amount receivable, as the settlement of the amount due is subject to
conditions which have not yet been fulfilled. Refer to Note 26.

32. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance

25 811 796

18 088 195

8 364 755

8 532 903

(29 469 934)

(809 302)

4 706 617

25 811 796

Add: Irregular expenditure current year
Less: Amounts condoned

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year
Prior years

1 115 551

8 103 540

3 591 066

17 708 256

4 706 617

25 811 796

-

1 063 409

269 800

579 793

Service provider’s tax clearance certificate not valid

-

31 492

Approval was obtained subsequent to the expenditure
being incurred

-

24 870

8 094 955

6 827 934

-

5 405

8 364 755

8 532 903

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Only one quotation obtained
Correct tender process not followed

Deviation from the required procurement processes
No service level agreement

Analysis of expenditure condoned per age classification
Current year
Prior year

7 361 895

429 363

22 108 039

379 939

29 469 934

809 302

The balance of the irregular expenditure is in respect of the expenditure on long-term contracts which
awaits condonation by Council.
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33. Change in estimate
Property, plant and equipment
The estimation of assets’ residual values is based on management’s judgement on whether or not the
assets will be sold or used past their useful lives and what their condition will be like at that time. All
assets were reviewed during the year – a total of 18 assets were identified and their useful lives revised.
Management estimates and determines an asset’s useful life by applying professional judgement, and
has no intention of selling any asset after its useful life has been depleted. Upon physical inspection, the
various assets were found to still be in good working condition. It was thus decided to be cautious and
revise the useful lives of the moveable assets.
The impact of this on the current period:
Decrease in depreciation: R55 398
The impact of this in the future:
Increase in depreciation: R55 398

34. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments 2014
Financial assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

2014

Restated 2013

At amortised
cost

Total

715 450

715 450

74 486 249

74 486 249

75 201 699

75 201 699

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities

3 101 930

3 101 930

Payables from exchange transactions

4 034 219

4 034 219

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

2 502 243

2 502 243

9 638 392

9 638 392

Categories of financial instruments 2013
Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

964 482

964 482

81 470 573

81 470 573

82 435 055

82 435 055

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities

3 121 035

3 121 035

Payables from exchange transactions

2 934 463

2 934 463

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

2 393 317

2 393 317

8 448 815

8 448 815
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35. Budget differences
35.1 Material differences between budget and actual amounts
1. I nterest income was under budget for the financial year under review. The interest derived from the
deferred revenue which is in SAHRA’s bank account for future application to various projects.
2. R
 evenue against grants with restrictions was recognised in the previous years, but the related
expenditure was incurred in the current year in terms of GRAP 23. As public entities are not allowed
to budget for a deficit, the amount of R10 800 536 was included in the budget to match expenditure
incurred in the current year – even though the revenue was actually accounted for in prior years.
3. R
 ental income received exceeded the amount budgeted for due to improved controls on revenue
collection.
35.2 Differences between budget and actual amounts: Basis of preparation and presentation
The budget is approved on a cash basis, while the financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.
Therefore, the budget and the accounting bases differ, and the financial statements, in turn, differ from
the budget, which is approved on the cash basis.The amounts in the financial statements were restated
from the accrual basis to the cash basis in order to be on the same basis as the final approved budget.
The amounts of these adjustments are identified in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.
1. General expenditure
Detail surrounding the basic difference of R1 379 487 is as follows:
Movement in creditors 		

R1 059 226

Depreciation 		

R1 349 745

Loss on disposal of assets 		

R170 987

Bad debts written off 		

R294 259

Movement in operating leases 		

R6 568

Capital purchases 		

R1 501 298

2. Income
Detail surrounding the revenue difference of R867 658 is as follows:
Deferred revenue 		

R161 561

Movement in the receivables 		

R199 670

Smoothing of operating lease income		

R905 767

3. Personnel cost
Details surrounding the basic difference of R88 049 is as follows:
Movement in staff debtors 		

R7 093

Movement in bonuses 		

R50 334

Movement in leave provisions 		

R87 784

Movement in post retirement benefits 		

R67 756

Movement in PAYE 		

R64 836
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Changes from the approved budget to the final budget
Changes from the approved to the final budget are all consequences of reallocations within the approved
budget parameters.

36. Reconciliation between budget and cash flow statement
A reconciliation between the actual amounts on a comparable basis (as presented in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts) and the actual amounts in the cash flow statement for
the period ended 31 March 2014, is presented below. The financial statements and budget documents
for the same period are also presented. There is, however, a fundamental difference as the budget is
prepared on a cash basis and the financial statements on an accrual one.
Operating activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basic differences
Net cash flows from operating activities

2014

Restated 2013

(6 965 218)

4 159 484

1 501 298

36 181 864

(5 463 920)

40 341 348

-

-

(1 501 298)

(1 292 873)

(1 501 298)

(1 292 873)

-

-

(19 105)

(12 445)

(19 105)

(12 445)

(6 984 323)

39 036 030

Investing activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basic differences
Net cash flows from investing activities
Financing activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basic differences
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net cash generated from operating, investing
and financing activities
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